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OVERVIEW
The Carter Center was founded by former U.S. President Jimmy Carter and 
his wife, Rosalynn, in 1982. A nongovernmental organization, the Center 
has helped to advance peace and health in more than 80 countries.

•  Leading an eradication campaign that has 
reduced incidence of Guinea worm disease 
from an estimated 3.5 million human cases 
in 1986 to just 13 in 2022

•  Observing 114 elections in 39 countries to 
help establish and strengthen democracies

•  Furthering avenues to peace in Ethiopia, 
Eritrea, Nepal, Liberia, Sudan, South 
Sudan, Uganda, Mali, the Korean 
Peninsula, Haiti, Bosnia and Herzegovina, 
Syria, and the Middle East

•  Strengthening international standards for 
human rights and the voices of individuals 
defending those rights in their communities 
worldwide

•  Pioneering new public health approaches 
to preventing or controlling devastating 
neglected tropical diseases in Africa and 
Latin America, including establishing 
village-based health interventions in 
thousands of communities in Africa

•  Advancing efforts to improve mental health 
care and diminish stigma against people 
with mental illnesses in the United States 
and globally

DONATIONS
The Center received $289 million in cash, pledges, and in-kind gifts in 2021–2022. The 
Center is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization, financed by private donations from individuals, 
foundations, corporations, governments, and international development assistance agencies. 
Contributions by U.S. citizens and companies are tax-deductible as allowed by law.

STAFF
Approximately 250 employees at Atlanta headquarters and 
more than 3,000 in country offices around the world

KEY ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The Carter CenterThe Carter CenterThe Carter Center
at a glanceat a glanceat a glance
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A South Sudanese woman 
collects water for daily 
household use. The water will 
be filtered to prevent Guinea 
worm disease.

3



In the Democratic Republic of the 
Congo, Moises Ngoy (far right, 
pictured with some of his children) 
received training from The Carter 
Center that helped him and his 
neighbors negotiate with a mining 
company to provide community 
development. The Center and others 
pushed for a code change that 
requires this in communities affected 
by the lucrative mining industry.
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The Carter Center is guided by the 
principles of our founders, Jimmy 
and Rosalynn Carter. Founded, in 
partnership with Emory University, on 
a fundamental commitment to human 
rights and the alleviation of human 
suffering, the Center seeks to prevent 
and resolve conflicts, enhance freedom 
and democracy, and improve health.

The Center believes that people can improve their 
own lives when provided with the necessary skills, 
knowledge, and access to resources.

The Center emphasizes action and measurable 
results in the lives of the people it seeks to help.

The Center values the courage to break new ground, 
fill vacuums, and address the most difficult problems 
in the most difficult situations.

The Center recognizes that solving difficult problems 
requires careful analysis, relentless persistence, and 
the recognition that failure is an acceptable risk.

The Center is nonpartisan, and it seeks to work 
collaboratively with other organizations from the 
highest levels of government to local communities.
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With support from The Carter 
Center, a young member of the 
indigenous Yanomami community 
in the Amazon Rainforest receives 
drug treatment for river blindness 
multiple times a year. The region 
is the last place in the Americas 
with active disease transmission.
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from the

Of course, this year we have all found ourselves reflecting on President Carter’s legacy. 
It is a time to look back on his accomplishments, leadership, and humanity, as well as 
the remarkable partnership he and Rosalynn have shared for 77 years.

To one of us, Jimmy Carter is a great humanitarian and respected leader; to the 
other, he is also a loving grandfather and lifelong guide. To both of us, he is an 
enduring source of inspiration.

Everything The Carter Center has achieved over the past four decades is attributable 
to the vision of our founders, who hired expert staff, set the guideposts, and led with 
incredible energy and integrity for so long: fostering human rights, fighting neglected 
tropical diseases, building up democracies, mainstreaming mental health, opening 
women’s access to information, resolving conflict, and so much more.

Both personally and professionally, they have shown us how to be caring, compas-
sionate people practicing empathy and respect.

In his Nobel Peace Prize lecture, President Carter spoke of the people The Carter 
Center serves and their ability “to persevere under heartbreaking conditions.”

“I have come to admire their judgment and wisdom, their courage and faith, and their 
awesome accomplishments when given a chance to use their innate abilities,” he said.

That respect is why we only go where we are invited and why we insist that our 
partner countries retain ownership of the projects and programs we assist. Some 95% 
of the Carter Center’s 3,000 employees are not U.S. nationals.

The completion of river blindness treatment for 18.9 million Nigerians is Nigeria’s 
achievement. The elimination of Guinea worm disease in 17 endemic countries 
happened because of the diligence of people in those countries. The credit for peace in 
Colombia after a 50-year civil war goes to the factions who agreed to the truce. In each 
case, the Carter Center’s job was to assist and facilitate in the furtherance of peace, 
health, and hope.

Much remains to be done. Human rights are not universally protected. Gaps remain 
in mental health care. Guinea worm has not yet been eradicated. But Jimmy and 
Rosalynn Carter have shown us the way forward. In good faith and with grateful hearts, 
we will press ahead to accomplish even more.

Jason Carter  Paige Alexander 
Chairman Chief Executive Officer 
Board of Trustees

Jason Carter

Paige Alexander

A LEGACY TO LIVE BY

7



8



A woman navigates Guatemala City 
with her baby in tow. The Carter Center 
has been working in Guatemala to 
help women access information about 
beneficial government services.
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The Carter Center observed a U.S. election for 
the first time, deploying nonpartisan observers 
to Fulton County, Georgia, for the 2022 
midterm election and statewide for the risk-lim-
iting audit that followed. The Center also 
observed poll worker training and the testing of 
voting equipment in Arizona. In addition, the 
Center promoted the cross-partisan Candidate 
Principles for Trusted Elections, focusing on 
civil campaigns, acceptance of results, and 
other democratic norms; it was signed by 
more than 130 candidates, 78 organizations, 

and more than 2,800 individuals. The Center 
observed parliamentary elections in Tunisia that 
were characterized by low turnout and public 
disillusionment. The Center also sent expert 
teams to assess planned municipal elections in 
the Palestinian territories’ West Bank, and for 
elections in Brazil, Kenya, Colombia, and the 
Philippines. The Center continued to support 
citizen observation groups in Liberia, Myanmar, 
and the Democratic Republic of the Congo, 
and organizations working on the participatory 
rights of women and youth in Zambia.

democracy programdemocracy program

conflict resolution program
The Carter Center surveyed more than 1,000 
Sudanese youth involved in civil society organi-
zations, training 500 of them in priority areas to 
contribute to U.N.-facilitated negotiations. As 
the Independent Observer of Mali’s peace agree-
ment, the Center has facilitated dialogue among 
stakeholders, and made recommendations to 
help overcome barriers to implementation of 
the agreement. Additionally, 40,000 people in 
Mali have received access to water, maternal 
care, and surgery due to efforts to build local 
partnerships and facilitate their operations 
in the area. The Center has worked in Syria 

to outline a step-by-step approach to improve 
conditions for citizens, while also mapping 
a comprehensive data set of unexploded 
ordnance. To combat geographic fragmentation, 
the Center brought together Palestinian youth 
from across Gaza, the West Bank, and East 
Jerusalem to develop joint initiatives around a 
unified Palestinian agenda. In Arizona, Georgia, 
Florida, and North Carolina, over 1,000 
Americans collaborated in democracy resilience 
networks through organized public outreach, 
reaching an estimated 32 million Americans.

conflict resolution program
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OBSERVING AT HOME
processes, as well as operations within the Fulton 
County election offices in Atlanta.

Based on its observations, the Center believes the 
county carried out a successful and fair election. As it 
always does after an observation mission, the Center 
made a series of recommendations for improving 
processes in future Fulton County votes. These 
included improved training for election workers and 
the establishment of more polling stations during early 
voting to reduce wait times. 

After observing more than 100 elections in 39 other 
countries since 1989, The Carter Center observed 
a U.S. election for the first time in 2022. The Fulton 
County, Georgia, Board of Elections and Registrations 
and a panel of the Georgia State Election Board 
invited the Center to observe the November general 
election in the county. 

Observer training focused on polling place 
procedures, data collection methods, the roles and 
responsibilities of nonpartisan observers, and the 
observer code of conduct. The observers collected 
firsthand data on early voting and Election Day 

Connie Moon Sehat, a volunteer election 
monitor, watches polling at a Fulton County, 
Georgia, polling site on Nov. 8, 2022.
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Kukuy Bwiyi Mafi sells compost 
to support her family.

TRASH TO CASH
organizations to fund short-term projects with potential 
long-term benefits.

For this project, women collect biodegradable waste, 
such as grasses and leftover vegetable pieces, and 
feed it into machinery that breaks the material down 
into compost. “We are putting that waste back into the 
soil for more productivity,” said Marie Muzinga Tungu.

Women who participate in the project can take the 
compost home for their own gardens. Others sell it for 
family income. “The machines are helping us a lot,” 
said Kukuy Bwiyi Mafi, a widowed young mother who 
makes her living selling compost. “I can take care of 
my children.”

In the Democratic Republic of the Congo, enterprising 
women are turning household waste into a valuable 
commodity — organic fertilizer. The wider community, 
located on the outskirts of the capital, Kinshasa, is 
benefiting: the organic soil keeps chemicals out of the 
ground, provides farmers with fertilizer for their crops, 
and allows women to sell the compost for money.

With a small grant from The Carter Center, the 
Celestine Mandungu Mananasi Foundation was able 
to expand this innovative project. In the Democratic 
Republic of the Congo, one of the ways the Center 
helps empower women is by providing small grants to 
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latin america and  
caribbean focus

The Carter Center continued to host round-
tables around pressing issues such as Black 
Lives Matter, indigenous sovereignty, and the 
misuse of religion to perpetuate violence against 
women and girls. The Center engaged white 
evangelical churches and institutional leaders 
in a truth-seeking, listening, and telling project 
to move the needle on racial supremacy. The 
Center also began the India Policy initiative, 
working with U.S. policymakers and publishing 
several articles to support and strengthen the 
U.S.-India partnership. In the Democratic 
Republic of the Congo, The Carter Center 
partnered with civil society and government to 

strengthen women’s rights and representation 
in decision-making circles; improved protections 
for human rights defenders through direct 
support and policy advocacy; and equipped 
Congolese organizations to pursue government 
accountability through effective collaboration 
with international treaty bodies. Similarly, 
through extractive industries governance 
programming, the Center partnered with 
Congolese civil society to advance transparency 
and accountability in the extractive sector and 
to strengthen partners’ capacity to monitor, 
analyze, and report on mining projects, revenue 
streams, and corruption issues.

latin america and  
caribbean focus

human rights programhuman rights program

The Carter Center contributed to the ninth 
Summit of the Americas in Los Angeles with 
a discussion of democratic resilience featuring 
Chilean President Gabriel Boric. In Colombia, 
the Center undertook an expert mission for 
the presidential election. The newly elected 
Colombian government followed recommen-
dations of the mission with an electoral reform 
legislative proposal. The Carter Center also 
continued its role in monitoring the implemen-
tation of the 2016 Colombia Peace Accord. In 

Brazil, the Center undertook an expert mission 
that focused on the electronic voting system that 
had been called into question by the president 
who was running for reelection. The Center 
engaged with the international community, peer 
nongovernmental organizations and the U.S. 
government, including the Department of State, 
the National Security Council and Congress, in 
strategy discussions about crises in Nicaragua 
and Venezuela. 
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The Carter Center continued to reach millions 
of internet users in 2022 and has established 
itself as a thought leader on U.S.-China rela-
tions and Chinese public opinion. It published 
the first survey of Chinese public opinion 
about the war in Ukraine, held more than 40 
online events exploring key issues in bilateral 

relations, and published a report on the role of 
educational exchange in U.S.-China relations. 
Content published by the Center in 2022 was 
featured or cited in leading publications like 
Nature, Foreign Affairs, Foreign Policy, The 
Guardian, Bloomberg, and the South China 
Morning Post. 

rule of law program

china focus

rule of law program

china focus

The Rule of Law Program advances governance, 
builds trust, and transforms lives through 
enhanced accountability, greater transparency, 
and improved access to information and 
justice. In 2022, the Inform Women, Transform 
Lives campaign added 12 cities to its roster of 
partner communities. In total, 24 city partners 
work to increase awareness about women’s right 
to information and reach women with needed 
public services. Sustainability remains central 

to the Carter Center’s work in Bangladesh, 
Guatemala, and Liberia, where it has assisted 
local partners to address climate change, 
empower youth through social accountability, 
and broaden the reach of legal aid. Working 
with law enforcement in Costa Rica and 
Liberia, the Center helped governments reshape 
practices to increase women’s advancement in 
police services and improve civilian oversight. 
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TORTILLAS AND TRANSFORMATION
When her husband died, Ana Veraliz and her daugh-
ters were left destitute. Veraliz tried selling eggs 
and other things door to door in her Guatemala City 
neighborhood, but then “I went into a kind of depres-
sion and stopped eating,” she said. She became 
severely malnourished, and the family’s situation 
grew desperate. One day, a friend suggested Veraliz 
go to a city-run women’s center, where she received 
free counseling and medical care. Through its Inform 
Women, Transform Lives project, The Carter Center has 
partnered with Guatemala City to promote the city’s 
women’s centers. 

After receiving services, Veraliz slowly regained not 
only her body weight but also her self-respect and 
confidence, opening the door to profound change. Now 
she owns a thriving business making tortillas with her 
daughters. “I was thinking that everything’s over and 
there was nothing left,” she said. “But with the help, all 
this changed mentally. So here I am.” Since joining the 
Carter Center’s Inform Women, Transform Lives project, 
Guatemala City has seen a 200% increase in demand 
for certain services at its women’s centers. 

Ana Veraliz sells tortillas 
with her daughters in 
Guatemala City.
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Rakia Ado sits on an operating table in 
Niger with bandaged eyes after receiving 
surgery for the advanced stage of trachoma, 
a bacterial eye disease The Carter Center is 
fighting in five African countries.
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With the progress made by The Carter Center and its partners, 
these South Sudanese children may never know the suffering 
caused by Guinea worm disease. Just four cases of this 
parasitic disease were reported in South Sudan in 2021.
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Only 13 human cases of Guinea worm disease 
were reported in 2022, a 13% decline from 
the 15 cases reported in 2021, and the lowest 
annual case total since the program began. 
Chad reported six of the cases; South Sudan 
reported five; Ethiopia reported one; and 
the Central African Republic reported one. 
Reported animal infections also continue to 
decline, having fallen 66% since 2019. The 
Carter Center works with ministries of health 
to train and coordinate 30,000 volunteers in 
8,000 communities to conduct surveillance, 

health education, case containment, filter distri-
bution, and water treatments. In March 2022, 
high-level representatives of Angola, Cameroon, 
Chad, the Democratic Republic of the Congo, 
Ethiopia, Mali, South Sudan, and Sudan reaf-
firmed their commitment to accelerate progress 
by signing the Abu Dhabi Declaration on the 
Eradication of Guinea Worm Disease. Key 
commitments included enhanced advocacy for 
the provision of safe water and political leader-
ship visits to endemic communities.

The Carter Center supports the Nigerian 
Federal Ministry of Health to control 
schistosomiasis, a parasitic disease spread via 
snails in freshwater where people swim or 
conduct household chores. The disease leads 

to anemia and urogenital complications. About 
400,000 children in Nigeria received the drug 
praziquantel (donated by Merck KGaA) to 
prevent schistosomiasis via school-based treat-
ments in 2022.

guinea worm 
eradication program
guinea worm 
eradication program

schistosomiasis 
control program
schistosomiasis 
control program
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SOUTH SUDAN’S GUINEA WORM HUNTER
Makoy Samuel Yibi has visited — often on foot —  
virtually every village, town, and cattle camp in the 
vast unpaved nation of South Sudan. Determined, 
exacting, and not daunted by a long hike through 
hostile land, he runs the Ministry of Health’s Guinea 
worm program, and many consider him the “secret 
sauce” of South Sudan’s success in nearly eliminating 
the parasitic disease. 

Makoy and the ministry have worked closely with 
The Carter Center since the war-torn mid-1990s to 
combat Guinea worm disease and trachoma. He 

became director of Southern Sudan’s program in 
2006, five years before South Sudan won its inde-
pendence. Human cases of Guinea worm disease 
have fallen from 118,000 in all of Sudan (mainly in the 
South) in 1996 to just five in South Sudan in 2022, a 
reduction of 99.99%. 

He is characteristically humble about the strides 
made in the country. “This eradication campaign in 
South Sudan is not easy,” he has said. “It is only made 
possible by the really hard work of the teams on 
the ground.”

Makoy Samuel Yibi runs the 
government’s Guinea worm 
program in South Sudan.
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Cordelia Anude is one of 18.9 million 
Nigerians who no longer need to be 
treated for river blindness.

NIGERIA’S TRIUMPH
In its quest to eliminate river blindness, a parasitic 
disease that can cause unbearable itching and lead to 
permanent blindness, Nigeria is notching victories on a 
grand scale.

One prime measure of success is the number of 
people who no longer need preventive treatment. In 
December 2022, Nigeria announced it was halting 
river blindness treatment for 18.9 million people 
across four states. “The magnitude of Nigeria’s latest 
stop-treatment decision for river blindness is incred-
ible,” said Gregory S. Noland, director of the Carter 
Center’s River Blindness Elimination Program. “It is 

the largest in the history of the global campaign. For 
perspective, prior to this decision, the 16-year cumula-
tive stop-treatment total in 12 Carter Center-assisted 
countries was about 12.3 million.” 

The Carter Center has assisted Nigeria’s program 
since 1995, and in 2022 laboratories supported by the 
Center processed 52,187 black flies and 12,718 blood 
samples to show that disease transmission was no 
longer occurring. This latest accomplishment follows 
the news from 2021 that Plateau and Nasarawa 
states — with more than 5 million people — were the 
first in Nigeria to have eliminated the disease.
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river blindness 
elimination program

lymphatic filariasis 
elimination program

In 2022, The Carter Center surpassed 500 
million Mectizan® treatments (donated by 
Merck & Co, Inc., Rahway, N.J.) distributed 
to fight the parasitic disease river blindness. 
The Center also logged a record-breaking halt 
of treatments, the result of decades of work 
by ministry of health partners and affected 
communities. Areas covering over 20 million 
people met World Health Organization criteria 
for transmission interruption, including 

over a half million in Uganda, 1.3 million in 
Ethiopia, and 18.9 million in Nigeria — the 
largest stop-treatment decision in the history 
of the global campaign. In Uganda, three areas 
reached transmission elimination after success-
fully completing post-treatment surveillance, 
and another has reached suspected transmission 
interruption, meaning there are no longer any 
areas of ongoing transmission in Uganda.

river blindness 
elimination program

The Carter Center supports the ministries of 
health in Ethiopia and Nigeria to eliminate 
transmission of the debilitating parasitic 
disease lymphatic filariasis, which can cause 
severe swelling in a person’s limbs. The Center 
distributes the drugs Mectizan® (donated by 
Merck & Co., Inc.) and albendazole (donated 
by GSK) to stop transmission of the disease. 

Large portions of the two countries met World 
Health Organization criteria to stop mass drug 
administration for lymphatic filariasis in 2022: 
around 70,000 in Ethiopia and 11.6 million in 
Nigeria. With these successes, the total popu-
lation protected against the disease in Carter 
Center-assisted areas is now over 24 million.

lymphatic filariasis 
elimination program
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In 2022, The Carter Center assisted Ethiopia, 
Mali, Niger, South Sudan, and Sudan in 
providing more than 33,000 sight-saving 
eye surgeries and in distributing about 10.3 
million doses of tetracycline eye ointment 
and Zithromax,® donated by Pfizer. Most of 
these antibiotics were distributed in Ethiopia’s 
Amhara region, where 9.1 million people were 
treated. About 6.6 million people in Amhara no 
longer require treatment. In Mali, despite inse-
curity, the program completed the final surveys 
to demonstrate all districts in the country have 
achieved the required thresholds for elimi-
nating trachoma as a public health problem. 

In Niger, only 476 surgeries were performed, 
which demonstrates a declining need. In South 
Sudan, the biannual phase of the Enhancing 
the A in SAFE trial was conducted. (SAFE 
is the four-pronged approach to trachoma 
control, encompassing surgery, antibiotics, facial 
cleanliness, and environmental improvement.) 
This study, funded by the Bill & Melinda Gates 
Foundation, assesses the feasibility, cost, and 
community acceptance of more frequent than 
annual mass drug administration. In Sudan, 
four impact surveys were conducted in three 
states, indicating an 89% reduction of trachoma 
prevalence in several North Darfur areas.

The Carter Center’s Hispaniola Initiative works 
with the ministries of health in Haiti and the 
Dominican Republic to eliminate malaria and 
lymphatic filariasis from the countries’ shared 
island. In March 2022, the Pan American 
Health Organization officially approved the 
halt of mass drug administration for lymphatic 
filariasis in a subdistrict of Léogâne, Haiti, 
benefiting about 37,000 people. The Carter 

Center also launched a confirmatory elimina-
tion mapping survey for lymphatic filariasis 
in the Dominican Republic. Provisionally, 
13,318 cases of malaria were reported in 2022 
in Hispaniola — 12,983 in Haiti and 335 in the 
Dominican Republic. This change represents a 
21.6% increase in cases compared to 2021.

trachoma control program

hispaniola initiative

trachoma control program

hispaniola initiative
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FROM SCHOOLS TO COMMUNITIES
At a large, bustling school in Gondar province in 
Ethiopia’s Amhara region, energetic children eagerly 
line up to do something that in other contexts seems 
mundane: thoroughly wash their faces. What the 
pupils have learned, through training supported by 
The Carter Center, is that a clean face means much 
more than a nice appearance. It helps keep them 
free of trachoma, a potentially blinding infectious 
eye disease. 

Keeping faces washed is part of a four-pronged 
approach for trachoma control, endorsed by the 

World Health Organization. The SAFE strategy 
includes surgery for advanced cases, antibiotics to 
halt infection, facial cleanliness to keep away the 
flies that transmit the disease, and environmental 
improvement, which entails building latrines to control 
fly populations. 

The take-home message for the students: Flies are 
attracted to dirty faces; clean faces keep the flies 
away. The schoolchildren can take this message home 
to their parents and relatives, spreading healthy prac-
tices throughout communities and across generations. 

With instruction from their 
teacher, schoolchildren 
in Ethiopia learn how a 
clean face helps to prevent 
trachoma, an eye disease.
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Lela Precious Dolo was named 
a Mental Health Champion  
by The Carter Center. 

A STUDENT’S PASSION: BETTER HEALTH IN LIBERIA
The loss of her brother to a treatable infection drives 
23-year-old Lela Precious Dolo. A medical student in 
Monrovia, Liberia, Dolo is a co-creator and manager 
of a project called Help a Mother and New-born 
in Liberia, which seeks to reduce maternal and 
infant mortality by providing training, awareness, 
and resources for health facility staff, traditional 
midwives, women, and adolescents in Liberia’s Margibi 
County. Dolo has studied and worked in Ghana and 
Switzerland in addition to Liberia. 

In 2022, The Carter Center named Dolo one of nine 
Mental Health Champions, a new initiative in which 
Liberians are educated about the national mental 
health care burden, how to advocate for better poli-
cies, and available interventions and treatments. The 
initiative follows more than a decade of collaboration 
between The Carter Center and the government of 
Liberia — collaborating to elevate mental health as 
a national priority, decrease stigma, and increase 
access to services.
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public health 
training initiative

mental health program
The Carter Center combines the power of 
accurate and effective mental health reporting 
with the Center’s expertise in advancing 
evidence-based public policy. In February 2022, 
The Carter Center launched the Mental Health 
Parity Newsroom Collaborative in partnership 
with newsrooms in six states, the Center for 
Public Integrity, and the Shorenstein Center on 
Media, Politics and Public Policy. This partner-
ship led to increased reporting about inequities 
in mental health care, which will help advocacy 
organizations galvanize stakeholders and build 
coalitions to push for legislation that requires 

insurance companies to cover mental health in 
the same way as physical health. Under a school-
based behavioral health initiative in Georgia, 
staff developed tools needed by communities, 
including a brief on prevention programming 
for communities and philanthropy. The Carter 
Center formed a collaborative to monitor the 
implementation of the Georgia Mental Health 
Parity Act, focusing on the payment of youth 
services. The Center elevated its leadership in 
global behavioral health system strengthening, 
securing funding for innovative and integrated 
health system interventions. 

Since 2014, The Carter Center has partnered 
with the government of Sudan on the Sudan 
Public Health Training Initiative. The initiative 
supports medical institutions by increasing the 
number of well-trained health workers who 
can meet the maternal and child health needs 
of communities throughout Sudan. Through 
the initiative, state-run health science training 
institutions, nursing schools, midwifery schools, 
and health extension programs received new 
laboratory equipment, textbooks, computers, 
classroom materials, and curricula to enhance 
the teaching and learning environment of both 

the faculty and the professionals training to 
work directly with women and children. The 
Carter Center transferred full leadership of 
the program to Sudan’s Ministry of Health 
in December 2022. Since its inception, the 
initiative has trained over 1,000 health sciences 
faculty and distributed 10,000 learning 
materials, including information technology, 
laboratory equipment, and reference books. It 
also provided updated curricula for community 
health workers, midwives, medical assistants, 
anesthesia assistants, operation theater scrubs, 
and public health environmental officers. 

public health 
training initiative

mental health program
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In Mopti, Mali, a child, woman, and 
man travel by motorbike. The Carter 
Center has served as the Independent 
Observer of Mali’s peace agreement 
since 2018.
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As a not-for-profit organization, The Carter Center can 
realize its mission only through generous support from indi-
viduals, foundations, corporations, and governments. Some 
107,334 donors contributed $289 million in cash, pledges, 
and in-kind gifts in 2021–2022 to the Center’s peace and 
health programs.

The Carter Center has a longstanding history of fighting 
disease and waging peace around the world. Today, the 
Center works in unstable areas in Sudan to address 
peace and health issues in tandem, conducting research, 
convening stakeholders, and overseeing programming to 
simultaneously fight disease and support sustainable peace. 
In 2022, the Center partnered with the United Nations 
Peacebuilding Fund to start the Youth Citizen Observer 
Network across Sudan. The Reaching the Last Mile Fund, 
housed within The END Fund, provided critical support 
for expanded river blindness and lymphatic filariasis 
intervention efforts in the country, including efforts to 
facilitate exchanges between factions and the government 
of Sudan to gain access to insecure, endemic areas. The 
LUI Che Woo Prize Limited supplied one-time support for 
the Sudan Public Health Training Initiative’s transition to 
the Sudanese Ministry of Health. Peacekeeping and global 
health are inextricably entwined, and The Carter Center is 
grateful to our partners assisting with our peace and health 
work in Sudan.

In addition to its cross-programmatic work in Sudan, the 
Center’s emerging strategic plan places an emphasis on new 
initiatives across the peace and health programs. The Carter 
Center has begun integrating health systems strengthening 

activities into its current programming to address neglected 
tropical diseases, improve mental health, and increase 
and support the health workforce. With funding from 
the Skoll Foundation, the Center worked to strengthen 
the government of Pakistan’s health systems through the 
reorganization of its National Institute of Health, the estab-
lishment of a board of governors to oversee the institute, 
and the creation of additional centers for disease control 
and health.

As part of another strategic growth initiative, the 
Center is addressing digital threats to democracy, including 
monitoring disinformation, hate speech, and related online 
activities intended to suppress political participation or 
undermine confidence in the electoral process. The Carter 
Center is partnering with Meta (formerly Facebook, Inc.) 
to improve and further integrate online information moni-
toring activities into its election observation missions and 
its local partners’ missions. The Center is grateful to its 
many partners for their ongoing and critical support.

“We met in 1979 in Washington, D.C., while working 
for the Carter administration,” said Kathleen and Paul 
Johnson of Seattle, Washington, members of the Center’s 
Ambassadors Circle and Legacy Circle. “The core principles 
that mean the most to us — human rights, peace, racial 
equity, and justice — were backed by the Carter administra-
tion and continue to be championed through The Carter 
Center today. We are pleased and proud to financially 
support The Carter Center. Our investment makes us feel 
happy for what we can accomplish with like-minded people 
now, and a bit more hopeful for the future.”

ABOUT OUR DONORSABOUT OUR DONORS

Sources of Support 
Fiscal Year 2021–2022

Total Expenses 
Fiscal Year 2021–2022

Administration
Fundraising

4%
4%

Programs

92%

Governments 
(U.S. and 
Foreign)

Individuals

Foundations

5%

12%

10%

Other

4%

Corporations 
(includes 

in-kind gifts)

69%
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Some 76 volunteers in the Atlanta 

area donated 4,300 hours of service in 

FY 2022. Their energy and devotion help the 

Center achieve much more with the resources 

it receives from its financial contributors. We 

thank these volunteers for their support.

VOLUNTEERS
The Carter Center appreciates the support of 
its many donors. Although we are able to list 
only those gifts that totaled $1,000 or more from 
Sept. 1, 2021, through Aug. 31, 2022, we are 
grateful for each gift that helps to support the 
vital work of The Carter Center. Every effort has 
been made for accuracy. Should there be any 
omission or error, we apologize and ask that it 
be brought to our attention.

A NOTE TO DONORS

A Haitian boy takes 
medication to prevent 
the parasitic disease 
lymphatic filariasis.
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Anonymous (11)

AFLAC International Japan

Mr. and Mrs. Gaby A. Ajram

Al Ansari Exchange

Khalaf Ahmad Al Habtoor 
Foundation

Ambassador and 
Mrs. Philip H. Alston Jr.

Alwaleed Philanthropies

Estate of Esther M. Ando

The Annenberg Foundation

Arab Fund for Economic and 
Social Development

Lord and Lady Michael A. 
Ashcroft

AT&T

Estate of Marjorie K. Balazs

BASF Corporation

Mr. and Mrs. Russell L. Beckstead

Kingdom of Belgium

The Arthur M. Blank 
Family Foundation

Ms. Diana Blank

Mr. Richard C. Blum and 
The Honorable Dianne Feinstein

Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence J. Brown

The Howard G. Buffett 
Foundation

Mr. Warren E. Buffett

Mr. Ronald W. Burkle

CAF – Development Bank of 
Latin America

Callaway Foundation

Government of Canada

Margaret A. Cargill Foundation

Carnegie Corporation of 
New York

The Honorable Jimmy Carter and 
Rosalynn Carter

The Jimmy Carter Inaugural Trust

The Annie E. Casey Foundation

CDC Foundation

Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention

The Children’s Investment Fund 
Foundation UK

Clarke Cares Foundation/Clarke 
Mosquito Control

The Coca-Cola Company

The Coca-Cola Foundation

Ms. Caroline Cooley Browne

Cox Interests

Crabby Beach Foundation

Mrs. Dominique de Menil

Mr. Michael G. DeGroote

Delta Air Lines

The Delta Air Lines Foundation

Government of Denmark

Mr. Dermot Desmond

Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter

The William H. Donner 
Foundation

Du Pont

Estate of Mark Eisner Jr.

The Elfenworks Foundation

The END Fund

The Charles Engelhard 
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke

Engelke Family Foundation

Environmental Systems 
Research Institute

European Union

Mr. Frederick J. Eychaner

Mr. Stefan Findel and Ms. Susan 
Cummings-Findel

The Ford Foundation

Foreign, Commonwealth 
& Development Office, 
United Kingdom

Mr. Paul Francis and 
Ms. Titia Hulst

The Franklin Mint and 
Diana, Princess of Wales 
Memorial Fund

Freedom House

Mr. and Mrs. J. B. Fuqua

Mr. and Mrs. David H. Gambrell

David Gambrell Endowment Fund

Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

Georgia Power Company

Georgia Power Foundation

The Federal Republic of Germany

Ms. Joanne G. Gimbel

Global Affairs Canada

Global Health Council/ 
Gates Award for Global Health

Google.org

GSK

Estate of Claus Halle

Dr. Sidney Harman and 
The Honorable Jane 
Frank Harman

William Randolph Hearst 
Foundation

Mr. Christopher Hemmeter and 
Mrs. Patsy Hemmeter Epp

The William and Flora 
Hewlett Foundation

Conrad N. Hilton Foundation

James and Anna Hoag Fund

The Home Depot

Mr. and Mrs. Chris Hughes

John C. and Karyl Kay 
Hughes Foundation

Humanity United

Mr. and Mrs. Mark R. Humphrey

with cumulative lifetime giving 
of $1 million or more
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Dr. John P. Hussman and 
Mrs. Terri Hussman

The John P. Hussman Foundation

Estate of Frances and 
Arthur Hyde

IBM Corporation

Inter-American 
Development Bank

International Research & 
Exchanges Board

Government of Ireland/Irish Aid

ITOCHU Corporation

IZUMI Foundation

Government of Japan/Japan  
Social Development Fund

Johnson & Johnson

The Robert Wood 
Johnson Foundation

Estate of Lee and Harold 
Kapelovitz

W. K. Kellogg Foundation

The Kendeda Fund

Mr. and Mrs. Joe E. Kiani

The Thomas M. Kirbo and 
Irene B. Kirbo Charitable Trust

Mrs. Joan B. Kroc

Kuwait Fund for Arab Economic 
Development

Dr. Anne P. Lanier

LifeStraw

Lions Clubs International 
Foundation

Estate of Dr. Willa Dean Lowery

LUI Che Woo Prize Limited

The John D. and Catherine T. 
MacArthur Foundation

Estate of Robert Marsh

Masimo Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Henry K. McConnon

Merck & Co., Inc., Kenilworth, 
N.J. USA

The P. D. Merrill Charitable Trust

Mr. John J. Moores Sr.

Rebecca B. Moores

Estate of Peter A. Morgan

The Charles Stewart Mott 
Foundation

His Highness General Sheikh 
Mohamed bin Zayed Al Nahyan, 
Crown Prince of Abu Dhabi, in 
honor of His Highness Sheikh 
Khalifa bin Zayed, the President 
of the UAE

His Highness Sheikh Mohamed 
bin Zayed Al Nahyan, Crown 
Prince of Abu Dhabi

Government of The Netherlands

Newpeak Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. John D. Nichols Jr.

Government of Nigeria

The Nippon Foundation

Nippon Keidanren

Noor Dubai Foundation

Government of Norway

Mr. Steven E. Nothern

Sir Emeka Offor Foundation

The Sultanate of Oman

Mr. and Mrs. Pierre Omidyar

The OPEC Fund for International 
Development

Open Society Foundations

Palantir Technologies

Pfizer Inc

Precision Fabrics Group

Francis I. Proctor Foundation

His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin 
Said Al Said

Qatar Fund for Development

Mr. John W. Rendon Jr. and 
Ms. Sandra L. Libby

River Blindness Foundation

The Rockefeller Foundation

Ms. Alice Rogoff

The O. Wayne Rollins Foundation

Mr. Gerald A. Rosenthal

Mr. David M. Rubenstein

Mrs. Deen Day Sanders

The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Bakr M. BinLadin for the 
Saudi BinLadin Group

The Saudi Fund for Development

Mr. and Mrs. John Schreiber

Mr. Hugo X. Shong/IDG 
Capital Partners

Walter H. and Phyllis J. 
Shorenstein Foundation

Sightsavers

The Skoll Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay

Carlos Slim Foundation

Ms. Cherida C. Smith

Southern Company

Estate of Rex and Nancy Spivey

Stanard Family Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard

Mr. and Mrs. Theodore R. Stanley

The Starr Foundation

Stephens Inc.

Government of the Republic 
of Sudan

Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Sullivan

Government of Sweden/Swedish 
International Development 
Cooperation Agency (SIDA)

Government of Switzerland

The Task Force for Global Health

The Task Force for Global Health, 
Coalition for Operational 
Research on Neglected Tropical 
Diseases (COR-NTD)

Turner Foundation

Government of The United 
Arab Emirates

United Nations Children’s Fund 
(UNICEF)

United Nations Development 
Programme

United Nations High 
Commissioner for Refugees

United Nations Multidimensional 
Integrated Stabilization 
Mission in Mali

United States Agency for 
International Development 
(USAID)

United States Department of State

The UPS Foundation

The U.S.-Middle East Partnership 
Initiative

Walton Family Foundation

Mr. Holland M. Ware

Warren Living Trust

Estate of Grace Westcott

Joseph B. Whitehead Foundation

The Willow Springs Foundation

Robert W. Woodruff Foundation

The World Bank

World Health Organization

Estate of Goldie Woserau

Wyeth

Dr. Ellen H. Yankellow and 
Mr. William E. Chapman

YKK Corporation

Mr. Tadahiro Yoshida
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$100,000+ 
Anonymous (13)
Alwaleed Philanthropies
Estate of Esther M. Ando
Government of Kingdom of 

Belgium
Estate of Sidney B. Casey
The Children’s Investment Fund 

Foundation UK
The Coca-Cola Foundation
Ms. Caroline Cooley Browne
Crabby Beach Foundation
Crown Agents
Estate of Georgeann Cucich
Estate of Alan Derthick
The William H. Donner 

Foundation
Electoral Institute for Sustainable 

Democracy in Africa
The ELMA Foundation
ELMA Philanthropies Services 

(U.S.) 
The END Fund
Facebook
Mr. Stefan Findel and  

Ms. Susan Cummings-Findel
The Ford Foundation
Foreign, Commonwealth, and 

Development Office
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation
Government of Germany
Mr. Robert L. Glass
Global Affairs Canada
Global Institute for Disease 

Elimination
William Randolph Hearst 

Foundation
Conrad N. Hilton Foundation
The John P. Hussman 

Foundation
Dr. John P. Hussman and  

Mrs. Terri Hussman
IZUMI Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Joe E. Kiani
LifeStraw
Lions Clubs International 

Foundation
Estate of Willa Dean Lowery
LUI Che Woo Prize Limited
Estate of Robert Marsh
Merck & Co., Inc.
Noor Dubai Foundation
Open Society Foundations
Francis I. Proctor Foundation
Rauch Family Foundation
Rock Paper Scissors Foundation
Rockefeller Philanthropy Advisors
RTI International
Skoll Foundation
Mr. Jeffrey S. Skoll

Open Society Foundations
Swedish International 

Development Cooperation 
Agency

Government of Switzerland
Estate of Edward Tarte
U.S. Agency for International 

Development
United Nations Peacebuilding 

Fund
United States Department of 

State
Estate of Caroline Wheeler
Estate of Hilda White
Estate of Dianne Wiley
YKK Corporation of America

$50,000–$99,999 
Anonymous (2)
Abbott
Mrs. Joyce M. Anderson
Estate of Patrick Banchy
BASF Corporation
China-United States Exchange 

Foundation
Ms. Leanne Dahlin
Mr. Jeffrey A. Dean and  

Ms. Heidi Hopper
FHI 360
Fund for Global Human Rights
J. B. Fuqua Foundation 
Gabriel Lewis Galindo 

Foundation
Estate of Geoffrey A. Gardiner
George Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. William W. George
Georgia Department of Human 

Services
Grand Challenges Canada
Abigail E. Disney and Pierre N. 

Hauser
Estate of Theresa A. Wood Lavine
Estate of Hilda and  

Ralph Mansfield
Masimo Foundation
Moore Philanthropy
Mr. Stanley Motta
Government of The Netherlands
Mr. Craig Newmark
Craig Newmark Philanthropies
Northern Trust Company
Mr. John W. Rendon Jr. and  

Ms. Sandra L. Libby
Mr. Hugo X. Shong/IDG  

Capital Partners
Estate of Rex and Nancy Spivey
Estate of Beverly J. Stone
The Task Force for Global Health
Mr. C. H. Tung
Ms. Nina Weissberg

Brenda and Wade Woodson
World Health Organization

$25,000–$49,999
Anonymous (1)
Estate of Caroline Adams
Mr. Terrence Adamson and  

Ms. Edith Holiday
Estate of Mary Bennett
Casey Family Programs
Chemonics International
Clarke Mosquito Control
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Curb
Emory University
GA Dept of Behavioral Health 

and Developmental Disabilities
Estate of Violet Haelterman
Estate of Kenneth Harstad
D. Jared Family Fund
Ms. Sherry Lansing
Estate of Harold and  

Mary Leonard
Grace Ezell Marquez Charitable 

Remainder Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. 

McCarthy
One Earth Future Foundation 
The P Twenty-One Foundation
Estate of Gabrielle Pound
Estate of James W. Reagan
Estate of Donetta Reese
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph W. Ryan
Sightsavers
Estate of Clara E. Staunton
Estate of Mary R. Tarpley
Estate of Rita Thomas
Mr. Richard Thweatt
UCB, Inc.
UPR Info
The David, Helen and  

Marian Woodward Fund

$10,000–$24,999
Anonymous (2)
Estate of John F. Ahearne
Mr. S. Decker Anstrom and  

Ms. Sherron L. Hiemstra
Auction Donations
Benson Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert S. Benson
Estate of Eleanor Brightman
Estate of James D. Calaway
Mr. Simon F. Capper
CareSource Management Services 
Natembea Foundation
Ms. Catherine P. Cole
Estate of JoAnn Corey
Estate of James D. Crawford
Estate of Patricia Cummings

DONORS 2021–2022DONORS 2021–2022
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Estate of Harold Dunlap
The Elfenworks Foundation
The Fourth Freedom Forum
Mr. Gregory J. Gerhard
Ms. Mary B. Gooding
Estate of Jule Grant
Estate of Kay Hamner
Estate of Richard A. Hudson
Humana Healthy Horizons
The Hunter-White Foundation
Interchurch Medical Assistance 

d/b/a IMA World Health
Estate of Natalie G. Jones
Ms. Nana K. Kendall
Mr. Jayant Sadashiv Khadilkar 

and Ms. Manjushree R. Karkare
Magellan Healthcare
Stuart Mannon, M.D.
The James and Helen McCaffery 

Charitable Trust
Ms. Donna McCarthy-Jensen
Estate of Fred and Jeanne Meuser
Estate of John T. Oliver
Estate of John Edward Orr
Mrs. Nan Powell
Estate of James L. Rhinesmith
SoapBox Soaps
Teng Yue Partners
Tietz Family Foundation
Mr. Mark Tietz and  

Ms. Diana Madison
UNESCO
The UPS Foundation
Estate of Dorothy and Sam Way
Estate of Lynn Witmer

$5,000–$9,999
Anonymous (1)
Ms. Priscilla J. Angelo
Jane C. Artz & Frederick J.  

Artz Fund
The AtLee Family Foundation
Mrs. Patricia K. AtLee
Dr. Alfred L. Baker
Mr. Jay Beck
Big Win Philanthropy
Estate of Lillian C. Brilhart
Ms. Grace L. Chu
Ms. Eileen Docekal
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. Drezek Jr.
Estate of Maureen R. Frechette
Estate of Margaret H. George
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Grose
Estate of Idris Halim
Estate of Dorothy W. Lavine
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Linnell
Estate of Barbara Ann McCauley
Mr. Gary McGuire
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Moores

Mr. William S. Oyster
The Ozma Fund
Estate of Joseph Padula
The Domenico Paulon 

Foundation
Ms. Sara M. Putzell
Mr. Taufiq Rahim
Estate of Robert L. Rathbun
The Rendon Group
Estate of Dr. Joseph Schatanoff
Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
Estate of Mary P. Sundheimer
The Turnbull Family Trust
Mr. Bruce Wahle
Yoshida Scholarship Foundation

$1,000–$4,999 
Anonymous (1)
Ms. Janet Abbate 
Ginny and Greg Aitkens
A. D. and S. H. Albright
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Allen
Yoshiko and Takeshi Amemiya
The American Chestnut 

Foundation
Ms. Jackie G. Anders 
Estate of Betty Jo Anderson
Mr. Richard J. Angelo
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. 

Armstrong
Mr. and Mrs. Marjolijn 

Avelallemant
Mr. Abdulla Badsha 
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory P. Barclay

Mr. Jeff P. Barnes 
Judith Barton 
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Baugh
Ms. Mary W. Beazley
Vera Becklake 
Ms. Rosalind Bedell 
Lawrence Benefield 
Ms. Teresa Snodgrass Bennett 
Mr. John Benson 
Margaret C. and Charles Bergman
Ms. Georgia A. Biesterveld 
Mr. Walter E. Bird 
Dr. Joyce M. Bisso 
Ms. Kathryn Blatt 
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Ms. Emily P. Boddy
Mr. Adam C. Boese 
Carol A. Born 
Mr. Ronald W. Boudreaux 
Mr. James P. Bourgeois
Mr. Raymond R. Brandt 
Donna Braun 
Mr. Richard K. Brautigam 
Ms. Donna J. Brian 
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Bright
Mr. and Mrs. Harry J. Brown
Mr. Stanley Brown 
Ms. Kathy Bruneske 
Cecelia E. Bryant 
Ms. Rene S. Buchanan 
David Burggraff and Robbie 

Rubly-Burggraff
Mr. Jonathan Busch

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Philip 
Cagney

Kenneth L. Campbell 
Lynn and Joe Candaux
Mr. James E. Cantrell 
Mr. Gerow M. Carlson 
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Carney
Mr. Warren Robert Carr 
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Carrier
Ms. Mary E. Carter 
Mr. Raymond Catani 
Donald John Ceppi Estate
Mr. Edwin A. Cesta 
Veena and Sushil Chadda
Daphne Lin Chang 
Mr. and Mrs. Gary A. Charles
PC Charles 
Ms. Marva J. Cheek-Gettis 
China Research Center
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Cladel
J. Lyell Clarke, Ph.D.
Mr. Thomas Clower Jr.
Rebecca and Rallie Cogburn
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Coldwell
Ms. Nancy F. Collier 
Ms. Kathleen E. Collins 
Colorado Episcopal Foundation
Joseph E. Coon 
Mr. and Mrs. Troy H. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Conroy
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Corbin
Mr. Henry Cote
Ms. Nancy W. Craig
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Cramer

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2021 – Aug. 31, 2022.

Journalism student Maryam 
Al-Badr attends the annual 
meeting for the Rosalynn 
Carter Journalism Fellowships, 
held at The Carter Center.
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David R. and Jody Crawford
Chaplain (Lt. Col.) Tammie E. 

Crews
Mr. Steven W. Cunningham 
Ms. Mary E. Cupp 
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert Curry Jr. 
Drs. Scott and Elizabeth  

Kay Danielson
Mr. and Mrs. R. Donald  

Dartnall Sr.
Ms. Marjorie L. Davidson
Ms. Catherine Del Tito 
Mr. Michael J. Demeter 
Ms. Noreen Dempsey 
Ms. Janet M. Derber 
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel P. Derr
Mrs. Iris J. Desmarteau 
Dezhu Investment 
Mr. J. Robert Dieter 
Mr. John Dismukes 
Mr. Dave Doody 
Estate of Regina E. Dougherty
Mrs. Vickie Douglas 
Downtown Investors
Mr. and Mrs. Toby Drake
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Dubord
Dr. Kathleen M. Duerksen and 

Mr. Kevin M. Finnegan

Mr. Brian Duffy 
Joyce P. Duncan 
Anne T. Durkin 
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Dye
Ms. Sharon Easterling 
Thomas A. Ebert 
Jean M. Eccleston 
Mr. Ronald D. Eckoff 
Ms. Carol Edwards 
Mr. C. James Elliott 
Mr. John R. Elliott 
Ms. Karen Ellsworth 
Mr. Gregory N. Eppler
Ms. Barbara J. Ericson 
Ms. Julie A. Esser 
Thomas P. Evans 
Estate of Shirley L. Evenitsky
Mr. Patrick R. Falkner 
Ernest R. and Noreene B. Farwell
The Sharon Fecteau Trust
Ms. Susan Fields 
Mr. David R. Finch 
Ms. Kate Fitzgerald 
Sherry D. Fleming 
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Fong
Ms. Helen Fosgate 
Mr. and Mrs. David Fox

Mr. James E. Fox 
Mr. Gilbert G. French and  

Mr. Gary B. Doudna
Mr. Mark E. Fried 
Mr. Robert E. Friedman
Alberta L. Frye 
Fundación Haciendo Ecuador
Dr. Larry W. Gahan 
Virginia W. Gale 
Mr. and Mrs. Ron C. Garrison
Mr. Stanley K. Gassaway 
Mr. Stephen Gelardi 
Marilyn R. Geninatti 
Sarah MacKenzie Gibbons 
Mr. Roger W. Gies
Ms. Janna Gilbert 
Ms. Gertrude S. Gildea 
Mrs. Ann P. Glass and  

Dr. Jeffrey Glass
Francoise R. Gooding 
Google
Ms. Sandra Goolden and  

Mr. Jim Walker
Ms. Adeline Graber 
Amanda Graham 
Laura C. Grant 
Ms. Linda L. Graul

Judith Peace Greenberg 
Estate of John H. Griffith
Charles J. and Louann 

Gunderson
Mr. and Mrs. Leland G. Haefner
Mr. and Mrs. James Brian 

Haering
John B. Hamerslough 
Mr. John N. Hamiel 
Art Hamilton Group 
Charl L. Hardesty 
Estate of Lucile M. Harford
Mr. Kevin M. Harrington 
Lenae D. Harris 
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald P. Hart
Ms. Elizabeth A. Harvey 
Michelle and Ron Hawes
Ms. Julia Ann Hayes 
Mr. John W. Head 
Mr. Allan Helminiak 
Ms. Joan A. Hembree 
Sharon M. Henderson 
Ms. and Mr. Rachel Hepler
Mr. and Mrs. Robert R. Heritsch
Mr. Stephen C. Hicks 
Estate of Donna Bel Hillyer
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Hirdes
Mr. Edward C. House 
Mr. Todd Howland and  

Ms. Adela Carrasco
Estate of Elizabeth B. Hubbard
Ms. Charlotte Huefner 
Mr. James M. Huffman 
Ms. Kathy Hughes 
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Hunt
Marissa A. and James Huttinger
Dr. Donna R. Jackson
Mrs. Narvella Jackson 
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Jennes
Jane Jenny 
Estate of Gertude Jockusch
Mr. and Mrs. James Johns
Ms. Linda Johnson 
Dawn L. Johnson 
Ms. Madeleine Jordache 
Rev. and Mr. Paula K. Judy
Kerstin Kaiser 
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Kates
Frank Kavanaugh Jr.
Mr. Raymond J. Keating 
Hale and Andrea Kell
Mr. William S. Kenney Jr.
Mr. Earl Edward Keyser 
Ms. Kathleen E. King
Ms. Valerie King-Ernst 
Mr. and Mrs. Leroy M. Kingman
Mr. David Kirk 
Mr. Barry W. Kissane 

A mural in Atlanta publicizes the 
city’s 311 phone number, which 
provides access to nonemergency 
city services. Atlanta is a partner 
of the Center’s Inform Women, 
Transform Lives campaign.
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Mr. and Mrs. Matthew J. Klaben
Mr. Andrew D. Kligerman 
Mrs. Thomas S. Knight Jr.
Ms. Deborah A. Koolish 
Ms. Annie K. Koshi 
Ms. Lillian Kraemer 
Ms. Ursula Krause 
Jane Kristof 
Kyle Krohn 
Mr. and Mrs. Jacob Kuruvilla
Mrs. Helen E. Kutschbach 
Steve and Liska Lackey
Matthew J. Lawonn 
Alonzo W. Lawrence 
Mr. Jerome Lawrence
Ms. Nancy Jo Leachman
Mrs. Gloria Vega Lee 
Carolyn Lee 
Mr. John E. Legg 
Mr. Paul B. Leksen 
Mr. Kevin Lenahan 
Mr. Mark D. Linsz 
Ms. Sharon Liu 
Ms. Helen S. London
Mr. Joseph Loporcaro 
Mr. Joseph Ellis Loyd 
Ms. Regina A. Luffey 
The Edith MacGuire  

Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. John MacKey
Mr. and Mrs. David Maharry
Mr. Philip Mahoney 
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Mahony
Durga Mallampalli 
Ms. Peggy Maloney 
Sylvia R. and Peter Mann
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Mantz
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Marlowe
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Martin
Dr. William H. Martin III
Mr. John J. Martin 
Ava Martin 
Michele Martin 
Dr. and Mrs. Fariborz Maseeh
Ms. Mary Anne Massey 
Ms. Cynthia P. McCaughan 
Mr. and Mrs. Ward W. 

McCaughey
Ms. Creel C. McCormack
Janet J. McCrae 
Mr. Michael E. McGoldrick
Larry McIntire 
Miss Helen R. McShane 
Mrs. Bonnie McVeigh 
Melissa and Bob McWhirter
Ms. Emilia Gay Griffith Means
Mr. Wade I. Melton 
Ms. Sharon L. Metcalf

Ms. Susan L. Micona 
Ms. Brenda Milum 
Ms. Nancy A. Mirto 
Mr. Yaqub Mirza 
John Mix 
Donald E. Mize Jr.
Brian Mock 
Mr. Thomas J. Moffett 
Ms. Barbara Montague and  

Mr. Eric Zobel
Dr. Lupe Y. Morales 
The J.P. Morgan Chase 

Foundation
Evelyn and John Morrison 

Charitable Foundation
Bobbie L. Morris 
Mr. John L. Morrison
Naoko Y. Murphy 
Mr. and Mrs. Paul S. Nagata
Mr. and Mrs. Mikhail E. 

Nasrallah
National College of Ireland
Rev. Thomas Nellis 
Mr. and Mrs. David Nicol
Dr. and Mrs. William Nuessle
Dr. Mark E. Ohl 
Ms. Mary S. Okocha 
Ricky Oliver 
Estate of Kristi Karol Olson
Ms. Carol J. Olwell
Mr. Robert B. O’Rourke 
Estate of Robert Deane O’Rourke
Mr. Michael C. Orth 
Ms. Christina Pappas and  

Mr. Eric Alstad
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond  

David Patch
Nathan and Marika Patterson
Mr. and Mrs. James Patton
Estate of Shirley M. Patzke
Barbara Pemp 
Ms. Carol J. Pennock 
Burnell E. Peterson and  

Ann Carlander
Anne and Dave Peterson
Sara J. Petty and John George
Ms. Ana O. Phang
Rev. Ezra A. Pickup Jr.
Estate of Anders S. Platou
Mrs. Diane M. Pomeroy 
Mr. Andrew Pratt
Ms. Madeline S. Pratt 
Mr. Daniel Rick Preston
Mrs. Elaine K. Probasco 
Ms. Paula Proppe 
Mr. and Mrs. Allen Purkiss
Ms. Nancy Carol Ramsey 
Donald L. Rankin 
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Raschke

Mr. and Mrs. Gautham Reddy
Cecili Reid 
Joann Reinsel 
Ms. Linda L. Reusmann
Charley Rhoads 
Dr. and Mrs. Frank O.  

Richards Jr.
Mrs. Alice E. Richardson 
Ms. Judith A. Richardson 
Mr. David A. Rieck 
Mr. Steven Riedhauser 
James F. Riley 
Ms. Patricia N. Robbins 
Scott Roberts and Sarah Ormond
Dr. Douglas L. T. Rohde and  

Dr. Christine Hsu Rohde
Dr. Richard G. Rolfes 
Mr. Warren A. Romaine
Mrs. Phyllis A. Rosenblum 
Mr. Francis M. Rotella and  

Ms. Vivian Gin
Mr. and Mrs. Howard  

Rowlson-Hall
Mr. Stephen Russo 
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Salvatore
Mr. Albertino Santos 
Maureen Saul 
Ms. Janice Schable 
Mrs. Orpha M. Schertz 
Ms. Anne S. Schiffiano 
Libbie A. Schock 
Mr. Herbert L. Schreiber
Ms. Kelly F. Schulter
Mr. Richard Scott 
Ms. Beth M. Search 
John Wesley and Jill Sebaugh
Mr. and Mrs. Reginald A. Sewell
Mr. Brad Shafran
Dr. Jason W. Sheedy
Mr. Michael Sheehan 
Mr. Robert Sherlock 
Patricia L. Shipley 
Robert L. Shipley 
Bill Shults 
Mr. Richard A. Simpson 
James Simpson 
Ms. Barbara Fulmore Singleton 
Deanette Sisson 
Beverly Skeffington 
Ms. Annette C. Skellenger 
Mr. Jerry W. Skidmore
Sarah Slagle-Garrett and  

Chris Garrett
Christine Slavin 
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis W. Small
Mr. and Mrs. David Smith
Mr. and Ms. Branden N. Smith
Estate of Forrest K. Smith
Mr. D. Neil Snarr

Mr. and Mrs. David J. Snider
Ms. Jane Harrold Sorensen 
Carolyn J. Sorensen 
Ms. Lola D. Sorrells 
Ms. Lana Grace Spraker 
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Steege
Dr. and Mrs. David Steffens
Mr. Sam R. Stephens 
Mr. Trasbin Lee Stoner II
Mr. and Mrs. Keith G. Striggow
Estate of Linda Strong
Helen Sullinger 
Mr. James Eric Summers
Mr. John W. Swinney 
Dr. and Mrs. Marc F. 

Swiontkowski
Tara and Dan Tamburello
Estate of Edward Tanner
Mr. Robert Tardiff 
Janice Tarrant 
Mr. William Tausig 
Mr. David V. N. Taylor
David V. N. Taylor Foundation
Estate of Paula Terry
Mr. Ernie Thompson 
Ms. Lisa T. Thomson
George Allen Tindol Jr.
Mr. James Titkemeyer 
John Tyson 
University of Minnesota
Mr. Donald Updike 
Ms. Mary C. Vanderschaaf 
Mr. James Albert Vandeurzen 
Suzann W. Voigt 
Mr. Herbert L. Wahrenburg 
Mr. Joseph Walczak 
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Gene 

Wallace
Ms. Priscilla Walter 
Estate of Lois and Jimmy Waltrip
Ms. Amy Zakrzewski Watson 
Ms. Carol K. Weiss 
Mrs. Rose Mary H. Wells 
Ms. Sarah Wells
Mr. William J. Westlake 
John A. Whisler 
Tyler Wiegert 
Mr. and Mrs. Henry R. Wilson
Ms. Pamela K. Wilson 
Joyce A. and Larry G. Wiltrout
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Wist
Ching and Susan L. Woo
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Woodland
Deborah Wright 
Ms. Masami Yamada and  

Mr. Mark Albert Buchignani
Karen Yun and Michael Pollock
Tjaard and Gabriele Zwaagstra

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2021 – Aug. 31, 2022.
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Cabinet 10,000+
Anonymous (18)
Ms. Raydean M. Acevedo
The Ajram Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Gaby A. Ajram
Mr. and Mrs. Silvio P. Alfeo
Dr. Sam Amirfar and  

Dr. Vibhuti Arya
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. Karl E. Bakhtiari
Mr. and Mrs. James V. Bala
The Balsamo Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. Balsamo
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A.  

Barrow III
Richard Allan Barry Family 

Charitable Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Richard A. Barry
Mr. and Mrs. Gene B. Bates
Mr. Ian Bavey
Russ and E. Cordy Beckstead
Beightler Squires Charitable Trust
Mrs. Joan D. Bentz
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome H.  

Bishop III
Mr. Thomas C. Bishop
Robert and Joan Blackman Family 

Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Blackman
Ms. Elizabeth K. Blake
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Bodmer
Boger Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Bridges
Ms. Katherine K. Brobeck
Ms. Martha Finn Brooks
Ms. Donna Brown
Alvin I. & Peggy S. Brown Family 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence J. Brown
Bruce Family Limited Partnership
Ms. Terri D. Bullock
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald E. 

Burmeister
Drs. Steven and Barbara Burrall
Mr. James H. Campbell
Thalia & Michael C. Carlos 

Foundation
Dr. Thomas J. Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas W. Caves
Dr. Louis Centofanti and  

Ms. Wanda Rachels
Mr. Hsin Cheng and  

Ms. Danyu Zhang
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Christensen
Mr. Robert Cieslik
Ms. Karen M. Clark

Dr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Mr. Joseph V. Cohen
Mr. Peter D. Conlon
Mr. and Mrs. Ross M. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello
Drs. Frank and Ann Critz
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Cross
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Culver
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas 

Cunningham
Curb Records
Mr. Larry R. D’Addario
The Honorable and Mrs. John  

H. Dalton
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn R. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Don A. Davis Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Clayton Dean
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis DeBruler
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A. Denning
Ms. C. Maury Devine
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Dillard
The Dillard Foundation
Mr. Eugene Z. Djeu
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Keith 

Donnelly
Mr. Charles M. Doyle and  

Dr. Jocelyn A. Holash
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Dudley
Ms. Anneliese H. Duncan
Harry F. Duncan Foundation
Mr. Douglas Dunn and  

Mrs. Donna Gaab
Walter and Ursula Eberspacher 

Foundation
Mr. Walter Eberspacher
The Eccles Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Eccles
The Edgerley Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Paul B. Edgerley
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel W. Elliott
The Ellis Foundation
The Ellis Foundation
Engelke Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke
Ms. Jessica Epperson
Mr. Paul S. Fan and Ms. Lai-Sang 

Young
Mr. Michael G. Feinstein and  

Ms. Denise Waldron
Finn Brooks Family Foundation
Mr. Austin Fite
Fite Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Flora Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Foszcz
Ms. Mary Ann Francis
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Frazier
Mr. and Mrs. Charles French
Mr. and Mrs. Milton S. Fujii

Full Circle Foundation
Ms. Evelyn K. Fulmer
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
Mr. William Gee and Ms. Susan 

Crothers
General Building Maintenance
Dr. Paul W. Gerke
Mr. and Mrs. Praveen Ghanta
Roger and Brenda Gibson Family 

Foundation
Brenda and Roger Gibson
Drs. David and Lynn Gill
Ms. Joanne G. Gimbel
Mr. Taylor Glover
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. 

Goodrich
Mr. and Mrs. Donald G. 

Goodwin
Donald G. Goodwin Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Gorman
The Geoffrey Gund Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey Gund
The Hale Foundation
The Dot & Lam Hardman Family 

Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.
Mrs. Francis W. Hatch
Reverend Miriam Hathaway
Mr. and Mrs. Danny L. 

Haukedalen
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher C. 

Healy
Mr. Gordy F. Hellenbrand
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Henzel
Mrs. Edigna Herold
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Hill
Mr. David Hitz
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Ho
James and Anna Hoag Fund
William R. Hoch Family 

Foundation 
Dr. Jeanne Hoch
Dr. Donald Hopkins and  

Dr. Ernestine Hopkins
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelius Houston
Dr. Marla S. Howard and Dr. 

Howard Foster
Mrs. Frances H. Hoxworth
Mr. Thomas Karpinski and  

Ms. Christine M. Hrib-Karpinski
John C. & Karyl Kay Hughes 

Foundation
John C. & Karyl Kay Hughes 

Foundation
Ms. Susan McKee Hughes
Mr. Bruce Hull
Hull Family Foundation

Mr. M. Blair Hull
Mr. and Mrs. Mark R. Humphrey
Ms. Christine Hurtsellers
The Jachaly Project
Elizabeth Jardina and Brian Stoler
Mr. Benjamin L. Jeffries
Mr. Joseph N. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. 

Johnston
Mr. Chris Jones and  

Mrs. Barb Jones
Dr. Shawn P. Jorgensen and  

Dr. Stephanie E. Jorgensen
Mr. Robert Shaw Kaeser
Mr. Mark E. Kalmansohn
Mr. John W. Kapouch Jr.
Karen’s Way 
Mr. John A. Kazanjian
Mr. Philip D. Kearns and  

Ms. Grace E. Ray
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Kerns
Mrs. Lyn B. Kirkland
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Kirkpatrick
Mr. Douglas Klaucke and  

Ms. Natalie Moses
Knopf Family Foundation
Ms. Sonja Laughlin Koenig
Mr. Thomas E. Koenig
Dr. Wayne A. Kradjan and  

Mrs. Carolyn L. Kradjan
Mrs. Donna Krulitz
Drs. Mark and Diana Kudes
The Robert and Vivian Lamb 

Fund
Mrs. Joan Lamonica
Mr. Phillip O. Lawson
Ms. MaryAnn Leak
Mr. Michael Lebowitz
Ms. Elizabeth A. Liebman
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred R. Light
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Limbach
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Love
Martha and Spencer Love 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Russell S. Lyon
Dr. Stephen A. Maas
Mr. Edward Magarian
Manaaki Foundation
Ms. Dianne McCarthy and  

Ms. Leslie Joseph
Mrs. Lynne R. McClendon
Mr. Chris McIlvoy
Ms. Maridelle McKesson
Mr. and Mrs. James M. McKinney
Ms. Susanne O. McMillan
Mr. and Mrs. Jim McNamara
Dr. Burrelle S. Meeks
Dr. and Mrs. Kenneth J. Mello
Misty Meadows Foundation
Ms. Dorothy J. Moore
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Mr. and Mrs. Michael E. Motes
Mrs. Catherine A. Mullins
Mr. and Mrs. Glen Mumey
Ms. Pamela Murphy and  

Mr. Richard D’Avino
Mr. Peter M. Musser
Ms. Lee Ann Myers
Mr. and Mrs. James V. Nania
Mrs. Besan H. Nash
Mr. Kent C. Nelson and  

Ms. Ann Starr
Nicholl Family Foundation 
Ms. Teresa A. Nicholl
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Nielson
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Mr. Steven E. Nothern
Dr. Margaret O’Connor
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and  

Ms. Angela Nomellini
Mrs. Carol L. Olsen
O’Neill Family Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Mr. Richard Palmer
Ms. F. Taylor Pape and  

Mr. Haddon Hufford
Mr. Chang K. Park
Mr. and Mrs. Sunny K. Park
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Parke
Ms. Judith A. Petroski
Mr. Robert Pew and  

Ms. Susan Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. David P. G. Phillips
Drs. Lew and Winfred Pinch
Dr. Keith W. Prasse and  

Dr. Susan W. Prasse
Dr. and Mrs. Keith H. Randall
Dr. Wendy Rashidi
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt N. Rathjen
Mr. David A. Rayner and  

Ms. Wendy O’Neill
Ms. Anne Martin Reynolds and 

Mr. David Reynolds
Ms. Tricia Rhea
Rogers Family Foundation
Robert M. Rogers Investments
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Ms. Heather L. Ross
Mr. Doug Rottman
Rottman Family Charitable 

Foundation
Ms. Catherine S. Roy
Dr. Selma H. Rutenburg
Mrs. Joanne D. Sanger
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Scheible
The D & M Scheible Family 

Foundation
The John and Kathleen Schreiber 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John Schreiber
Drs. Evelyn and Craig Scott

Mr. John M. Scully
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Mr. Ajeet Shankar and  

Ms. Rebekah Sexton
Ms. Jane E. Shivers and  

Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R. Simpson
Dr. Murali Sivarajan and  

Dr. Gouri Sivarajan
Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Ms. Cherida C. Smith
Mr. David C. Smith
Richard O. and June C.  

Smith Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Charles  

Smith-Dewey
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Squires
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Mrs. Mary Ellen Stachnik
Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Ms. Elane Stock and Mr. Andrew 

J. Sullivan
Willow Springs Foundation
James M. and Cathleen D. Stone 

Foundation
Mr. Robert M. Stone and  

Ms. Diane E. Christensen
Mr. David B. Stoppelman
Mr. and Mrs. John Strange
Suggs Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney V. Suggs
Mrs. Charlotte A. Swanson
Ms. Anne E. Swenson
Mr. and Mrs. Chade-Meng Tan
Tan Teo Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick C. 

Teutsch
Andrew Tobias
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M. Treder
Ms. Carol L. Tucker-Foreman
Ms. Marcella A. Turk
Turner Enterprises 
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Turner
Two or More Foundation
US China Business Association
Ms. Martha L. Vaughan
Mr. David R. Virden
Mr. Paul E. von Kuster III
Mr. Steven C. Voorhees
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald K. 

Wackowski
Ms. Janet S. Walde
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Warlick
Ms. Donna M. Warnken-Brill
Mr. and Mrs. William C. 

Wehmeier
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
Sarah R. Wetherbee Charitable 

Trust

Mr. Michael J. Wetherbee
Dr. Stephen Wheeler and  

Dr. Patricia Wheeler
Mr. Robert M. White
Ms. Mary K. Williams
The Willow Springs Foundation
Ms. Bickley C. Wilson
Mr. David Douglas Wilson and 

Mrs. Melody Wilder Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward J. Wilson
The Wilson Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth M. 

Woodworth
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Mark 

Wright
Mr. and Mrs. Todd Yankee
Dr. Ellen H. Yankellow and  

Mr. William E. Chapman
Mr. Robert A. Yellowlees
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Zeak

Diplomat $5,000–$9,999
Anonymous (10)
William B. Ackerman Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Heinz Aeschbach
Aikman Foundation
Mr. James Aikman
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph T. Alexander
Mr. and Mrs. Miles Alexander
Ms. Toni W. Alexander
Mr. Steve M. Alpers
The Honorable and Mrs. Brady 

Anderson
Mr. John W. Anderson
Mr. Karl D. Anderson
Ms. Martha E. Anderson
Arbor Rouge Foundation
The Arches Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. H. Ross Arnold III
Dr. Emily H. Bailey and  

Mr. John Winslow
Bajco Arizona
Mr. Faisal S. Bajwa
Mr. Jon W. Balke
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mr. Peter Bannon and  

Ms. Maura Considine
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd J. Baroody
Mr. and Mrs. Roland L. Bates
Ms. Rebecca M. Baybrook
Dr. Robert A. Berenson
Ms. Victoria Berke and  

Mr. Seth Meyer
Mr. Richard E. Berkins and  

Ms. Tomoko Takami
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Bernados
Mr. Lawrence Blaskopf
Ms. Joyce Hood Boettcher
Mr. Philip P. Bolton
Ms. Deborah Bombard
Mr. Geoffrey Bond

Dr. and Mrs. Gordon S. Bonham
Mr. and Mrs. Alan J. Brattesani
Ms. Jeffrey P. Breckel
Ms. Jan W. Briscoe
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Mr. Barry Bryant and  

Dr. Genevieve M. Lambert
Bunnell Family Donor Advised 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Scott H. Burnett
Mrs. Adelle E. Burrus
Mr. Christopher A. Calhoun
Dr. and Mrs. George H. Callcott
Ms. Gerda L. Carmichael
Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
Mr. Roger D. Cash
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey A. Cassens
Mr. and Mrs. John Cassidy
Mr. John K. Chalmers
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Chamberlin
Dr. and Mrs. Chee W. Chow
Mr. John R. Clifford
Mr. Alan M. Cody and  

Ms. Edith Moricz-Cody
Mr. Edward B. Cohen and 

Ambassador Charlene 
Barshefsky

Ms. Ammie R. Cole
Dr. and Mrs. J. Richard Collins
Mr. Robert A. Cook
Mr. Evan Coughenour
Dean Coughenour Trust
Ms. Ellen Covairt and  

Mr. Bernard R. Kalscheuer
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Crain
Mr. Alex Crumbley
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Curry
Dr. Roy Curtiss III
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K.  

Dace-Smith
Dr. Peter B. Danzig and  

Ms. Lava Thomas
The Darwin Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Sita K. Dash
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Mark L. Davis
Ms. Nancy B. Davis
Mr. Justin De Graaf and  

Dr. Sumona De Graaf
Mr. and Mrs. John DeHarpporte
Mr. Jeffrey Dennis
Mr. and Mrs. Wynand C. DePuy
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew DiLoreto
Mr. Douglas O. Drake
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and  

Dr. Janice Duke
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin M. Duke
DVJ Partnership
The Honorable Stuart E. Eizenstat
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Engh

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Mr. and Mrs. L. Reade Fahs
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Farese
Professor and Mrs. Joseph Farrell
Ms. Ann B. Fegan
Mrs. Scott Ferris
Mr. Raymond Ferry
Mr. Kevin P. Filter and  

Ms. Sandra Tazelaar
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Foley
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron H. Fowler
Ms. Ellen Friedlander
Friedlander Family Fund
FThree Foundation
Mr. Phillip T. Fujii
Robert E. Gallagher Charitable 

Trust
Mr. James F. Gammill Jr. and  

Ms. Susan H. Alexander
Ms. Amy Gazard
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Giordano
Mr. Thomas Glowacki
Ms. Victoria M. Glynn
Googasian Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. George Googasian
Dr. Randal O. Graham
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Graves
M. Green Family Fund
Mr. Robert Kent Greenawalt
Mr. Christian Groenke
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey B. Grossman
The Gumbo Foundation
Mr. Gaston Habets
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Habig
Ms. Jill K. Halvorsen
Ms. Mary J. Hamilton
Mr. Richard Hamilton and  

Mr. Leo Motivans
Ms. Karen A. Hammerstrom
Mr. Mark P. Hampton
Mr. and Mrs. David P. 

Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. Peter V. Harris
Ms. Janet L. Harshberger
Mr. David H. Hartke
Ms. Ann-Marie F. Hartline
Mr. William P. Hausdorff, Ph.D. 

and Ms. Wendell Hausdorff, 
Ph.D

Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
HCD Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Steven M. 

Heilmann
Dr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Heller
Dr. Charles J. Helm
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Heneghan
Mr. Jonathan R. Hettinger
Mr. and Mrs. Philip J. Hickey Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. James D. Hier
Ms. Mary Emily Hogan
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis D. 

Hollingsworth
Ms. Alice Houseknecht
Alice and Jaclyn Houseknecht 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Edward S. Howle
Dr. William Huddleston and  

Dr. Peggy Huddleston
Ms. Claudia N. Hughes
Ms. Margaret V. Hughes
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip Hurt
The Rick Hutcheson and Rob 

Kincaid Charitable Giving Fund 
at The Community Foundation, 
Strengthening Inland 
Southern California through 
Philanthrophy

IBERIABANK/First Horizon
Dr. S. Rubina Inamdar and  

Mr. Kayyum Mansoor
Mr. and Mrs. Bahman M. Irvani
Ms. Sara Irvani
Mr. Keith Ito
Ms. Jo Bess Jackson
Jalima Holdings, Ltd.
Mrs. Mavis D. James
Dr. Kelley Rae Jewett and  

Ms. Kristi Adams
Ms. Marjory J. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Johnson
Ms. Janice M. Jung and  

Mr. John Davis
Mr. Steven Kale and Ms. Leah 

Hemelstrand
Mr. Steven Kallio Jr.
Mr. Murad R. Karimi
Ms. M. Emilie Keas
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Ms. Alexis Kennedy
Ms. Rosemary M. Kessler
Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Ms. Sheryl King
Mr. John E. Kinikin
Ms. Kristin L. Koblish
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Mr. and Mrs. Louis R. Kroll
Mr. Larry Kuhn
Mr. James G. Kulleck
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis R. Lacroix
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Ms. Denise LaFayette
Dr. Susan M. Laing
Dr. James W. Larrick
Mr. and Mrs. George W. Lattimer
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley C. Lawson
Dr. Peter Layde and  

Ms. Angela Carollo

Dr. David Lee and  
Dr. Lyn Jakeman

Mr. Joseph Lentini and  
Ms. Sandra Piech

Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. Bruce C. Lincoln
Mr. Lawrence P. Littlewood and 

Dr. Edna M. Littlewood
Ms. Alicia Loo and  

Mr. Guy Miller
Ms. Jane R. Lubben
Ms. Kathryn Lynn
Ms. Joann Macey
Ms. Elizabeth R. MacGowen
Mr. and Mrs. H. Paul Madore
Ms. Martha Maguire and  

Mr. Oleg Simanovsky
Ms. Diane Malone
The Mamdani Foundation
Mr. Iqbal G. Mamdani
Mr. Peter Mathis
Mr. and Mrs. Charles C. Matteo
Dr. Derek T. Mayweather
Mr. Zachary A. McEntyre
Ms. Christine M. McGarry
Dr. Mary Jo McGee-Brown
Ms. Patricia Ann McGuire
Jeffrey and Karen McHenry
Ms. Martha McMahon and  

Mr. Dick Lyon
Rev. Jacqueline McMillen
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel McMorrow
Mr. Guy McRoberts
Dr. Nathaniel Griffith Means
Mr. and Mrs. Arvind Menon
Ms. Cynthia Merman
Mrs. Paula Merritt
Mr. Richard J. Meyer
Mr. John Millea and  

Mr. Mark Heumann
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Miller
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and  

Dr. Mary Miyagi
Dr. and Mrs. A. Michael 

Moheimani
A. Michael Moheimani, M.D.
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Dr. and Mrs. James W. Mold
Sherman Michael Anderson Trust
Kristina and Patrick Morton
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas C. Mozen
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Dr. Christopher Mullin and  

Dr. Sarah Gaffen
Mr. and Mrs. Leo F. Mullin
Mr. Arshad Mumtaz
Ms. Barbara Munn
Ms. Sandhya Nandigum

Dr. Kenneth H. Nealson
Ms. Dawn D. Nelson
Dr. Ronald P. Ngayan and  

Ms. Sasha Gulati-Ngayan
NLH Charitable Fund
Selma Ankist Family Trust, 

Andrea Nobil, Trustee
Mr. Paul Noonan
Father William Olesik
Ms. Debra Olinger
Mr. Paul I. Olsen
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Ormiston
Ms. Deborah L. Ornowski
Dr. Harold E. Ott
Ms. Noreen J. Parrett
Ms. Marguerite Patterson
Mrs. Camellia Perrel
Mr. Peter J. Petkas
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Mr. Waitat P. Poon
Mr. Jeffrey K. Postle
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Pozzi
Dr. and Mrs. Robert J. Puckett
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Dr. and Mrs. Fazlur Rahman
Rudy & Alice Ramsey 

Foundation
Dr. Gregory Dean Randolph and 

Ms. Janice Bryant
Ms. Sara R. Ransford
Dr. Wingfield Rehmus and  

Mr. Scott Rehmus
Dr. Richard C. Reichman and  

Dr. Lisa Demeter Reichman
The Reidler Foundation
Ms. Stephanie W. Renuart
Ms. Ilene S. Resnick Weiss and 

Mr. Daniel J. Weiss
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Rinkssports 
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ritchie
Dr. and Mrs. Gaylan Rockswold
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Rodman
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Rowe
Mr. George A. Rudeseal
Dr. Colleen Beecken Rye and  

Mr. Brian Rye
Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Sager
Ms. Kathy A. Sandoval
The Sank Family Foundation
Mr. Zachary B. Sank
Mr. Kevin J. Sauder and  

Ms. Patricia Kramer
Mrs. Carol E. Saunders
Dame Marjorie M. Scardino
Mr. and Mrs. Paul David 

Schaeffer
Mrs. John H. Schaff
Mr. Kent Schoch
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Dr. David T. Schreiner and  
Dr. Johanna R. Jorizzo

Mr. William T. Selby
Dr. Timothy H. Self and  

Dr. Melissa Matlock-Self
Ms. Carolyn Sue Sharpe
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shaw
Dr. Gordon Shecket and  

Ms. Carol Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shevlin
The Sikand Foundation
The Simmons Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Steven J. Simmons
Ms. Susan Skog
Ms. Alicia Woolston Smith
Mr. and Mrs. David D. Smith
Dr. Forrest Ann Smith
Ms. Jenni Yoshida Smith
Mr. Mark C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. John Robert 

Southall
Mr. Brent A. Sowers
Mr. Joseph Spinden
Dr. Jane P. Srinivasan
Mr. Robert Stets Jr. and  

Ms. Lena Lee
Ms. Judith A. Stewart
Mr. Stephen E. Still
Ms. Alice L. Stoll
Stonesfair Financial Corporation
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Dr. Barbara S. Stowe
Ms. Heather L. Ross &  

Mr. Edward L. Strohbehn Jr.
Mrs. Irene Stuart
Sutter Instrument Company
Mr. and Mrs. Chester L. Sutula
Ms. Amy Swanson
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald A. Swanson
Mr. Robert E. Swanton
Dr. Peter Swift and Ms. Diana 

McCargo
Mr. Dennis J. Swing
Mr. Robert M. Synk and  

Ms. Theresa Pawloski
Ms. Jennifer Chen Taylor and  

Mr. Christopher Jorgen Taylor
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Dr. Samuel T. Test
Mr. and Mrs. William E. 

Thibodeaux
Dr. and Mrs. John P. Thomas Jr.
Ms. Lorraine M. Thomas
Ms. Rita M. Tieszen
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Tipton
Dr. Charles Tollett
Mr. Robert B. Tripp
Ms. Kathryn L. Uhlir
The Upper Crust
Mr. and Mrs. Jody Usry

Ms. Robin Van Liew and  
Mr. Azim S. Rawji

Ms. Corbin Vandemoer
Mr. Brian K. Vaughan and  

Ms. Ruth McKee
Vaughan McKee Family Trust
Ms. Carolyn Walker
Mr. Dougin Walker and  

Ms. Elizabeth Bromley
Ms. Sherry C. Walton
Mr. and Mrs. Qaiser F. Waraich
Commander Peter W. Ward and 

Mrs. Jennifer R. Dunson
John H. Ware IV Charitable Lead 

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Watson Jr.
Mr. Lawrence E. Webb
The Honorable Wellington Webb 

and The Honorable Wilma 
Webb

Mr. George Keith Weiss
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Wells
Dr. John Michael West
Ms. Ann Rhodes White
Ms. Wynelle W. White
Mrs. Neva Whybark
Malcolm Hewitt Wiener 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm H. Wiener
Mr. Peter D. Wildes and Dr. Julia 

W. Wildes
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Mr. Jim Winestock
Mr. Kenneth P. Wolford
Ms. Grace Wooding
Mr. and Mrs. James Douglas 

Workman
Ms. Penelope Wright
Wrocklage Family Charitable 

Foundation
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage
Mr. Alexander C. Wu
Dr. Clarice M. Yentsch
Dr. David Zamierowski and  

Dr. Marilyn Zamierowski
Peggy and Lee Zeigler
Dr. and Mrs. Richard W. Zurek

Envoy $2,500–$4,999 
Anonymous (12)
Ms. Martha S. Abbott-Shim
Drs. Charles and Rosalina 

Abboud
Dr. John R. Abelson and  

Ms. Kendall Rafter
Ms. Beverly Adams
Mr. Donald Adams and Ms. Ellen 

Maland
Mr. James F. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Aiken
Ms. Priscilla Alexander

Dr. Robert W. Allen
Ms. Susan W. Almy
Ms. Eleanor Alston
Joan Brownell Anderson, Ph.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Andreen
Mr. Brian Arbogast and  

Ms. Valerie Tarico
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce H. Armstrong
Mr. Patrick W. Asher
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Atkins
Ms. Lori L. Avirett-Mackenzie and 

Mr. Kenneth MacKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Aweida
Mr. Mushtaq Azad and  

Dr. Manik Husain
Ms. Joanne M. Badeaux
Ms. Gayle Baker
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory 

Ballentine
Ms. Janet M. Bartlett
Mr. Todd Barton and  

Ms. Mary Elizabeth Kreider
Mr. David W. Bartz and  

Ms. Margaret L. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Bateman
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan T. Bebb
Mr. and Mrs. Bryce L. Beck
The Beggs Family Foundation
Ms. Sandi Jo Behnken
Mr. Stephen Beili
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Bellardo
Ms. Elaine Bellin
Mr. Herbert E. Benadom
Albert & Pamela Bendich 

Charitable Trust
Mrs. Albert Bendich
Brad and Mary Frances Benton
Ms. Shirley M. Benzley
Mr. Wayne Bert and  

Ms. Kerstin Jagerbo
Mrs. Victoria E. Beynon
Ms. Elizabeth Biliske and  

Mr. Patrick Holmes
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Blesso Jr.
Ms. Diana B. Bloch
Mr. and Mrs. Casey Blood
Ms. Susan F. Blumenberg
Mr. Wayne Blythe and  

Dr. Cheryl Blythe
Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Ms. Victoria Bone
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Boone Jr.
Ms. Roseann H. Bove
Mr. John Boyd
Mr. Charles R. Brainard
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Brainerd
Ms. Janice Brazil
Mr. Donald E. Breyer
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Bristow
Ms. Mary Lord Brown

Mr. Richard R. Brown and  
Ms. Sandra Jean Zaremba

Dr. David Brunco and Ms. Anna 
Lee

Mr. and Mrs. Steve Bunce
Mrs. Janet M. Burns
Ms. Susan Okie Bush
Mr. Gary R. Byerly and  

Ms. Maud M. Walsh
Mr. Peter Cai
Mr. and Mrs. David Canfield
Dr. Cecilia H. Cantrell
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Capriles
Ms. Linda L. Carder
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. Cardozo
Mr. Brian Carman
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. Daniel Casey and  

Ms. Dolores Connolly
Mr. Sylvain Casimir and  

Ms. Luna Hilaire
Ms. Judith Cassella
Mr. Dan T. Cathy
The Cedars Foundation
Mr. James G. Chamberlain and 

Ms. Diane B. Burrows
Edith and Anthony Chan
Mr. David Chasson
Dr. and Dr. John Cheng
Ms. Diane M. Chesnut
Chick-fil-A
Mr. Fei-Pang Ching
Ms. Mary P. Christ
Ms. Marianne R. Christiano
Paul W. Clark Family Foundation
Mr. Paul W. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Peter E. Clark Jr.
Ms. Marilyn Clary
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline
Ms. Marge Coahran
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey M. Cohen
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and  

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Ms. Courtney Collins
Dr. Margaret H. Collins
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Conn
Mr. James M. Copeland Jr. and 

Ms. Deborah E. McFarland
Mr. Philip Corliss
Dr. Arnold R. Cowan and Rev. 

ChristineAnne C. Cowan
Ms. Cindy M. Craft
Ann and Jeff Cramer
Mrs. Pamelia Crockett
Dr. Gary Cromer and  

Ms. Judy K. Porter
Ms. Mary Karen Cronin
Mr. Rodney Bert Crossland
Ms. Janice A. Culpepper

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Mrs. Carleton E. Curran
Mr. and Mrs. W. Bowman Cutter
Rev. Bruce Davidson and  

Mr. Donald Barb
Mr. John Davis
Mr. Timothy S. Davis
Mr. William A. Deacon
Mr. Patrick Demasco
Mr. and Mrs. Shaun K. Deola
Ms. Irene Devine and  

Mr. Hal Schneider
Ms. Tina Devries
Ms. Pacia T. S. Dewald
Mr. George T. Dewey III
Mr. Mark Dickinson
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas Docter
Mr. Arlen D. Dominek and  

Mr. A.J. Young
Ms. Joan E. Donnelly
Ms. Peggy N. Dougherty
Ms. Christine Doyle and  

Mr. Michael Yessik
Mr. and Mrs. Peter B. Dunlap
Ms. Marcia F. Dunscomb
Ms. Patricia Dusenbury
Mr. John M. Duxbury
Eagan Family Foundation
Mr. J. Christopher Eagan
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Mr. M. Michael Egan
Ms. Rosanda Richards Ellsworth
Dr. Antoinette S. Emch
Ms. Kathryn Engholm and  

Mr. Jeffrey Earls
Ms. Sherma R. Erholm
Ms. Jill Ericsson
Dr. Clarissa Estep
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Ms. Barbara Faga and  

Mr. Paul C. Kulinski
Dr. Paul G. Farnham
Mr. Jerome Farnsworth
The Honorable and  

Mrs. R. Keegan Federal Jr.
Ms. Mary Ellen Felps
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Ms. Susan S. Ferson
Dr. and Mrs. James M. Fico
Mrs. Ruth A. Fingerson
First Presbyterian Church
Ms. Catherine Fissell
Ms. Judith A. Fitz
Ms. Nancy E. Fleischer
The Honorable William Wyche 

Fowler Jr.
Ms. Linda C. Frank
Ms. Jeanna French
Ms. Norma A. Fritsche
Dr. Charles L. Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. William Gagen

Ms. Janine B. Gensheimer
Mr. Wayne Gibson
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald B. Gies
Ms. Elizabeth G. Ginsberg
Abe Graber Memorial Fund
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Gray
Mr. Douglas Green
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Green
Mr. Kevin F. Green
Ms. Patricia R. Green
Ms. Meredith S. Greene
Dr. and Mrs. Martin C. Gregory
Dr. and Mrs. James L. Groskreutz
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
Dr. Emily S. Haight
Mr. Michael R. Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Halliday
Ms. Juanita E. Hallisey
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Mr. John B. Hanlon
Dr. and Mrs. M. Emdadul Haque
Ms. Margaret Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Donald W. 

Hasenohrl
Mr. Stephen R. Hatcher and  

Ms. Sharon Joyce Ellis
Drs. Harry and Lynne Haverkos
Mr. and Mrs. Richard E. Hayes
Mrs. Judith Hays
Ms. Vivian J. Headings
Hans H. and Kathryn W. Heikel
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Helpenstell
Ms. Babette Henagan
Ms. Janet P. Hendricks
Mr. Glenn P. Hendrix
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Mr. Joseph E. Herbst
Mr. Frederick C. Herzog III and 

Ms. Marla J. Mercer
Mrs. George G. Hess
Dr. Kenneth R. Hey and  

Ms. Colleen Walsh
Mr. David D. Hofmeister
Mr. and Mrs. Philip E. Holladay Jr.
Dr. Don Holmgren and  

Dr. Jennifer Holmgren
Ms. Ginger D. Homan
Mr. Bob Hope
Mr. Earl D. Horman
Ms. Mary L. Hortin
Mr. Robert C. Hoyler
Mr. MacLay Hoyne
Ms. Cheryl Hunley
Mr. and Mrs. Alan D. Husak
Mr. Rick Huszagh and  

Ms. Cristina E. Carrell
RJ Hutton Charitable Trust

Mr. Zephyr Isely and  
Ms. Fruzan Parvanta

Ms. Kazuko Ishida
Ms. Judith A. James
Jana Foundation
Mr. Kent Jenkins and  

Ms. Caroline Cho
Mr. Robert L. Jennings Jr. and 

Ms. Barbara H. Bott
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce E. Johnsen
Ms. Coralee Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Eric W. Johnson
Mr. Cliff Jolliff and  

Ms. Elaine Gerke
Mrs. Kimberly A. Jones
Mr. Lawrence E. Jordan
Just Funds
Ms. Kris L. Kandler and  

Ms. Kim Kandler
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Kaste
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher A. 

Keenan
Mr. and Mrs. Peter G. Kelly
Dr. and Mrs. Dale J. Kempf
Ms. Christina Kenrick
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Kick
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. King
Mr. Michael R. King
Ms. Benita A. Kitching
Dr. and Mrs. David Kleinbaum
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Steven and Diane Knapp
Dr. and Mrs. David A. Knauft
Ms. Kathleen Knepper
Ms. Marily Knieriemen
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gearold L. Knowles
Mrs. Susan Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Mr. Kerry W. Kohnen
Dr. and Mrs. Gary A. Krasicky
Mr. Ronald Krisch
Dr. R. K. Krishnan
Kugelman Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N. 

Kugelman
Mr. and Mrs. Dilip V. Kulkarni
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Labowsky
Ms. Carolyn S. Lackey
Mr. Michael LaHood and  

Ms. Elizabeth Pontikes
Dr. Genevieve M. Lambert
Ms. Margaret A. Lambert
Mr. and Mrs. William Laprade
Mr. and Mrs. James M. LaRowe
Mr. John R. Larsen
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Leacock
Mr. Douglas Leal
Ms. Jessica Ledbetter and  

Ms. Ranee Barsanti

Mr. and Mrs. Eugene C. Lee
LeFort-Martin Fund of 

The Chicago Community 
Foundation

Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey D. Leman
Mr. and Mrs. L. Dave Lentz
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond M. 

Leuthold
Mr. David R. Lewis
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Ms. Anna Lide
Ms. Elsa Limbach
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Lock
Mr. Dennis Lockhart and  

Ms. Mary Taylor
Mr. Gregory Loek and  

Ms. Kathleen Rice
Mr. and Mrs. John Lovitt
Mr. Howard Lowen
Ms. Christine E. Lucy
Mr. Christopher J. Ludewig
Mr. Lawrence S. Lumpkin
Lutes Family
Ms. Patricia A. Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Lyon
Ms. Anne Marie Macari
Joseph and Katherine Macari 

Foundation
Dr. Bryan F. MacPherson and  

Ms. Pamela M. Van Hine
Dr. Mark Manasse and  

Dr. Janet Mohle-Boetani
Ms. Pamela J. Mansfield
Mr. James F. Marchman III
Mr. Donald B. Marti
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph G. Martin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis A. Martinek
Ms. Joycelyn A. Martinez-Wade
Mr. and Mrs. Richard T. Mason
Mr. John W. Maynard and  

Ms. Judith P. Snyder
Mr. Brian K. Mazar and  

Mrs. Anne S. Mazar
Ms. Kerrie McCaffrey
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Clare McCamy and  

Mr. Harrison B. Miller
Ms. Marilyn R. McCloskey
Dr. Robert McCormack and  

Mr. Andy Smith
Ms. Janice McGarrah and  

Mr. Steven Williams
Ms. Nancy Mary McGirr
Mr. David J. McIntosh
McMahon Family Fund at The 

San Diego Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. David A. McMullen
Ms. Linda McMullen
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan W. Mead
Ms. Ramona H. Merrifield
Ms. Julie Millane
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Mr. and Mrs. John K. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald M. Miller
Ms. Susan E. Miller-Tully
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Mirsky
Ms. Emilie A. Mitchell
Mr. Willis H. Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas M. Mitro
Ms. Betty J. Mizek
Mr. Robert B. Molise
Ms. Donna Moniz
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Moore
Mr. Gary Morrison
Dr. Linda Mulka
Ms. Myra M. Munson
The Naduse Foundation
Ms. Violetta Neal-Leonard
Ms. Cassandra Neff
Dr. Robert Negrini and  

Ms. Jana McIntyre
Ms. Linda A. Nelson
Mr. Michael Nelson and  

Ms. Louise Durocher
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. 

Netherland
Nancy L. Newman and  

Donald F. Lathen
Ms. Suzanne K. Nieman
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Noonan
Norwell Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Richard S. Novack
Mr. Antal Novak
Ms. Esther M. Novak
Ms. Leslie O’Loughlin
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel E. O’Neill
Mr. James M. O’Neill and  

Ms. Kathy Mosier
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
Rusty and Connie Pace Family 

Foundation
Mr. Rusty Pace
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Page
Dr. Paul M. Parker and  

Mr. Eric D. Johnson
Mr. Richard K. Parrott
Mr. Daniel K. Paulien
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Peabody
Mr. Edward A. Pearson
Ms. Irene Pecuszok
The Irene A. Pecuszok Living 

Trust
Ms. Barbara E. Perreault
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Q. Perritt
Mr. William Kanarek and  

Ms. Deborah Perry
Mr. and Mrs. Charles B. Petersen
Ms. Mary C. Petersen
Mr. Norman John Peterson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Guy D. Pfeiffer
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Pittman

Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan Poag
Ms. Virginia Benton Pollack
Ms. Kathleen A. Poon
Mrs. Lawrence E. Poorman
Mrs. Dorothy C. Potts
Ms. Margaret F. Pryatel
Psychological Assessment 

Resources
Mr. and Mrs. Gabriel L. Pugliese
Dr. Archana Ramaswamy and  

Dr. Rumi Faizer
Dr. Angela G. Ray
Dr. Pravin Reddy
Ms. Ruth G. Reeder
Mr. Gary M. Reedy and  

Dr. Cindy Reedy
Ms. Emily D. Renuart
Mr. Michael J. Repass
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Reppun
Mr. and Mrs. John Z. Reynolds
Mr. Lee Allen Reynolds
Dr. Gary L. Rich and  

Dr. Deanna S. Mitchell
Dr. and Mrs. Jason Rich
Mr. and Mrs. Richard K. Riess
Ms. Christina Lyn Cooley Rivers
Dr. and Mrs. Paul F. Rizza
Ms. Marilyn A. Robertson
Ms. Mary Margaret Robinson
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Rogers
Ms. Virginia B. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M. Rohan
Mr. Paul Romano
Mr. Maurice G. Ross
Mr. James H. Rowe III
Mrs. Luana D. Rubin
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Sablesak
Ms. Dawn E. Salmons
Ms. Della Sanderson
Mr. William P. Saviers Jr.
Mr. Gordon Saville
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Schmid
Mrs. Charlotte H. Schmidt
Ms. Susan A. Schneider
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Schofield
The Murry & Florence Schott 

Charitable Foundation
Ms. Kathryn Schultz
Dr. Narinder N. Sehgal
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald O. Seiser
Dr. Mridu Sekhar
Mr. Collin Sexton
C. Sexton Management
Dr. Susan H. Shane
Ms. Isabel F. Shaskan
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Shavlik
Ms. Carolyn S. Shawaker
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory L. Sheehy
The Sheth Family Foundation

Dr. Cynthia Shewan
Ms. Gail D. Shore
Mr. Robert O. Simons
Bruce R. and Jane Scharding 

Smedley
Mr. and Mrs. Joel F. Smith
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and  

Dr. Louise N. Smith
Ms. Phyllis A. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
Mr. Valton D. Smith
Ms. Marguerite Soffa
Mr. Edwin C. Sparks
Mr. Jim Spearman
Ms. Ann G. Stallard
Drs. Joseph Jez and Courtney 

Starks
Mr. Kenneth A. Steiner
Mr. Panos Stephens and  

Dr. Natalie Stephens
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rodney Stern
Mr. Frank Stiebel
Mr. Steven Stockman
Mr. Roger E. Stout and  

Ms. Rebecca C. Cummings
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Stripe
Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Sullivan
Mr. Philip L. Swan
Dr. Constance Swank
Mr. Richard Szeliski and  

Ms. Lyn McCoy
Mr. Douglas Szperka and  

Dr. Christina Szperka
Dr. Daniel Weaver and  

Dr. Beth L. Tanner
Ms. Patrice L. Tarr
Mr. and Mrs. Dalton Tarwater
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Tausz
Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor
Ms. Janice L. Thompson
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan C. Throop
Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. Torian Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Roland D. Trietsch
Mrs. Phyllis J. Troyer
Turner Foundation
Mr. James R. Uber and  

Ms. Jean E. Marcy
Mr. Peter Ungar
Ms. Phyllis L. Van Winkle
The Melinda and William J. 

vanden Heuvel Foundation
Mrs. Melinda vanden Heuvel
Dr. Dorothy Vaughn Vincent
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Vogel
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Volkema
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Vrana
Ms. Christine P. Walker
Ms. Kathryn Lynn Ward
Ms. Carol E. Ware

Mr. Richard D. Waterfield and 
Ms. Marni McKinney

Ms. Margaret B. Watkins
Ms. Nancy A. Watson
Dr. Paul L. Weiden and  

Ms. Beverly L. Linkletter
Mr. and Mrs. E. Hunter Welles III
Mr. Max W. Wendell
Mr. James G. Wetrich
Mr. Eugene E. Weymouth
Ms. Livia Whisenhunt
Ms. Dorothy G. Whitmore
Ms. Nancy G. Whitney
Mr. John F. Wieland
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Mr. Paul B. Wittmann
Dr. Jacqueline Wittmeyer and  

Dr. Christopher Hill
Ms. Marion Woodfield and  

Mr. Marc Weinberg
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Wortman
Mr. Rex Wright
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Wurst
Ms. Jo Ellen Diehl Yeary
Mr. and Mrs. Peter M. Yungbluth
Ms. Bernadette Zigalo-Del Braccio
Dr. Susan Zimicki
Ms. Marilyn R. Zitterkopf
Mr. Thomas W. Zitzman
Ms. Amy P. Zupancic

Emissary $1,000–$2,499
Anonymous (33)
Mrs. Billye S. Aaron
Mr. Eugene M. Aaron
Dr. and Mrs. Jack A. Aaron
Mr. Dwight L. Aarons
Mr. W. Robert Abbot and  

Ms. Claire M. Cifaloglio
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Ms. Tamara Abell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Mr. and Mrs. Paul N. Abraham
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Ms. Denise Abrams
Abrams Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Daryl Ackerman
Mr. Jeffrey Adamczak
Dr. Alan Adams and  

Ms. Kathryn A. Lyons
Ms. Sally Adams and  

Mr. Louis Richard
Mr. Thomas Adams and  

Ms. Erin Bell
Dr. Buzz Adams and  

Dr. Debra Horowski
Mr. Albert F. Adcock
Mr. and Mrs. Alfonso L. Adderly
Walter and Leticia Aeschbach
Ms. Barbara R. Agosin
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Mr. and Mrs. David Aha
Mr. Mohammad M. Ahmad
Dr. M. Basheeruddin Ahmed and 

Dr. Shakila Ahmed
Mr. Omar Ahmed
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Dr. Gillian Air
Dr. Oluade A. Ajayi
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Alberts
Dr. Mary B. Alexander
Ms. Vera M. Alexander
Drs. Bradley and Lindsay Alger
Mr. and Mrs. Abdulwahab A. 

Alharoun
Shirley & David Allen 

Foundation
Ms. Lee-Ann H. Allen
Mr. Richard Allen and  

Ms. Susan J. Mastin
Mr. Richard C. Allen
Mr. and Mrs. David Allman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Alonzo
Ms. Miriam R. Alper
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Alston Sr.
Ms. Sally K. Alt
Mr. Robert O. Ander
The Andersen Charitable Trust
Mr. David Andersen and  

Ms. Suzanne Chapple
Ms. Anita M. Anderson
Ms. Barbara A. Anderson
Ms. Brenda C. Anderson
Dr. Cris J. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward C. 

Anderson
Ms. Elizabeth Anderson
Chaplain Col. Jack N. Anderson
Ms. Kim M. Anderson
Dr. Larry J. Anderson and  

Ms. Karen Torghele
Mr. Larry W. Anderson and  

Mr. Michael Bernard Boulas
Mrs. Nancy E. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Scott W. Anderson
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas P. Anglim
Mr. and Mrs. David Anson
Mr. Ed Anson
The MGDC Apgar Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Apgar
Mr. and Mrs. Gavin S. Appleby
Mr. Glen Y. Arakawa and  

Mr. Arthur W. Selly
Ms. Miriam N. Arbelo
Ms. Susan Arford
Ms. Katherine J. Armstrong and 

Reverend Joanne Sanders
Ms. Sheila M. Armstrong
Mr. Douglas Norman Arnold and 

Ms. Maria-Carme Calderer

Mr. Jeffrey S. Arnold and  
Ms. Ellen J. Neely

Art Engineering Corporation
Mr. Kevin W. Arthur
Ms. Joanne S. Arvid
Ms. Margarete P. Ashmore
Ms. Ann M. Ashton
Aslan Capital 
Associates in Endodontics 
Ms. Sharon Atack
Mr. Roger Atkinson and  

Ms. Janet Arey
Mr. Bernard Attal and  

Ms. Gerluze Santana
Dr. Jeffery S. Atwater
Ms. Diane D. AuKamp
Allan and Anne Aunspaugh
Mrs. Julia E. Austbo
Ms. Marilyn M. Ayres
Mr. Russell M. Babb
Ms. Jo Baer
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Bagby III
Ms. Elizabeth Lenore Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff C. Bailey
Dr. Virginia Rae Bailey
Dr. William H. Baird
Dr. and Mrs. David J. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. George Baker
Ms. Glenda L. Baker
Dr. Ronald L. Baker
Richard P. Baks
Dr. John Ball and 

Ms. Jean Dillon
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Ball
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Ball
Ms. Laurie Balmuth
Ms. Carol Balousek
Mr. and Mrs. Parmanand Balsaver
Mr. Joseph L. Balwierczak
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Bankoff
Dr. David O. Bankole
Mr. and Mrs. W. Douglas 

Bannerman
Mr. Thomas Bapu
Mr. Paul L. Barden
Ms. Jan C. Barlow
Mr. Robert Barlow
Ms. Janna Barnes
Ms. Beverly A. Barnett
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Barnett
Ms. Elaine Barnhill
Mr. Robert Barr
Ms. Deborah Barrell
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Barringer
Mr. W. Frank Barron Jr.
Mr. Brian Barry
Dr. Joseph Barry
Ms. Kathryn A. Barry
Mr. Robert L. Barry

Ms. Sue S. Bartlett
Mr. John J. Barton
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Barton
Ms. Linda Bastron
Mr. Darrel Bateman
Rev. and Mrs. Clayton Bates
Mr. Stephen Bates
Mr. Michael Batte and  

Ms. Wanda Kile
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Bauder
Mr. George W. Bauer
Mr. and Mrs. Robert T. Baumel
Mr. Richard A. Baumgartner
Patti and Owen Baynham
Dr. Robert E. Beach and  

Dr. Patricia S. Beach
Ms. Mary Beachum
Ms. Loretta A. Beam
Dr. David Bear and  

Dr. Laurie Hammer Bear
Bear Sontz Family Foundation
Ms. Gillian L. Beasley
Ms. Lauren L. Beaudry
Ms. Barbara Beck
Mr. and Mrs. Joe M. Beck
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Beck
Mr. David L. Becker
Mr. George Becker
Dr. Jonathan Becker and  

Ms. Danielle Wilson
Ms. Joanne Beckham
Mary Conroy Fund of The 

Minneapolis Foundation
Dr. Thomas Bednar
Mr. and Mrs. Royce Bedward
Ms. Susan N. Beem
Mrs. Constance T. Beemer
Ms. Patricia F. Beerhalter
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Beeton
Ms. Heather Behrends
Rev. Lance Beizer
Mr. Jonathan D. Bell
Mr. Richard E. Benfield
Mr. and Mrs. John Benjamin
Mr. David L. Bennett
Dr. Sarah Benor
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Bente III
Ms. Marjorie C. Benton
Mr. James S. Berdou
Ms. Robin Michelle Bergen and 

Ms. Janine Hackett
Mr. Laurence N. Berking
Mr. Thomas Bernadzikowski
Mrs. Elaine V. Berquist
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Berry
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Berry
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Beschta
Ms. Kathleen S. Best
Mrs. Kathy Betty
Mr. Jim Betz

Ms. Annamae M. Beyette
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Biggs
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Biller II
Ms. Andrea Billhardt
Ms. Suzanne Binder and  

Mr. Jeffrey Sacks
Ms. Elizabeth H. Binkley
Mr. and Mrs. Robert R. Binns
Dr. and Mrs. Ashley R. Bird
Mrs. Phyllis Bischof
Jane Nichols Bishop
Mr. Richard Bishop and  

Ms. Linda Beatty
Ms. Brenda J. Black
Ms. Patricia Black
Dr. Philip G. Black
Mr. Guy Blais
Ms. Becky Blalock
The Honorable James J. 

Blanchard
Dr. Kendall Blanchard and  

Dr. Connie Blanchard
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Blanchard
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Bland
Mr. Harry E. Blevins Jr.
Mrs. Judith L. Bliley
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Bliss
Dr. Carl Blobel
Ms. Barbara D. Blum
Mrs. Jean M. Boddy
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Boehlke
Mrs. Robert C. Bogenpohl
Dr. and Mrs. John K. Boitnott
Ms. Linda Bollensen
Mr. and Mrs. Ross N. Bolton
Ms. Rosalynn June Bonamusa
Mr. Harry W. Boothe
Mr. Bruce G. Borglum
Ms. Linda K. Borgman
Mr. Arne M. Borgnes
Ms. Lyn Borisof
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas H. 

Bornemann
Dr. Leslie McIntosh Borrelli and 

Mr. Steven Borrelli
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bottge
Drs. Ken and Karen Boudreau
Mr. Chris Boulton
Ms. Margaret Bourg
Ms. Kathleen Bovid
Ms. Heidi Bankes Bowen
Dr. William D. Bowers
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas L. Bowman
Mr. and Mrs. James Bowman
Mr. Jeffrey T. Bowman
Ms. Ramona D. Bowman
Ms. Deborah Boyce
Ms. Helen Boyce
Ms. Christine Boyd and  

Mr. Thomas Schoeneman
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Ms. Mary Ann Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Boyd
Ms. Molly E. Boyle
Mr. and Mrs. William E. Boys
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Braband
Mr. Todd C. Bradbury
John and Kristine Bradley
Dr. Lucy A. Bradley-Springer and 

Mr. Robert E. Springer
Mr. and Mrs. Howard Brandeisky
Mr. Albert Brandel and  

Dr. Maureen Murphy
Dr. Michael T. Brandt
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Marion Elizabeth Brannon
Ms. Mary K. Branom
Branscomb Family Foundation
Mr. Lewis M. Branscomb
Mrs. Benjie H. Branson
Ms. Carolyn Bratush
Ms. Joanne Bratush
Ms. Nancy E. Braun
Mr. James D. Brees and  

Dr. Carol K. Brees
Mr. Sean M. Brennan
Ms. Lynn Brescia
Ms. Kathie Breuninger
Ms. Natalia Briones
Mr. Harold C. Brockman and  

Ms. Cynthia Smith
Ms. Ginger L. Brookover
Leigh W. Brooks, Ph.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Walter P. Brooks
Mr. and Mrs. Reade Brower
Mr. Aaron B. Brown
Ms. Allison Brown
Mr. Byron D. Brown
Mr. Corey Brown
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Brown
Mr. Douglas Brown II
The Brown Family Foundation
Rev. and Mrs. John L. Brown
Ms. Kellie R. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart H. Brown
Dr. William T. Browne and  

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Ms. Ellen Brunson-Newton
Mr. Scott Bryson
The Brzezinski Family Foundation
Mr. Ian J. Brzezinski
Ms. Connie Buchanan
Ms. Margaret Buckley
Dr. Robert E. Budin and  

Dr. Diane A. Lowe
Ms. Dale C. Buffaloe
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Mr. Steven N. Buhl
Mr. Clifton Bullard

Mr. and Mrs. Wayne L. 
Bullaughey

Ms. Josie B. Bumgarner
Rev. Dearl L. Bunce
Ms. Mary Catherine Bunting
Ms. Mary Alice Burack
Ms. Treava W. Burgess
Dr. Kathleen M. Burke
Mr. Michael W. Burke
Dr. Merrikay Oleen Burkey
Mr. David Burkhart
Mr. and Mrs. James Burnis
Mr. James Burns
Ms. Rita J. Burns
Dr. Annie Hunt Burriss
Dr. Thomas G. Burton
Ms. Marilyn J. Burysz
Mr. Paul Bushland
Mrs. Irene L. Bussjaeger
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Butcher
Dr. David M. Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Byers Family Fund
Mr. Kenneth G. Byers Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry M. Byrd
Dr. Sherryl A. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Ms. Kris Byrne
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Ms. Sandra Cable and  

Mr. Edwin Cable
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Cable
Ms. Patricia Cabot
Ms. Cindy Calbaum
Mr. Charles Caldwell
Mr. and Mrs. Duke M. Caldwell
Mr. Gordon Caldwell
Ms. Philippa Calnan
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Camara
Dr. David L. Camenga and  

Ms. Nora B. Arnold
Ms. Patricia M. Cameron
Ms. Sandra R. Camley
Ms. Marguerite Marie Campa
Ms. Charlotte T. Campbell
Dr. Elizabeth E. Campbell
Ms. Jane E. Campbell
Ms. Janet W. Campbell
Mr. Phil W. Campbell
Mr. and Mrs. Rick Campbell
Ms. Claire Cannon
Mr. Douglas Cantrell
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Capella
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony R. 

Cardullo
Ms. Carole M. Carey
Ms. Statia Carey
Mr. David Carlino

Mrs. Norma D. Carlstrom
Mrs. Linda B. Carlyle
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and  

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Mr. Jeffery A. Carpenter
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Carpenter
Mr. Robert E. Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A.  

Carrano II
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Carriere
Ms. Rita A. Carroll
Mr. Brandon W. Carson
Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
The Calvin W. Carter Family
Mr. James E. Carter III and  

Ms. Rebecca P. Carter
Dr. Jean Carter and Mr. Michael 

P. Carter
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Ms. Becky Carter
Dr. Ronald D. Carter
Ms. Victoria P. Carver
Ms. Sharon L. Cassidy
Ms. Cecily L. Cassum
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley Casto
Mr. Joseph S. Catanzaro
Ms. Theresa Catino
Mr. Michael Caurant
Mr. and Mrs. Richard E. 

Cavanagh
Mr. Richard A. Cavanaugh
Mr. and Mrs. Sy Chaba
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas I. Chacko
Dr. Arthur Chaffee
Mr. Kang Chan
Ms. Aruna Chandra
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. Chanin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. 

Chapman
Ms. Eileen Chase and  

Mr. William T. Shefchik
Mr. Kenneth Chase
Dr. Michael D. Chase and  

Dr. Patricia Sato
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Chase
Kurt and Brenda Chaykowski
Mr. Eng-Aun Cheng
Ms. Fran Chessler and  

Mr. James Gill
Ms. Lynda P. Chesterton
Mrs. Anne A. Chew
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Mr. Richard Chew and  

Ms. Liv Torgerson
Mr. Albert Chiang and  

Ms. Janet Yang
Mr. James J. Childre
Ms. Tzu Isabel Chiu
Mr. and Mrs. Philip S. Chordas

Mr. Henry Chou
Dr. Julia T. Christman
Mr. William I. Christopher
Robert and Bobbé 

Christopherson
Mr. Chiwei D. Chuang
Mr. Frank R. Ciarelli
Mrs. Gaile Civiletti
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Claeys
Dr. Robert T. Clair
Ms. Susan M. Clambey
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn R. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Ms. Robin Clarke
Ms. Judith Clarkson
Clascola Trust
Mr. Russell K. Clayton
Ms. Rebekah Clower
Mr. and Mrs. Barrett Cobb
Ms. Regina Cocanougher
Ms. Barbara Cocovinis
Mrs. Mildred Cody
Mr. David H. Cofrin and  

Ms. Christine Tryba-Cofrin
Mr. Edward M. Cohen and  

Ms. Anne Bakstad
Ms. Nancy Cohen and  

Mr. Michael Cohen
Mr. Robert L. Cohen
Dr. and Mrs. Xerxes R. Colah
Dr. Johnnetta B. Cole
Ms. Maryann F. Cole
Mr. Daniel J. Coleman
Dr. Jane L. Coleman
Mr. Robert B. Colgin
Ms. Sandy Collier
Ms. Emma Lou Collins
Mrs. John Collins
Mr. Dale T. Collura
Mr. and Mrs. Harry T. Colter
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Colyar
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Comer
Mr. James Congo
Mr. Bryan Conley and  

Ms. Monika Nikore
Ms. Susan E. Conner
Dr. K. T. Connor and  

Mr. Jere Robings
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Conradi
Ms. Margaret A. Cook Levy
Mr. Spence Cook
Mr. and Mrs. Allen Cooke
Ms. Beverly B. Cooke
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan P. Cooper
Dr. and Mrs. Max Cooper
Ms. Shan Cooper
Mr. Troy L. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Warren N. 

Coppedge
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The Honorable Samuel G. 

Coppersmith
Ms. Sedare Coradin
Ms. Alyse Lucas Corcoran and 

Mr. John L. Morrison
Dr. and Mrs. Eugene H. Cordes
Ms. Ellyn Corey and  

Mr. Thomas Sartor
Ms. Jessica Cork
Dr. Lynn D. Cornell
Ms. Jill Cornwell and  

Mr. Barry Nelson
Mr. Rod Corvo
Dr. and Mrs. Michael F. Coscia
Ms. Cathy Costin and  

Mr. Mitchell Reback
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Cotton
Ms. Christina M. Coulourides
Mr. and Mrs. William M. Coulter
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Couric
Mr. Glenn Courtney
Dr. Shawn Cowper and  

Dr. Carolyn Rambus
Mr. Jeremy Cowperthwaite
Cox Farms Virginia
Ms. Susan K. Cox-Stouffer
Mr. Mark A. Craig
Mr. Erik Crank and  

Mrs. Laura Arbilla
Ms. Lisa M. Cremin and  

Mr. W. Bruce Harlan
Dr. Melinda D. Crenshaw
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Crenshaw
Ms. Linda K. Criminger
Mr. John Cristiano
Ms. Ruth Crites
Ms. Eleanor B. Crook
Dr. Catherine Cross
Mrs. Louis C. Crouch
Mr. and Mrs. Dwight Crowder
Areta Crowell
Mr. Jonathan Crowell
Mr. Charles L. Crum Jr.
Mr. Christopher Cruz
Ms. Judy M. Culbreath
Culver Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. J. Bart Culver
Mr. John F. Cummings
Mr. Robert A. Cunningham
Mr. Danny E. Cupit
Mr. Daniel J. Curran
Ms. Susan M. Curran
Ms. Donna J. Currie
Ms. Susan Jane Curtis
Ms. Jean Cypher
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Czarnezki
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D’Adamo
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Dahlberg
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron Dales
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Dalton

Ms. Julia Dancy
Ms. Lynette C. Daniel
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Daniel
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S. 

Danielsen
Ms. Ann Dannenberg and  

Mr. Glenn D. Rosen
Ms. Alice Daugherty and  

Mr. Norman Stenzel
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Mr. Carl Davenport
Mr. Daniel H. Davenport
Ms. Margaret C. Davey
Dr. Richard J. Davey
Mr. Thomas W. Davidson and 

Ms. Susan J. Martin
Mr. Alan J. Davino
Dr. Alison E. Davis
Ms. Barbara M. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Erroll B. Davis Jr.
Davis Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Frank T. Davis Jr.
Mr. James L. Davis
Mr. Joseph W. Davis
Mr. Larry E. Davis and  

Ms. Paula J. Quell
Ms. Livia Davis-Jefferies
Mr. Durfee Day
Dr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Mr. and Mrs. David L. De Ford
Mr. Matthew De Galan
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph De Leo
Ms. Angeles de Leon and  

Mr. Kamal Khanna
Dr. Joanne De Phillips
Mr. Walter De Treux III
Mr. P. De Villiers
Dr. Philip Dean and  

Dr. Linda Church
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

DeBenedittis
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. DeBorde
Ms. Ann Marie Dechman
Dr. Patricia L. Dedert and  

Dr. Michiel E. Ultee
Mr. David A. DeFehr
Mr. David J. Deffinbaugh
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Deichler
Mr. Edward S. Delaplaine II
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Delgado
Reverend Catherine B.  

Dempesy-Sims
Ms. Françoise E. Denis
Mr. George Timothy Denley
Mr. Daniel W. Dennison
Mrs. Marg Denny
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Derry
Ronak and Bansari Desai

Madhav Deshaval
Ms. Sarah Deutsch and  

Mr. Eli Eilbott
Mr. and Mrs. Roger DeVries
Dexion Foundation
Ms. Amity Dey
Rev. and Mrs. Donald N. Dial
Mr. Timothy Diaz
Dr. Claudia C. Dickerson and 

Mr. Wayne Grinstead
Dickson Family Fund
Mr. Robert E. Diebold
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. 

Dieckmann
Ms. Marion Diener
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Dillon
Ms. Jean Marie Dillon
Ms. Susan Dillon
Ms. Carol Dirks
Mr. David H. Dixon
Ms. Sue Ellen Dobie
Mr. Michael Dodd
Dr. Virginia M. Dodd and  

Ms. Fan Watson
Mr. William R. Dodge and  

Ms. Cynthia Chertos
Dr. Daniel W. Dodgen
Ms. Mary Jane Dodson
Mr. William Doerrer
Mr. Joseph P. Dominguez and 

Mr. Robert Burkholder
Mr. Ronald Doney and  

Mr. Michael Allard
Mr. Victor Donnay
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Donnelly
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn R. Doshay
Ms. Rebecca Dowdakin and  

Ms. Flora McMartin
Ms. Irene Dowdy
Ms. Betsy Downey
Ms. Beverly Patricia Downing and 

Mr. Jefferson Davis
Dr. Deborah D. Downs and  

Dr. Rami R. Razouk
Dr. Stephen M. Downs
Ms. Mary L. Dresser
Dr. Martin Drey and  

Ms. Debbie Davenport
Dr. Joseph D. Driskill and  

Ms. Leslie Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelis J. Drost
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Drotts
Ms. Cindy Drozda
Mrs. Faye S. Drummond
Mr. Robert W. Ducsay
Ms. Maureen Dudley
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Duggan
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Dull
Ms. Lisa A. Dunavin
Ms. Joyce C. Duncan and  

Mr. Thomas M. Zeller

Ms. Deborah Dunevant
Mr. Pierce Dunn and  

Ms. Barbara Hoyt
Mr. and Mrs. Jon E. Durbin
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Durbin
Ms. Bertha B. Duvernay
Ms. Beri Dwyer
Dr. David E. Dwyer and  

Dr. Heidi Lindroth
Ms. Judy A. Dwyer
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Dye
Dr. Brad Dyke and  

Dr. Sarah Cookinham
Ms. Marilyn K. Eaton
Ms. Deborah Ebster
Mr. Edward L. E. Eckert
Mr. and Mrs. George H.  

Eddings Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Bert P. Eder Sr.
Dr. Brenda K. Edwards
Ms. Genelle Edwards
Col. (Ret.) Ronald A. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. Edmund A. Egan
Ms. Laura M. Egger
Mr. Carolyn A. Egle
Ms. Irene A. Ehret
Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
Ms. Lisa Eisenacher
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ekman
Dr. Mouradi B. Elchahal
Mr. and Mrs. Eldon Eller
Mr. Al W. Ellis
Mr. Joseph E. Ellovich
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Elmhorst
Dr. Jill Endres
Mr. Michael K. Eng
Dr. Mary Jane England
Ms. Patricia H. Enmon
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Epstein
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley L. Erney
Dr. and Mrs. Trent Erney
Ms. Catherine M. Erny
Ms. Evelyne M. Eshelman
Mr. Joseph W. Esherick and  

Ms. Wa Ye
Mr. Daniel Esrey
Mr. Robert J. Essick
Mr. José A. Esteves
The Eureka Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. David Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Edward R. Evans
Ms. Helen S. Evans
Evans Insulation Company
Mr. Joseph W. Evans
Dr. and Mrs. Martin E. Evans
Ms. Sandra L. Evans
Mr. Stephen Evans
Dr. Suzanne F. Evans and  

Dr. Carl Kalani Beyer
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Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Mr. Thomas W. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin L. Everitt
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Everly
Ms. Kathy Evitts
Mr. Michael K. Ewert
Dr. and Mrs. Edward Ewing
Mrs. Susan Ewing
Mr. and Mrs. Michael P. Fahey
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Fairbrother
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd Fark
Ms. Annette Farley
Dr. Harlicia F. Farley
The Reverend Dr. Leroy Fassett
Dr. Catherine A. Faver
Dr. Joseph M Feczko and  

Ms. Leighton Gleicher
Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Feeney
Mr. and Mrs. William S. 

Fehsenfeld
Mr. Jay M. Feinman and  

Ms. Carole A. Wood
Ms. Carol Feinstein
Mr. and Mrs. Henry David 

Fellows Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Mr. and Mrs. David R. Fengler
Mr. and Mrs. Michael F. Feno
Mr. and Mrs. Robert P. Ferrell
Ms. Lynda Fife
Mr. and Mrs. Norman P.  

Findley III
Mr. Erik Finley
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory K. Finn
Bob and Bette Finnigan
Mr. Christian Fischer
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth W. Fischer
Mr. and Mrs. Harry H. Fish
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Fisher
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Fite
Ms. Sara J. Fitzgerald
Mr. Kevin D. Fitzpatrick Jr.
Mr. Christophe Flament
Mr. and Mrs. William Flanagan
Mr. David Fleming
Ms. Ruthann Marie Fleming
Ms. Rhonda F. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Mr. Perry Flinn
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Flood
Floradon Foundation
Ms. Sarah L. Flosi
Ms. Patricia M. Flowers
Ms. Margaret Flynn
Ms. Mary Jane Fogle
Ms. Frieda E. Foland and  

Mr. Terry E. Foland
Mr. and Mrs. William Foley
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Folk
Ms. Pegi Follachio

J. Forbes
Mr. Andrew Foreman
Mr. John S. Forrer
Mr. Leo C. Forrest
Ms. Sumarie Bass Forrester
Ms. Barbara L. Forster
Mr. Frederick L. Forster
Dr. Jane E. Fossum
Ms. Kristin Fossum
Ms. Joan Foster
Ms. Martha Ann Foster
Ms. Karen Fouad
Mr. Jim Fournier
Mr. Theodore M. Fowler Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Dale Fox Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Fox
Mr. Michael Francini and  

Ms. Alys Milner
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. 

Francisco
A. J. Frank Family Foundation
Mr. Paul A. Frank
Mr. Paul R. Frank
Dr. Mary B. Frankis
Mr. Robert L. Frankland
Dr. Andrea Frantz
Ms. Ronna A. Freiberg and  

Mr. William M. Wise
Dr. Christopher P. French
Mr. Eugene Frey
Jan Frey
Mr. David Friedman
Mr. John Fries
Dr. Max L. Fritzler and  

Ms. Gayle Haugen
Mr. and Mrs. John Fry
Dr. Colony Fugate
Mr. David E. Fuller
Gregory L. and Carol H. 

Fullerton
Ms. Marilyn B. Funderburk
Ms. Mary P. Gabay
Mr. Billy Gabor
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley A. Galanski
Ms. Julie Galbraith
Ms. Kyle R. Galbraith
Ms. Tara Gallagher
Mr. Thomas J. Gallagher
Mr. Tracy Gallagher
Ms. Carol Gallant
Ms. Sherry Gandee
Mr. David J. Garcia and  

Ms. Maya Suryaraman
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Gard
Dr. Cynthia Gardner
Mr. Raymond Garea
Mr. Lester L. Garrison
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Garver
Mrs. Karen B. Gatewood
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Gaupp

Dr. Shari Gelber and  
Dr. Adam Ratner

Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. 
Geoghegan

Ms. Irene George
Mr. and Mrs. Varghese R. George
Dr. Ann L. Gerhardt
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Gerleit
Mr. Mark H. German
Ms. Liliane V. Gersh
Mrs. Will R. Getz
Ms. Sharon C. Gibb
Mr. Eric M. Gibber
Dr. Mark C. Gibson
Ms. Joni L. Giese
Mr. Peter A. Gilbert and  

Ms. Cynthia Char
Mr. Keith T. Gillen
Mr. Douglas Gillingham and  

Ms. Dana L. Friehauf
Dr. Pat Ingle Gillis
Ms. Patricia F. Gilmartin
Ms. Melissa J. Gilstrap
Mr. Allen Gimenez
Mr. and Mrs. Verlin L. Gingerich
Mr. John A. Ginther
Mr. Dale B. Giulieri
Ms. Jean F. Givens and  

Mr. Carter G. Hackney
Giving Liberally
Ms. Clevie E. Gladney
Ms. Sabrina C. Glaser
Mr. Robert K. Glass
Mr. and Mrs. Gary W. Glasscock
Dr. James F. Glockner
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Glose
Mr. and Mrs. Jere W. Glover
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Glover
Ms. Terri Gloyna
Mr. Bobby D. Godbee
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Mr. Alan R. Goff
Mr. Judd Goldberg
Dr. Richard H. Goldberg
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Golden
Ms. Shelley G. Goldsmith
Ms. Lisa D. Goldstein
Dr. Kathryn Gonzalez
Mr. James E. Goodson
Mr. and Mrs. Evan H. Goodwin
Mr. Robert M. Gorbould
Dr. Patricia C. Gordin and  

Mr. Lawrence A. Gordin
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford Gordon
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Gorzek
Mrs. Julia Goss
Dr. Esther M. Goudsmit
Mr. John Grady
Mr. Matthew C. Grady

Dr. Allen H. Graeve and  
Ms. Valerie A. Saul

Ms. Mary K. Graf
Mr. and Mrs. Milton Graff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Graham
Dr. and Mrs. Samuel Graham
Mr. James Grahn
Ms. Marlys Gramley
Dr. Cherlyn S. Granrose
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Grant
Mr. and Mrs. Pirie J. Grant
Mr. Roderick M. Grant
Ms. Sharon L. Grant
Ms. Jean Grant-Dooley
Mr. and Mrs. Rex L. Granum
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Paula Grasso
Dr. Paul N. Gray
Greater Greenville Family Health
Dr. and Mrs. Garrett Green
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Ms. Ann M. Greene
Mr. Bob Greene and  

Ms. Leslie Ellen Brown
The Greenhouse Church
Dr. and Mrs. James F. Greenleaf
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Greenstein
Ms. Patsy Greenup
Mr. E. Alex Gregory
Dr. and Mrs. David Grenda
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Joanne and Tim Griffin
Dr. Leslie C. Griffin
Ms. Sarah H. Griffin
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. Dennis E. Grimes
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy H. Grimm
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Grimsbo
Mr. John E. Grimsley
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Gritman
Ms. Michele A. Gronda
Mr. and Mrs. William A. Gross
Ms. Jackie T. Grosse
Dr. and Mrs. Mark Grove
Ms. Georgia Grummon
Ms. Cathy Guidetti
Ms. Sonya H. Guidry
Vivian Hays Guthrie Charitable 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Gutierrez
Ms. Aneta Gutrich
Ms. Joan B. Haan
Ms. Linda D. Haas
Ginnie and Peter Haas Jr. Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Hackett
Mr. Stephen Hadler and  

Ms. Claudia Fedarko
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Hagen
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Hagens
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Mr. Ray Hagrman
Mr. and Mrs. Emmett M. Hale
Mr. Robert P. Hale
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall
Ms. Jane Beaumont Hall, Esq.
Ms. Margaret C. Hallenbeck
Mr. Andrew Hallowell
Ms. Marcia Halpern
Mr. David G. Halsema
Mr. Tahir Hamid
Mr. Art Hamilton
Mrs. Kathleen C. Hamilton
Ms. Louise C. Hamilton
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Mr. Roy Hamlin
Mr. Paul B. Hammond and  

Ms. Tracee Laing
Ms. Janet S. Hancock
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge A. Hanes
Ms. Mary P. Hankla
The Robert T. Hanley 

Foundation
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
Mrs. Rhonda K. Hanna
Dr. David G. Hannay
Mr. Khristopher N. Hansen
Ms. Suzanne M. Hanses
Ms. Chris Anne Hanson and  

Mr. William Vogel
Mr. Michael S. Harbert
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Harder
Ms. Lynn Hardiman
Mr. Hilliard B. Hardman
Mr. John B. Hardman
Ms. Joanne Horton Hardy
Ms. Judy C. Hardy
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Hargraves
Mr. Jay Hariz
Rev. and Mrs. William K. 

Harman
Mr. Dennis Harms and  

Ms. Susan Bergman
Ms. Sally L. Harms
Ms. Dorothy Harnish
Ms. Barbara C. Harris
Ms. Kathleen J. Harrison
Dr. Carol S. Hart
Ms. Ellen Weaver Hartman
Mr. and Mrs. George Hartz
Mr. William P. Harwell
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff D. Haskin
Mr. John S. Hathaway
Mr. Antoine G. Hatoun and  

Ms. Andrea G. Levitt
Dr. and Mrs. Roger Tim Haug
Ms. Judith J. Havens
Mr. Jan P. Havlisch
Mr. Jonathan Hawes
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy C. Hawes
Mrs. Elaine J. Hawley

Dr. Konrad Hayashi and  
Ms. Jannah Goodell

Dr. Marlit Hayslett
Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Ms. Andrea H. Hazlitt
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Healey
Dr. Patrick Hearing and  

Dr. Janet Hearing
Mr. George Heavner
Mr. Greg K. Hecht
Mr. Roger F. Heegaard
Mr. Robert B. Heinemann
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Heleine
Dr. and Mrs. Gerard L. Helinek
Mr. Merrit A. Heminway
Mrs. Ilze S. Henderson
Mr. James A. Henderson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry L. Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. Sammy Henderson
Dr. and Mrs. Michael G. Henk
Dr. David Hennerman and  

Dr. Barbara Widmer
Mr. John P. Hennessey
Dr. Louis Henry and  

Dr. Judi Henry
Mr. Ken S. Hensley
Mr. Thomas M. Hensley
The Honorable Alexis M. 

Herman
Ellen S. and Jay R. Herman
Mr. Richard Herring
Mrs. Dorene Herrmann
Ms. Janet L. Hesness
Ms. Linda A. Hesse
Mr. Willis S. Hesselroth
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Hestand
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Heywood
HGA Gifts and Apparel
Dr. and Mrs. Carlton T. Hicks
Dr. James R. Hildebrand
Mrs. Jesse Hill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Dr. David W. and Wanda Hill
Dr. Tracey Hill and Mr. Dale Hill
Ms. Patricia M. Hilpert
Ms. Pam S. Hilty
Mr. E. M. Himsworth
Mr. Joseph Hingston and  

Ms. Theresa Gladek-Hingston
Mr. Michael O. Hinson
Mr. and Mrs. William Hirt
Drs. Rich and Anne Hiskes
Dr. and Mrs. Dar-Veig Ho
Rev. and Mrs. Henry Richard 

Hoblin
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 

Hochstetler
Dr. and Mrs. James E. Hodder
Ms. Joan K. Hodgman
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Hoeprich

Ms. Barbara Anne Hoeschler
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Hoffman
Mr. Richard L. Hoffman
Ms. Tracy B. Hoffman
Ms. Beth Hogan
Mr. Paul Hogben
Mr. John R. Holder
Holder Properties
Dr. Elizabeth A. Holland
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Holm
Dr. and Mrs. William A. Holm
Dr. Thomas R. Holmes and  

Dr. Grace Holmes
Mr. Neal S. Holtzer
Pui-Jane Hon
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. 

Honigfort
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Hoogendyk
Mr. Thomas F. Hooker
Mr. Glenn R. Hoover
Ms. Michele Hoover
Mrs. Horace B. Hord
Ms. Kathy E. Horner
Ms. Estella B. Horning
Ms. Shari Hornish
Mr. David A. Hosford
Dr. Vittorio G. Hosle
Dr. and Mrs. Leslie and  

Sharon Hough
Ms. Ruth A. Hough
Ms. Marjorie E. Houghton
Mr. and Mrs. John Herbert 

Houston
Ms. Eileen Hout
Ms. Jean E. Houvener
Mr. and Mrs. Rand A. Hoven
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Howard
Mr. Ted Howe
Mr. William J. Howe
Mr. Chris Howell
Mr. and Mrs. Lembhard G. 

Howell
Dr. Diana A. Hu and  

Mr. Stephen Holve
Ms. Dianne Hu
Dr. Jeff Hubbell
Mr. and Mrs. H. Martin 

Huddleston
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. 

Huddleston
Ms. Jo Ann Hudson
Mr. and Mrs. Fritz Huebner
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth B. Huesby
Mr. Bas Hugenholtz
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hugi
Ms. Michelle M. Huhnke
Mr. and Mrs. Ming C. Hui
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen A. Hulsizer
Ms. Anne Humes
Mr. David C. Humm

Mr. Russell N. Humphrey
Mr. and Mrs. William C. 

Humphries
Ms. Mary Hoffman Hunt
Mr. Peter D. Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Hunt
Mr. John D. Hunter
The Hurd Foundation
Ms. Sher Hurlburt
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Hurst
Mr. Elvin W. Hurst
Ms. Rebekah Huskamp
Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. 

Hutchinson
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen M. Hux
Mr. and Mrs. John Hyde
Ms. Diane M. Ichiyasu
Mr. James Iden and  

Ms. M. Evangeline Samora
Ms. Jacqueline Ikeda
Mr. and Mrs. Albert G. Ilg
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen Imbornoni
Ms. Henna Inam
Ms. S. Reshma Inamdar
Admiral and Mrs. Bobby R. 

Inman
Ms. Lauren Irell
Mr. B. William Irlbeck
Mr. Jeffrey E. Irwin
Mr. David Iverson
Dr. Linda Izquierdo
Ms. Omega A. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. H. Craig Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Barry L. Jagoda
Ms. Maria H. Jalics
Ms. Jenny James and  

Mr. Gary Parker
Jody L. James
Ms. Anita Jamieson
Ms. Ann B. Jannetta
Mr. Paul A. Jarvis
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald M. Jarvis
Mr. Richard J. Jasculca
Ms. Isabel H. Jasinowski
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry J. Jasinowski
Ms. Barbara B. Javaras
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Jay
Dr. Attigupam R. Jayaram
Dr. Cynthia P. Jayne
Mr. Anthony Jazzar
Mr. George W. Jeffery
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Jefson
Mr. Robert D. Jenkins
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Dr. Lisa Jennings and  

Dr. David Jennings
Jenny James
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Jensen
Dr. and Mrs. Allen J. Jervey
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Robert C. Jespersen Fund
Mr. and Mrs. C. Gene Jester
Mr. Matthew Jewett
Mr. James V. Jirousek
Rev. Dr. Janice Jodock
Mr. Andrew M. Johnson
Ms. Brenda Johnson
Ms. Carolyn A. Johnson
Ms. Catherine A. Johnson
Dr. Collin B. Johnson and  

Ms. Kirsten Olson
Mr. Frederick D. Johnson
Ms. Janet F. Johnson
Ms. Jennifer A. Johnson and  

Mr. Kenneth L. Grotewiel
Mr. Jonathan D. Johnson
Ms. Karen Johnson
Ms. Karen W. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Thad Johnson
Ms. Anne T. Johnston
Ms. Jana Johnston and  

Mr. William Tomlinson
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Johnston
Mr. Eric J. Joiner
Ms. Barbara Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Boisfeuillet Jones Jr.
Mr. David W. Jones
Mr. G. Pownall Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert G. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey D. Jones
Mrs. Nancy Jane Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Reginald M. Jones
Mr. Stanley S. Jones and  

Ms. Barbara Cleveland
Mr. Stephen Jones and  

Ms. Carol Flint
Dr. and Mrs. Warren Jones
Ms. Mi Young Joo and  

Mr. Michel Biard
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Jordan
Bob and Diane Jorgensen
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Juday
Ms. Judy M. Judd
Dr. Julian Leonard Kadish
Ms. Tamar Kagan
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Kahler
Ms. MarLen Kaiser
Mr. Charles Eric Kalman
Dr. Sona Kalousdian and  

Dr. Ira Lawrence
Mr. Dale S. Kammerlohr
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Kanda
Mrs. Carol F. Kane
Mr. Nahaliel Kanfer
Ms. Audra Karasa
Mr. Subodh Karnik and  

Ms. Bethann Frillman
Emily Karr, Esq.
Mr. and Mrs. Alex Kasman
Ms. Joan Kasprowicz

Dr. Mary Jo Kasten and  
Dr. Keith Bible

Ms. Martha Kastens
Ms. Fern Katz
Ms. Myra R. Kauffman
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Kautzer
Dr. Charles D. Kay and  

Ms. Margaret Trageser-Kay
Ms. Deborah Kearney and  

Mr. Jerome Feldman
Mr. Bill Kehl
Mr. Stanley E. Kehl and  

Ms. Karen Fie
Mr. Howard P. Kehrl
Mr. James Kelleher
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Kelleher
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey S. Kelley
Mr. Michael W. Kelley and  

Ms. Jill Huchital
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Kelly
Mr. and Ms. John Kemmerer
Mr. Ralph Kemp and  

Ms. Donna Hansen
Ms. Diane Kempler
Ms. Lydia J. Kenewell
Mr. David Kennedy
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Kennedy
Ms. Nicky Kenney
Dr. and Mrs. Onnik Keshishian
Mr. Robert Kessler and  

Ms. Nancy Prahofer
Mr. Joseph M. Keto and  

Ms. Catherine M. Berger
Mr. Theodore M. Keuchel
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Keyes
Mr. Nooruddin Khan
Ms. Susan A. Kidd
Mr. David Kieltyka
Mrs. Mary Pat Killian
The Reverend Billy Kim
Dr. and Mrs. Sung-Hou Kim
Ms. Younghee Kim
Ms. Marie C. King
Ms. Mary C. Kinsey
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. 

Kirkpatrick
Dr. Erik C. Kissel
Mr. and Mrs. Larry E. Kitchel
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen E. Kitchen
Ms. Linda A. Klein
Mr. Thomas J. Klepaczyk Jr.
Ms. Barbara E. Kline
Ms. Carolyn Klinger and  

Mr. Donn Williams
Ms. Jen Klobnak
Mr. Jeffrey Knauth
Mr. Ross A. Knepper
Ms. Janice J. Knight
Mr. and Mrs. Hendrik C. 

Knipscheer
Mr. James T. Knowles

Mr. and Mrs. Wyck Knox
Ms. Julia R. Knox-Hudson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul N. Koch
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Curtis 

Kohlhaas
Ms. Margaret A. Kohnen
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy R. Kolk
Koll Family Foundation
Ms. Darlene S. Kostrub
Mr. and Mrs. Martin J. Kovach
Dr. Robert C. Kowerski
Mr. Donald Kraft
Ms. Mary C. Kraft
Dr. Stephanie Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Kraft
Mr. Orin S. Kramer
Mr. Richard S. Kramer
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas D. Kraus
Ms. Melissa A. R. Krause
Ms. Liliane Krauss
Ms. Cecelia S. Kreidler
Mr. Steven Kremm and  

Ms. Susan Corbett
Mr. Seth R. Krieger
Ms. Patricia T. Krimmel
Dr. Shyam Krishnan
Mr. and Mrs. Edward S. Kriz
Mr. John G. Kroll
Ms. Leigh-Anne Krometis
Dr. Henry Kuharic
Mr. and Mrs. Phillips Kuhl
Mrs. Martha Kuhlman
Mr. Robert J. Kunio
Dr. Bradley Kunz and  

Ms. Anne M. Brinkman
Ms. Melinda Kurtz
Mr. Alan D. Kurzweil
Ms. Debbie Kusaka
Mr. John K. Kusant Jr.
Ms. Margaret Kuwada
Dr. Arden Kwan and  

Dr. Mei Chow-Kwan
Ms. Julia I. Kyle
Ms. Celestine La Croix
Mr. and Mrs. David Lackey
Mr. and Mrs. George Y. Lai
Mr. Robert Lai
Mr. Eugene Lam
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Lamb
Dr. Matthew J. Lambert III
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lammert
Dr. Michele K. LaMothe
Mr. and Mrs. Henry G. Landau
Mrs. Eleanor A. Lane
Mr. and Mrs. James G. Lane
Ambassador and Mrs. James T. 

Laney
Mrs. Sue Lang
Mr. David E. Lange

Mr. Peter Lankford and  
Dr. Alyna Chien

Mr. and Mrs. Ray A. LaPanse
Mr. and Mrs. Bradley A. Larson
Ms. Mary Laschober
Mr. Mark V. Laseen
Mr. Dale Lathers
Ms. Susan R. Latorre
Mr. Craig B. Laub
C. B. Laub Family Foundation
Dr. Sharon L. Laubach
Mr. Steven Lavell
Ms. Joan Lavin
Mr. John W. Law and Mr. 

Thomas Moulton
Ms. Mary C. Lawlor
Ms. Dana Ann Lawrence
Mr. Robert A. Lawrence
Ms. Angelique Layton and  

Mr. Jeffrey Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Dr. Eric Leake
Mr. Tom Lease
Mr. Richard Leask and  

Ms. Barbara Means
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald W. Leavell
Mr. Joel L. Lebowitz
Ms. Jane C. Leclerc
Ms. Nina B. Lee
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney M. Lee
Tecla and Michael Legge
Mr. Gary G. Lehman
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Lehman
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford D. Leitch
Mr. David O. Leiwant
Ms. Lysa Leland
Mr. Tom Lemaire
Mr. David M. Lemal
Mr. Thomas P. Lemke
Dr. Jennifer Lennington
Ms. Nancy B. Leonard
Dr. Stephen Leppla
Ms. Elisabeth K. Lescault
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh
Ms. Marilyn R. Leung
Mr. Zachary R. Levin
Mr. and Mrs. W. Steven Lewellen
Ms. Charlyn Lewis
Ms. Leslie A. Lewis
Dr. and Mrs. David Lhowe
Mr. Scott P. Libson and Ms. 

Dorothy Rhodes
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Ligertwood
Dr. Huda Lillard and  

Dr. Dorris Lillard
Ms. Meredith Lilley
Ms. Loretta M. Lillios and  

Mr. Samuel L. Wolman
Mr. Jian Lin
Dr. Stanley M. Lindenfeld

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Beverly Lindsay, Ph.D., Ed.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. Lindsay
Dr. Peter Lindsay and  

Ms. Kate Binzen
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Lindsay
Ms. Suzanne M. Lindstrom
Mr. William H. Linginfelter
Mr. Michael L. Linhardt
Ms. E. Kirsten Linker
Mr. Christopher Linn and  

Ms. Patricia Kellison
Mr. Hugh A. Linstrom
Mr. Daniel K. Linthicum
Ms. Mary D. Linton
Ms. Elizabeth Lipsey
Mr. Arthur D. Lipson and  

Ms. Rochelle S. Kaplan
Mr. Richard Listerud
Ms. Arlene M. Little
Mr. Robert Livsey and  

Ms. Rita Liston
Mr. David Llewellyn
Ms. Henrietta Lo
Ms. Angela M. Lo Re
Mr. Paul Locher
Mr. and Mrs. George Lockhart
Dr. Verdree Lockhart Sr.
Ms. Aimee Lockwood
Mr. William Lockwood
Mr. Jim Loftis and  

Ms. Judith Billica
Mr. Joseph E. Logan
Dr. and Mrs. David L. Lohin
Ms. Kari E. Lokke
Mr. William Lombardo
Ms. Mary Kate Long and  

Ms. Debbie Zygaj
Dr. and Mrs. William F. Loos
Ms. Jane Loranger
Ms. Sandra M. Lord
Ms. Sheryl A. Louie
Mr. Christopher W. Love
Ms. Carole A. Lovinger
Mr. and Mrs. Craig R. Lowry
Dr. Barbara A. Luke
Ms. Lillian Lundeen and  

Mr. Scott Van Orsdel
Ms. Mary A. Lundergan
Mr. and Mrs. Vincent N. Lunetta
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Luongo
Mr. James Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore C. Lutz
Ms. Frances Lyman
Mr. Michael M. Lynch and  

Ms. Martha Hanson
The Honorable Noreen A. Lynch
Ms. Helen A. Lyons
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph P. Lyons
Mr. Tom Lyons
Ms. Eduarda A. MacAranas

Ms. Diane Maciejewski
Mr. Richard C. MacIntyre and 

Mr. Robert E. Head
Dr. and Mrs. James A. Mack
Mr. Christopher M. Mackey and 

Ms. Donna L. Cherniak
Ms. Janet M. Mackey
Ms. Nancy F. MacLean
Mr. and Mrs. D. Gordon 

MacLeod
Dr. Sean Madden
Mr. John Terry Maes
Ms. Drue A. Magee
Mr. and Mrs. Charlie Magill
Mr. and Mrs. Marcus R. 

Magnuson
Mr. Jonathan P. Mahaffy
Mr. Michael Maher
Mr. John A. Maier
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew B. Mair
Mr. Michael I. Makapugay
Ms. Ashley M. Makar
Dr. Lena Malik
Mr. and Mrs. Timon Malloy
Ms. Elena S. Manitzas
Ms. Melanie L. Manner and  

Mr. Rick Manner
Ms. Donna Manning
Dr. and Mrs. Peter B. Manning
Ms. Louise M. Manry
Mr. and Mrs. Domenico Manzone
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew D. Marek
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Margossian
Ms. Caroline S. Markfield
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Markham
Ms. Katherine Markham
Ms. Theresa Z. Marlow
Ms. Kathleen A. Marquardt
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Mars
Mr. Earl Marsh
Dr. and Mrs. William E. Marsh
Ms. Cassandra L. Marshall
The Honorable F. Ray Marshall
Mr. and Mrs. Aaron E. Martin
Mr. and Mrs. James D. Martin
Mr. James H. Martin
Ms. Kathleen E. Martin
Ms. Marie K. Martin
Mr. Michael K. Martin and  

Dr. Bonnie J. Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph S. Martin
Ms. Susan Martin
Ms. Suzanne Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Edward L. Martinez
Mr. Richard Martinez
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy H. Martins
Dr. Ann Martyn and  

Dr. Frank O’Brien

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Maser
Ms. Bonnie Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Keith W. Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Richard G. Massat
Ms. Suzanne E. Massey
Loris Masterton Family 

Foundation UAD
Mr. Frederick R. Masterton
Mastin-Allen Maytree Trust
Ms. Patricia A. Mathis
Mr. William K. Mathison
Dr. Carolee S. Matsumoto and 

Mr. David L. Gilbertson
Ms. Barbara P. Mattes
Dr. John Ray Mattheis
The Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Daniel P. 

Matthews
Mr. David Matthews
Dr. Mark K. Matthews and  

Dr. Ellyn E. Matthews
Dr. and Mrs. Randall Matthews
Ms. Sarah Matthews and The 

Reverend Daniel Matthews
Mr. Karl H. Matthies
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Mattia
Mr. Dennis Matzner
Ms. Katharine W. Mauer
Mr. Michael John Mauriel
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Max
Mr. and Mrs. Roy Mayfield
Ms. Anna L. Mayne
Mr. Robert T. and Susan H. 

Mayne
Ms. Dorothy A. Mayweather
Mr. and Mrs. Riyad Maznavi
Dr. and Mrs. William J. Mazzei
Mr. Dominic C. Mazzone
Ms. Enid E. McAdoo
Mr. Steven K. McAllister
Mr. and Mrs. Donald K. McBride
Mr. and Mrs. Mark McBride
Mr. and Mrs. David T. McCabe
Mr. Edward A. McCallum
Mr. and Mrs. John B. 

McCammon
Mr. and Mrs. Mike McCamon
Ms. Teresa J. McCanlies
Deborah and Stephen McCarter
Jean Ann and Barry McCarthy
Dr. Paul J. McCarthy
Dr. Susan A. McCarthy
Mr. Michael McCarty
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. McCleary
The McCloskey Family Trust
Mr. Brian McClure
Mr. Patrick H. McCollough
Ms. Erin K. McConahey
Mr. and Mrs. Michael 

McConahey

Ms. Sandra L. McCoy-Cleveland 
and Mr. David Cleveland

Mr. and Mrs. Charles N. 
McCullough

Mrs. Sandra A. McCurdy
Ms. Florence McCutcheon
The McCutcheon Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James F. 

McDermott
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew McDonald
Mrs. Jean D. McDow
Mr. and Mrs. David P. McElroy
Ms. J. E. McElroy
Mr. and Mrs. Carl McElwee
Mr. and Mrs. Fred T. McGregor
Ms. Sharon McGregor
Mr. Daniel McGuire
Ms. Patty A. McGuire
Ms. Sharon McIlrath
Mr. and Mrs. James T.  

McIntyre Jr.
Ms. Marilyn McKay and  

Mr. George S. Rhyneer
Mrs. Kati McKee
Ms. Pamela W. McKee
Dr. Margaret Anne McKenna
Dr. Matthew T. McKenna
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A. McKenna
Mr. and Mrs. Wade F. McKenzie
McKinney Family Foundation
Marni McKinney Foundation
Mr. Robert H. McKinney
Dr. and Mrs. William D. 

McKinney Jr.
Mr. Richard S. McKnight and  

Mr. William T. Schuyler
Reverend Leslie McKown
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. 

McLafferty Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Myron D. McLain
John Luther McLean and  

Isabelle Gray McLean Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Edward McLean
Ms. Dilcia A. McLenan-Brent
Mr. Gerard S. McLoughlin
Dr. Steven W. McMillen
Mr. and Mrs. David J. McMorris
Mr. and Mrs. John McMullen
Mr. and Mrs. Scott McMurray
Dr. Rene McNall-Knapp
Ms. Yone C. McNally and  

Mr. Scott Horngren
Mr. and Mrs. Reginald McNutt
Ms. Virginia L. McPhearson
Mr. James J. McQueeny
Ms. Alice B. McReynolds
Mrs. Nadeen McShane
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S. 

McTeague
Ms. Jamie L. Meacham
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Ms. Janice A. Mears
Dr. Richard L. Meehan
Ms. Jean M. Meek and  

Mr. George Meek
Ms. Leila Meghji
Mr. Jim Megna
Dr. Lee Mei
Mr. William Meier
Mrs. Mathias Meinzinger
Ms. Mary Louise Mele
Mr. Peter Melideo
Mr. Donald E. Melnick
Mr. John R. Melzer
Mr. Tom A. Mendel
Mr. Eric Meng
Mr. Martin N. Mercer
Dr. and Mrs. Christopher Meriam
Mr. and Mrs. Dale M. Merrell
Ms. Deborah A. Merriam
Ms. Cynthia A. Merrill
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Merrill
Ms. Cama C. Merritt
Ms. Lucy D. Metcalf
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Meteer Jr.
Dr. Gary L. McKown and  

Ms. Jill M. Meuser
Dr. David K. Meyerholz
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Meyerson
Mr. Maurice F. Meysenburg
Mr. Richard A. Michalski and  

Ms. Anne Theresa Frates
Mr. Philippe Michelet
Mr. Thomas C. Michels
Dr. and Mrs. John C. 

Middlebrooks
Ms. Natalia Migal and  

Mr. Bradley Kozak
Ms. Mihoko S. Miki
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Millar
Ms. Ann G. Miller
Ms. Betty Miller
Mr. Bruce Miller and  

Ms. Louise Davidson
Mr. and Mrs. D. Kris Miller
Ms. Elizabeth W. Miller
Ms. Ellen V. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey C. Miller
Mrs. Judy Zaban Miller and  

Mr. Lester Miller
Ms. Lorraine D. Miller
Dr. O. Fred Miller III
Ms. Phyllis A. Miller
Mr. Raymond Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. William Miller
Dr. Carolanne Milligan and  

Dr. Eric K. Findeis
Dr. and Mrs. Wayne Milloy
Mr. Roy E. Mills

Mr. Stuart Mills and  
Mrs. Helen Probst Mills

Ms. Patricia Miner
Dr. G. Irene Minor
Mr. and Mrs. Clifton D. Mitchell
Ms. Constance J. Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. James M. 

Mitchelson
Ms. Lacy R. Mitri
Dr. Imogene M. Mixson
Ms. Cristina L. Miyar
Mobley & Associates
Mr. Dennis R. Mobley
Ms. Anne Modarressi
Mr. Vighneswara R. R. Mokkarala
Mr. and Mrs. Charles P. Monastra
Ms. Lou Ann Montana and  

Mr. James Pflugrath
Mr. Craig Montell
Mr. Andrew Montgomery and  

Dr. Elizabeth Lawrence
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph C. 

Montgomery
Mr. and Mrs. Scott T. 

Montgomery
Mrs. Beverly J. Moody
Ms. Diana Moon
Dr. Cathleen Moore
Moore Family Foundation
Mr. Ronald N. Moore
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald W. Moore
Mr. John J. Moores Sr.
Ms. Anne Cherie Moos
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Moran
Ms. Emily H. Moreland
Rev. and Mrs. Michael Morgan
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Morgan
Mr. and Mrs. Joel V. Morris Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. N. Hart Morris
Ms. Susan Morris
Mr. Ralph R. Morrison
Mr. Emory L. Morsberger
Ms. Jill L. Mortensen and  

Ms. Sharon Kay Phillips
Ms. Victoria K. Mortensen
Mrs. Serena Moss
Ms. Christina W. Moulson
Mr. Jerome D. Mrokowski
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Mueting
Mr. and Mrs. Enrico Mugnaini
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Muirhead
Mr. Ashutosh S. Mujumdar
Dr. and Mrs. Sal Mukho
Ms. Wenda Pyman Mullenbach
Ms. Lynette Mullens
Mr. and Mrs. Terence A. Mullervy
Fr. John D. Mulqueen
Mr. Paul Multari and  

Ms. Lynn Gardner
Ms. Kristin Mulzer

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher G. 
Mumford

Mr. and Mrs. Venkat 
Mummalaneni

Dr. and Mrs. Robert S.  
Munford III

Mr. James L. Munoz
Mr. Robert R. Munoz and  

Ms. Pamela J. Hughes
Dr. and Mrs. James Murakami
Dr. Christine Murphy
Mr. Desmond L. Murphy
Mr. Gary A. Murphy
Ms. Eleanor Murphy
Ms. Christi Murray
Mr. Roger A. Musolf
Dr. James S. Musumeci
Mr. and Mrs. Jon F. Myers
Ms. Debra Mykkanen
Dr. Stephanie Nacouzi
Mr. Rajeev Y. Nagar
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Nagle
Ms. Vivian T. Nagy
Ms. Cynthia C. Nakasato
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Nard
Nash Family Giving Fund
Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Natoli
Ms. Rose Navarro and  

Mr. Ronald Leahy
Dr. and Mrs. John J. Naveau
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew D. Naveau
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Neal
Mr. and Mrs. John Neer
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel H. Neff
Ms. Doris W. Neilson
Ms. Lisa A. Nelms
Mr. George Nelsen and  

Ms. Therese Simon
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Mr. Douglas W. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Nelson
Ms. Karen M. Nelson
Mr. and M. Edwin Nelson
Dr. Ramona Nelson and  

Mr. Glenn Nelson
Mr. Robert B. Nelson
Mrs. Achsah H. Nesmith
Pamela and Paul Ness
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Nester
Win & Christie Neuger Family 

Foundation
Mr. Win Neuger and  

Dr. Christie Neuger
New Ventures
Mr. Dana Newbauer and  

Dr. Lisa Nocera
Ms. Lisa B. Newlin and  

Mr. Allan C. Cave Jr.
The Newton Family Fund

Ms. Virginia M. Newton
Mr. Hai Nguyen
Mr. Daniel R. Nicholson
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Nickles
Mr. Clayton Nicks
Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Nigro
Mr. Eric Nitzberg
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Nowak
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Nowicki
The NPP Charitable Fund
The Colleen & Sam Nunn Family 

Foundation
The Honorable and  

Mrs. Samuel A. Nunn Jr.
Nurse Practitioner Healthcare 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Nygaard
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Nygard
Ms. Audrey Quay Oaks
Mr. Steven C. Oaks
Ms. Ursula Oaks
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Obey
Mr. David O’Brien
Miss Nancy Lee Oetter
Ms. Marianne Ofenloch
Mr. John Oglesby
Dr. Robert W. Okerblom
Dr. Mark D. Okusa and  

Dr. Diane Rosin
Mr. and Mrs. Rick Oliver
Mr. and Mrs. Cory Olson
Dr. David Olson
Mr. David Olson
Mr. John Olsson
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Ms. Kathleen Orange
Ms. Llelanie S. Orcutt
Dr. Edward T. Ordman
Oriental Weavers USA
Ms. Elaine G. Orland
Mr. Patrick O’Rourke
Dr. Reginald Ashley Orr
Ms. Gina Orton
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Osgood
Dr. and Mrs. James G. Osgood
Mr. Thomas R. Osowski
Dr. Matthew Oster and  

Dr. Alexandra Oster
Mr. and Mrs. Ivan Otterness
Ms. Karen B. Ouzts and  

Mr. Bill Petuskey
Ms. Sue Overdevest
Ms. Sue Ann Overman
Mr. David K. Owen
Ms. Kim L. Owen and  

Ms. Pamela Owen
Dr. Adelekan Oyejide
Mr. and Mrs. C. H. Ozbun
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Mr. Andrew H. Pace
Ms. Jane B. Pace
Pacific Nails Company
Mrs. Nancy M. Packard
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Paddison
Mr. Visvanatha Padmanabhan
Mr. Robert W. Page Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gary E. Pakulla
Ms. Joan A. Panabaker
Dr. Jenny Pang and  

Dr. Jeffrey Sullivan
Paradigm Medical Services, P.C.
Dr. and Mrs. Keith B. Paredes
Dr. and Mrs. Nikhil J. Parekh
Mr. and Mrs. Doug N. Park
Mr. Richard A. Park
Ms. Mary Y. Parr
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Parrott
Ms. Rebecca J. Parsons
Ms. Jeanne L. Parvin
Mrs. Robert A. Pastor
Mr. and Mrs. Arvind M. Patel
Dr. and Mrs. Rajan Patel
Dr. Seema K. Patel
Dr. and Mrs. Sidharth C. Patel
Ms. Jacqueline F. Patterson
Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Leo H. 

Patterson
Ms. Monica F. Patterson
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher D. 

Patton
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Patton Jr.
Ms. Nicholas H. Paul
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Inman 

Payne
Mr. Jerry M. Payne
Ms. Judith E. Payne
Mr. and Mrs. Mark J. Pazder
PBH Charitable Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Sam L. Pearson
Mr. and Mrs. Perry Peckham
Mr. Jim Pederson and  

Dr. Karen Pederson
Ms. Rebecca L. Penick
Mr. Ken Penner
Mr. and Mrs. William H. 

Penniman
Perforce Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Perkins
Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey Perrott
Mr. Ralph T. Perry and  

Mrs. Mary Louise Seldenfleur
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas C. Perry
Ms. Linda K. Persohn
Dr. Marjie L. Persons
Ambassador Mary Ann Peters
Ms. Penelope S. Peters
Mr. and Mrs. Henry T. Peterson
Dr. John T. Peterson and  

Dr. Mary A. Vander Maten

Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Peterson
Mr. and Mrs. Todd L. Peterson
Mr. George R. Petrick
Mr. Francis A. Petrus
Mr. Walter Pezet and  

Ms. Fae Daniels
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Pfister
Mr. and Mrs. David Phelps
Mr. and Mrs. Harry H. Phillips
Mr. James M. Phillips
Mr. John C. Phillips
Mr. William R. Phillips
Ms. Elisabeth Phillipson
Ms. Rebecca J. Picard
The Honorable Thomas R. 

Pickering
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Pieper
Mr. Charles A. Pigott
Mr. and Mrs. Kent E. Ping
Mrs. Patricia Pinkos
Ms. Veronica J. Pinto
Scott and Margaret Piper
Ms. Nancy A. Pitera
Mr. J. Randall Pitman
Mr. Larry W. Pittman
Pittman Plants
Ms. Karen Lee Platis
Terry Platt
Dr. Robert French and  

Dr. Pamela Pletcher
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Plum
Mr. Dan Buttimer and  

Dr. Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer
Mr. John Poertner
Dr. Rebecca Pogue
Mrs. Linda A. Pollard
Mrs. Annette J. Polston
Ms. Susie Q. Pomares
Mr. and Mrs. John Michael 

Pongracz
Ms. Alice Pool
Dr. William Wade Pope
Ms. Louisa B. Popkin
Lester Poretsky Family 

Foundation
Ms. Arlene Porter
Mr. and Mrs. Brian M. Porter
Dr. and Mrs. Joe W. Posey
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Potrzeba
Mr. John R. Potter
Mr. and Mrs. David Powell
Mr. and Mrs. T. W. Powell
Mr. Thomas A. Power
Mr. Bruno Preaux
Ms. Velma W. Pressly
Ms. Patricia Preston
Mr. and Mrs. J. Stephen 

Prestwood
Ms. Helen Smith Price

Ms. Jane L. Price
Mr. John Price
Ms. Susan S. Priest
Mrs. Jenny S. Pruitt
Mr. Alva L. Pugsley Jr.
Ms. Anne L. Putnam
Mr. Thomas G. Pyatt
Ms. Laura G. Qualls
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm P.  

Quillen Jr.
Ms. Sally Quinby
Ms. Nancy V. Quinlan
Dr. James Quinn
Mr. Nathan P. Quiring
Ms. Pamela Quirk Becker
Ms. Diana C. Quirk
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Quirk
Mr. Andrew Raamot and  

Dr. Christy Rentmeester
Mr. Christopher Radko
Dr. Russell B. Rainey and  

Dr. Cheryl A. Rainey
Mr. William L. Raiser
Dr. and Mrs. Donald J. Raithel
Mr. Wade A. Rakes and  

Mr. Nicholas T. Miller
Mr. Vijay Raman
Ms. Linda L. Ramsey
Mr. and Mrs. Wallace L. Rank
Dr. Mark Rapaport and  

Ms. Jacqueline Calavan
Mr. Leonard Rappe
Mr. Richard J. Rappoport
Mr. and Mrs. John Rathmell
Mr. Richard E. Ratliff
Ms. Judith A. Rattmann
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Rausch
Ms. Sandra L. Rausch
Ms. Rebecca L. Rawls
Mrs. Sam T. Ray
Mrs. Sandra Ray
Ms. Elizabeth Raycroft
Mr. Douglas T. Raymond and  

Ms. Hannelore Wagner
Mr. and Mrs. F. Douglas 

Raymond III
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Ream Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Roger H. Reckers
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan Reckford
Ms. Shirley M. Reddick
Mr. Shyam Reddy and  

Ms. Renée Dye
Roopa and Vishnu Reddy
Mr. Richard S. Redman
Ms. Florence M. Reese
Ms. Ann E. Reeves
Dr. Monique M. Regard
Ms. Rosemary Regis and  

Mr. David W. DeRamus

Daniel L. and Sophie K. Reiber 
Charitable Trust

Mr. Al B. Reid
Ms. C. Joanne Reid
Mr. Richard M. Reilly
Ms. Johanna Ellis Reisinger
Ms. Betty M. Reiss
Ms. Kimberly J. Rendleman
Ms. Susan Renno
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Reppke
Ms. A. Louisa Rettew
Dr. Charles F. Reynolds III
Mr. and Mrs. David S. Reynolds
Mr. Mike Reynolds
Ms. Paula G. Reynolds
RFB Advertising
Dr. and Mrs. James G. Rheinwald
Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Rice
Dr. Steve Anthony Rich
Susan and Robert Richane
Ms. Gina T. Richard and  

Mr. Eric Cox
Ms. Pamela Richard
Mr. Bruce C. Richardson
Dr. Malcolm L. Richardson
Dr. Matt Richburg
Ms. Sally Rich-Kolb
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew T. 

Richmond
Dr. David Richmond
Mr. Evan Lee Richmond
Ms. Marilynn Richtarik and  

Mr. Matt Bolch
Ms. Helen E. Rider
Dr. Eleanor Rieffel
The Honorable Richard W. Riley
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald F. Ritsema
Mr. E. Hearst Roane
Nora Roberts Family Foundation
Mrs. Stanley Roberts
Mr. Jerry B. Roberts
Ms. Andrea Robertson
Ms. Arlene Robertson
Mr. and Mrs. John Barron 

Robertson
Loydel Robertson
Mr. Christopher Robinson and 

Ms. Mary Anne Mullins
Ms. Ellen Robinson
Mr. G. Chase Robinson Jr.
Dr. Harriet L. Robinson
Ms. Janessa R. Robinson
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Robinson
Mr. Larry Rockefeller
Dr. Daniel Rodeheaver and  

Dr. Denise Rodeheaver
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Rodgers
Dr. Juan Rodriguez
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Rodriguez
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Ms. Florence Rogers and  
Ms. Janet Ainsworth

Dr. Michael P. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Peter T. Rogers
Ms. Wendy B. Rohman
Dr. Judith C. Rohrer
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Rollins
Ms. Jean R. Rollins and  

Mr. Ed Boatner
Ms. Ruth W. Rollins
Dr. Paul M. Roman and  

Ms. Terry C. Blum
Ms. Marsha Rooks
Mike Roos & Company
Mr. Michael Y. Roos
Mr. Brian H. Ross and  

Ms. Cheryl Sullivan
Dr. James A. Ross
Mr. Stephen Ross
Mr. and Mrs. Rob Rosztoczy
Mrs. Nancy Lee Roth
Ms. Joan Rouse
Dr. Benoit Rousseau and  

Dr. Rie Ishii
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Rowe
Mr. Michael S. Royce and  

Ms. Alexis Rappaport
Ms. Cynthia L. Rubens
Ms. Mary Lee Ruddle
Ms. Margaret A. Rue
Ms. Sara L. Rugg
Mr. Jerry T. Rupley and  

Dr. Mary Rupley
Mr. Richard E. Rush
Dr. and Mrs. Jim Russ
Mr. Kenneth R. Russell
Ms. Trina P. Russell
Ms. Wondie Russell and  

Mr. Edward Steinman
Ms. Ann M. Rust
Dr. George S. Rust and  

Dr. Cynthia T. Rust
Dr. Marion L. Rust
Mr. M. Duane Rutledge
Ms. Betty W. Rutter
Ms. Jane Ryan
Mr. John E. Ryan
Mr. Kenneth Lewis Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas M. Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Ryan
The S & C Harvest Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald D. Saake
Sacajawea Charitable Foundation
Mr. Jay Sachs and  

Ms. Mary De Voe
Mr. Ahmed Salama
Ms. Ruth A. Salinger
Ms. Susan Sanazaro
Dr. Hilary Sandall
Mr. Myron L. Sandberg

Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sandberg-Larsen
Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Sanders
Hon. William F. Sanderson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Carl W. Sandlin
Dr. and Mrs. John Santmann
Mr. Craig Santos
Dr. Jonathon D. Saphier and  

Rev. Margaret K. Saphier
Mr. and Mrs. Ashish D. Sarkar
Mr. Golam Sarker
Nathan & Shelly Sarkisian 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. J. Neal Sasser Jr.
Dr. David Satcher
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Satre
Mr. Richard H. Sauers
Mr. and Mrs. John Saukaitis
Mrs. Michael R. Saunders
Dr. Maria Sauzier
Dr. Brenda Flowers Savage
Dr. John Savage
Mr. D. Jack Sawyer Jr. and  

Dr. Bill Torres
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Sawyer
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Sawyer
Mr. William D. Saxon
Mr. and Mrs. Ron Saxton
Mr. Thomas R. Saylor
Mr. Carl G. Scala
Mr. Thomas F. Scanlan
Ms. Barbara Schacht and  

Ms. Lillian Wiegel
Ms. Ann Schaefer
Mr. James V. Schaefer and  

Ms. Gabrielle Tazzia
Ms. Grace K. Schafer
Ms. Carol E. Scharfer
Dr. and Mrs. Bradley J. Scheel Jr.
Mr. Alan M. Scheider
Dr. Elinor A. Scheirer
Ms. Mary Lee Schell
Mr. Sanford H. Schenbart
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Schentrup
Dr. Rebecca Scherzer
Mr. Walter Schier
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Schiferl
Ms. Anne Schlagenhaft
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Schlake
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. 

Schmerker
Ms. Barbara J. Schmid
Dr. Klaus Wilhelm Schmidt-Rohr
Ms. Sara L. Schnur
Ms. Ann Schoenfeld
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Schoenfeld
Dr. Joseph M. Schoening
Ms. Anne-Marie Scholer
Mr. Eric J. Scholl
Mr. Philip R. Scholly

Dr. Frances Schoonmaker
Mr. Craig Schopmeyer
Mr. John Schopp
Mr. Jerry Schreiber and  

Ms. Carla Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Schreiber
Mrs. Maryann E. Schreiner
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Schuette
The Schultz Foundation
Mrs. Frederick H. Schultz
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Schumacher
Mr. and Mrs. Lee W. Schumann
Dr. Audrey L. Scollan and  

Dr. Neil J. Scollan
Lloyd F. Scott and Ann B. Scott
Ms. Donna Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Earl A. Scott
Ms. Judith A. Scott
Mr. Kirk A. Scott
Ms. Patricia M. Scott
Mr. James Scotton
Mr. Rodney L. Scribner
The Honorable Leah Sears and 

Mr. Haskell Ward
Mr. Anthony M. Sease and  

Dr. Lorraine Sease
Mr. Christopher Seay
Mr. Thomas N. Secor
The Sedgwick Family Trust
Mr. Robert Sedgwick and  

Ms. Helen Torelli
Mr. Theodore Sedgwick
Ms. Carole A. Seger
Ms. Jennifer B. Segrest
Mr. and Mrs. R. K. Sehgal
Ms. Deborah Selby
The Selig Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. S. Stephen Selig III
Mr. William J. Sell
Mr. and Mrs. Dean Sellers
Mr. Marc M. Seltzer
Mr. Norman B. Senjem
Ms. Wendy Sergeant-Clarke
Mr. and Mrs. Tommaso Serra
Ms. Ingrid Serrell
Dr. Sabah Servaes
Mr. Prochy P. Sethna
Ms. Pamela M. Seward
Mr. Michael F. Sexton
Mr. and Mrs. John Seymour
Mr. and Mrs. David R. Shafer
Mr. and Mrs. Kirti Shah
Ms. Barbara C. Shane
Roy and Ann Shannon
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sharkey
Dr. Santosh D. Sharma
Mr. and Mrs. Julian D. Sharpton
Dr. A. Richey Sharrett

Ms. Charlotte Ann Shea
Mr. John P. Sheehan
Mr. Robert J. Shelton
Ambassador Sally A.  

Shelton-Colby
Dr. Jay Shendure
Mr. and Mrs. John Shepard
Ms. Deborah Sheperis
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Sherman
Mr. Richard L. Shewell Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. J. Fergus Shiel
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan H. Shinn
Dr. Mariko Shirazi
Ms. Rose D. Short
Mr. and Mrs. Mohamed Shoukry
Ms. Suzanne Shull
Mr. John R. Shutt
Ms. Susanne Christopher Shutz
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Siclare
Dr. and Mrs. David T. Sidney
Mr. Martin Sidwell and  

Mrs. Felicity Sidwell
Drs. Scott L. Siegal and  

Suzanne Shenk
Ms. Carole A. Siegel
Mr. Joseph F. Sifer
Mr. and Mrs. Harry R. Silletti
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Simeone
Hon. and Mrs. John F. Simon
Ms. Audrey L. Simpson
Ms. Linda J. Simpson
Ms. Mary Simun
Mr. Sher G. Singh
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Sinnamon
Ms. Marilyn J. Sinz
Mr. Mark A. Sippel
Mr. Roger Siwak
Ms. Rochelle Sjolseth
Ms. Dolores Skarke
Ms. Joan Davis Skelton
Dr. Pate Skene
Mr. and Mrs. Gary F. Skinner
Mr. John Skinner, USN (RET)
Ms. Carlene M. Skrainar
Mr. Steve Slater
Dr. Brett T. Brinker and  

Dr. Heather A. Slay
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney Slifer
Ms. Julie Slovin
Ms. Mimi Slyngstad
Mr. Leroy Smalls
Mrs. Betty Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas R. Smith
Neal & Bea Smith Family 

Foundation
Rev. and Mrs. George Wayne 

Smith
Ms. Marsha N. Smith and  

Ms. Laurel A. Bleak

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Ms. Patricia Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy G. Smith
Dr. Tresa V. Smith
Mr. William H. Smith
Mr. Wilson P. Smith Jr.
Mr. David S. Smoak and  

Ms. Charity A. Townsend
Mr. Robert B. Snell
Snow Angel Fund
Ms. Peggy Snyder
Social Good Fund
Mr. Francis X. Soen
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Soerens
Mr. Ruben S. Solis
Mr. Jordan Sorensen
Dr. Denise M. Soucy
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Souza
Dr. and Mrs. Roy F. Spalding
Mr. Frederick S. Spangler
Ms. Jeanne M. Sparks and  

Mr. Kenneth Hough
Father Richard C. Sparks
Ms. Mary Louise Kelly and  

Dr. Greg T. Spear
Dr. Paul Spearman
Dr. Samuel H. Speck and  

Dr. Martha L. Clabby
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Speer
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Spencer
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Spencer
Mr. and Mrs. Irwin Spiegelman
Mr. Michael Spiegelman
Ms. Darlene Spillers
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Spinelli
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Mrs. John D. Spragins
Ms. Mary Gay Sprague
Ms. Joanne W. Springer
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Springman
Mr. and Mrs. David R. St. 

Germain
Mr. and Mrs. Doug Staiger
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald K. Stair
Mr. Stephen B. Stancliff and  

Ms. Tamara Marshall-Keim
Mrs. Brigitte Stanfill
Mr. James Stanger and  

Dr. Ann Stanger
Mr. Thomas D. Stanks
Mr. Robert E. Stanley
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Dr. and Mrs. John H. Starks
Mr. and Mrs. David Starkweather
Dr. Thad Starner and  

Ms. Tavenner Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Starr
Mr. and Mrs. Frank M. Stearn
Lucy and Tom Stec

Dr. and Mrs. Jery R. Stedinger
Mr. and Mrs. John B. Steele
Mr. and Ms. Fred Steffens
Mr. and Mrs. Jack M. Stein
Dr. Marrilyn Stein
Mrs. Harriet Steinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Steinbock III
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Stensrud
Ms. Irene S. Sterns
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Stevens
Mr. John R. Stevens
Mr. David Stewart and  

Ms. April Bruce-Stewart
Mr. Norman Stewart and  

Ms. Carolyn A. McDonald
Mr. Vincent Stewart
Stillwater Electric 
Ms. Vicky Stockton and  

Mr. Jim Allen
Ms. Barbara J. Stoecker
Ms. Phyllis Stoecklein
Mr. Richard Stohlman
Ms. Sharon F. Stollings
Mr. and Mrs. John Stolzenberg
Mr. Frederick L. Storck
Strategic Growth and 

Transformation
Mr. Gabriel Stricker
Dr. and Ms. Charles M. Stripling III
Stripling, Inc.
Ms. Lisa Strongin and  

Ms. Maxine L. Epperson
Ms. Kathleen F. Stroud
Ms. Susan E. Stuart
Ms. Cynthia Jo Stuble
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge Stuckey 

and Mr. Joey Stuckey
Mr. David Stump and  

Dr. Carly Kenkel
Mr. Hans-Peter Sturm
Mr. Sidney K. Suggs
Mr. and Mrs. James Sugrue
Mr. Avi Sujeeth
Ms. Dorothy L. Sullivan
Ms. Lucy Sullivan
Ms. Patricia M. Sullivan
Mr. John Summerhays and  

Ms. Myrna Orenstein
Sun Hill Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Sunday
Ms. Elizabeth C. Sussman
Dr. Brian P. Sutton and  

Ms. Cheryl Santagate-Sutton
Ms. Ann C. Sweeney
Mr. and Mrs. Edward L. Sweeney
Ms. Frances Sweeney
Mr. Matthew T. Swenson
Mr. Tad J. Swida
Ms. Kathleen M. Syme

Mr. and Mrs. James Szabo
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan M. Szanto
Ms. Genevieve M. Szuba
Ms. Fay Szwast
Ms. Nancy R. Szymczak
Mr. Michael S. Tabisz
Ms. Sharl K. Talan
Ms. Margarete Talarico
Ms. Caroline Scott Talley and  

Mr. Mark Root
Mrs. Carolyn Talley
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Tamm
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Tamminga
Ms. Macki J. Tavis
Mr. Bernard Taylor Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Taylor
Mr. Fred W. Taylor Jr. and  

Ms. Marie Sweeney
Ms. Judy M. Taylor
Mr. Larry C. Taylor
Mr. Richard Taylor
Dr. Steven S. Taylor and  

Dr. Rosemary A. Taylor
Mr. Woody Taylor
Ms. Judy G. Teander
Mrs. Jean E. Tedrick
Ms. Gillian M. Teichert
Telaka Foundation
Temcov Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Temcov
Ms. Stephanie Terrell
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Terzaken
Dr. Tina Tessina and  

Mr. Richard Sharrard
Mr. Frank H. Tetreault Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Thayer
Ms. Mary C. Thayer
Ms. Diane L. Thiessen
Ms. Anne G. B. Thomas
Mr. and Mrs. Edward D. Thomas
Mr. Theodore H. Thomas and 

Ms. Colette Chabbott
Mr. Evan A. Thompson
Ms. Isabelle Thompson
Ms. Jane E. Thompson
Mr. Joshua L. Thompson
Ms. M. Melinda Thompson
Ms. Rita Lee Thompson
Mr. and Mrs. John Thonet
Ms. Laurie Thornton
Mr. Charles Thornton-Kolbe
Dr. George R. Throop and  

Ms. Nancy M. Dunn
Ms. Rosemary Thurston
Ms. Vickie Lee Thurston
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Tift
Mr. Leonard Tom
Simon and Mary Tonkin

Mr. Sean Tooley
Dr. and Mrs. William Topp
Torretta Foundation 
Mr. and Mrs. Gino L. Torretta
Mr. Peter Tosto
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Townsend
Raleigh Tozer
Ted and Sandy Tozer
Mr. Robert J. Tracy
Ms. Bettina Trautmann
Ms. Mary Treanor
Ms. Amy Trevvett
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry L. Tribbey
Ms. Lori A. Triplett
Ms. Dari Tritt
Straat-Truchard
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey Trullinger
Dr. Carolyn Trunca and  

Mr. David Moriarty
Mr. Tony Truong
Mrs. Ruth Moody Tsu
Dr. and Mrs. Russ Tuck
Tudor Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
The Tufenkian Foundation
Mr. James Tufenkian
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy C. Tuff
Mr. David W. Tuffy
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy F. Tuinstra
Ms. Lynn Tullis
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan D. Turell
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Turk
Mr. Michael J. Turner
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Mr. David Tyson
Ms. Donna Ucherek
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Uding
Dr. John R. Uglum III
Mr. Harold W. Underhill
Mr. Jonathan M. Unger
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas R. 

Unnasch
Dr. Ruth Uphold and  

Ms. Mary Provencher
Mr. Charles R. Upshaw
Mr. Rudolf Urban
Mr. Richard H. Usher
Mr. H. Rao Vaitla
Dr. Mimi Van Der Leden
Richard and Diane Van Grunsven 

Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Van 

Grunsven
Mr. Henri P. Van Helden
Mr. and Mrs. Peter van Oppen
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Van Sant
Ms. Donna Van Wechel
Mr. Karel L. Vanderlugt
Mr. Doug VanOrnum
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Dr. Joseph Vargas and  
Mrs. Shannon Vargas

Dr. James Roy Vasser
Ms. Mary Elizabeth Vaughn
Robert Vaughn, Ph.D.
Ms. Ann S. Venable
Mr. Robert R. Viducich
Mr. and Mrs. John Viets
Ms. Sarah S. Vigoda
Rev. Audrey Vincent
Ms. Lusandra Vincent
Ms. Ilona Vinces
Vogel Family Foundation 
Mr. and Mrs. William A. Vogel
Vohra Wound Care Physicians
Mr. Mark Voigt
Ms. Barbara K. Vold
Ms. Muriel Vomhof
Ms. Cecilia A. Vore and  

Mr. Carl Falco
Mr. and Mrs. John Vottero
Mr. and Ms. Andrew D. 

Voyatzakis
Mr. Omer Waddles
Ms. Brenda J. Wade
Dr. Judith Elaine Wade
Ms. J. Wade
Ms. Donna Waechter
Ms. Santoshi Wagner-Anue
Ms. Diane E. Wais and  

Mr. John Wierschem
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Walker
Mr. Ronald L. Walker
Rev. Martha E. Wallace and  

Mr. Dennis White
Mr. John T. Walsh
Ms. May S. Wang
Mr. Albert J. Ward Jr.
Professor and Mrs. Barclay Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Edward W. Ward
The Ward Foundation
Mr. Roy Wardell
Mr. Michael Ray Ware
Dr. John P. Waring
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. Warner III
Mr. Paul Warren and  

Dr. Chris Chi
Mr. and Mrs. Richard T. Warren
Warren Family Fund of The 

Columbus Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Warren
Ms. Barbara Washburn
Ms. Cathryn A. Wasson
Mr. John Waters
Ms. Carrie Watson
Mr. and Mrs. Craig R. Watson
Mr. Kenneth J. Watt and  

Mr. Victor J. Amburgy
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson B. Watts
Ms. Alecia L. Wawrzynski

Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Wax
Mr. and Mrs. Andy Weas
Ms. Margaret S. Weaver
Mr. Michael Gordon Weaver and 

Ms. Jennifer Nelson-Weaver
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Webb
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen K. Webb
Ms. Ellen Webster
Ms. Karen Weddle
Dr. John Wehner and  

Dr. Asuncion Martinez-Wehner
Ms. Susen Wehner
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey C. Weil
Mr. Kenneth S. Weiner and  

Ms. Kathy Fletcher
Mr. Franz Weinhandl
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. 

Weinman
Mr. George L. Weir
Mr. Aiken E. Weiss
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Weissman
Mr. James Welcenbach
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn Welch
Ms. Barbara A. Welcher
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Welle
Mr. and Ms. W. Harrison 

Wellford
Ms. Norma J. Wells
Mr. Robert D. Wells
Mrs. Robert C. Welter
Ms. Wendy K. Werby
Mr. Richard Werremeyer
Ms. Helen H. West
Ms. Kathleen Westerholt and  

Ms. Gail Koser
Dr. and Mrs. W. Daniel 

Westerkam
Westminster Barrington 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Whalen
Mr. Thomas L. Whatley
Ms. Carolyn C. Wheeler
Mr. John A. Whisler
Ms. Susan Pearson Whisnant
Mr. and Mrs. David S. White
Dillard H. Brown and Frederick 

E. White Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Harry R. White Jr.
Dr. Jane White and  

Mr. Joseph Amerling
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. White
Mr. Thomas L. White Jr.
Mr. James D. Whitehouse
Mr. and Mrs. James W. 

Wickenden
Dr. David A. Wiebe
Mr. Roger C. Wiest
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Wight
Ms. Linda M. Wigington
Mr. Jeffrey Wihtol

Mr. Calvin Wilde
Mr. and Mrs. Keith L. Will
Mr. Keith Willey
Ms. Charlotte R. Williams
Ms. Eileen Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Williams
Ms. Sharon S. Williams
Mr. Timothy R. Williams
Ms. Ruthelen M. W. Williamson
Ms. Susan Williamson
Dr. John S. Willis and  

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Aletta T. Wilson
Ms. Elizabeth G. Wilson
Dr. Joseph N. Wilson and  

Dr. Selma P. Wilson
Ms. Marianna Wilson
Mrs. Martha M. Wilson
Mr. Michael R. Wilson
Dr. Robert Woodrow Wilson and 

Dr. Elizabeth S. Wilson
Ms. Veronica I. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. William E. Wilson
Ms. Ursula M. Wilson-Booth
Ms. Gloria Wilt
Ms. Elizabeth Winchester
Mr. John P. Wingard
Dr. Hubert Winston
Dr. Robert L. Wintermyer
Allison and Phil Wise
Miss Rainey Isabel Wise
Ms. Marianne Wisner
Ms. Sharon G. Withrow
Dr. Stephan Neil Witt and  

Ms. Jill C. Parker-Witt
Drs. Edward Witten and  

Chiara Nappi
Ms. Cynthia Witting
Dr. Van M. Woeltz
Mrs. Lois G. Wolf
Mr. Douglas MacLean and  

Ms. Susan Wolf
Mr. Mark A. Wollen
Mr. Peter M. Wolter
Ms. Kim Wong
Lai Ying Wong and  

Chin Shing Wong
Ms. Nancy S. Wong
Ms. Renie Wong and  

Mr. George Meier
The Honorable S. B. Woo
Mr. and Mrs. Charles O. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt H. Wood Jr.
Ms. Margarett Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Wood
Ms. Sarah K. Wood
Dr. and Mrs. Woody Woodall
Dr. Patricia A. Woodall
Mr. Daniel Woodard

Mrs. Carolyn Woods
Mr. John F. Woods
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
Ms. Kathleen Przekop Woodward
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin R. Woolf
Woo’s Foundation
Dr. Erin Wooten
Mr. and Mrs. Wesley Worden
Ms. Amy E. Wright
Ms. Deborah Faye Wright
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis C. Wright
Mr. Eugene E. Wright
Mr. Homer E. Wright Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Kelly Wright
Ms. Nina A. Wright
Dr. Dennis R. Wyant and  

Ms. Jane Feldman
Dr. Barbara Yager
Mr. Donald J. Yanulavich
Mr. David L. Yarbrough
Mr. Edward Yellig
Mr. and Mrs. Michael V. Yester
Dr. Katrina Yielding
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Yoder
Dr. John-David Yoder
Mr. Peter Yoo and  

Ms. Julie Mulvahill
Dr. June Youatt and  

Dr. Charles Ballard
Dr. and Mrs. A. Stuart Young
Dr. Janice G. Young
Ms. Jeanie Kendall Young
Mr. Lance B. Young and  

Mr. James Summers
Mr. Michael E. Young
Mr. Thomas C. Young
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Younkin
Ambassador Marie Yovanovitch
Mr. Jing-Sheng Yue
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Zacher
Mr. Don Zagorski
Dr. Jan H. Zahrly
Mr. and Mrs. Carl V. Zangardi
Ms. Theresa L. Zapotocky
The JV Schiro Zavela Foundation
Jean Schiro-Zavela and  

Vance Zavela
Mr. Stephen E. Zehr
Ms. Sally M. Zeijlon
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Zeiler
Mr. and Mrs. C. Nick Zeller
The Zephyr Fund
Mr. Feng Zhou
Dr. Phyllis Arn Zimmer
Dr. Edward T. Zito
Ms. Deborah J. Zorn
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Zrimsek
Ms. Nancy A. Zweng
Dr. Sape A. Zylstra

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Ms. Edith E. Holiday and  

Mr. Terrence B. Adamson
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Ms. Portia Comenetia Allen
Ms. Carrie Amestoy
Ms. Deborah J. Anderson and  

Ms. Lori B. Lundell
Mr. and Mrs. D. C. Anderson
Ms. Marion Anderson-Peat
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Ms. Priscilla J. Angelo
Mr. Brian Anthony and  

Mr. Joseph Fitzpatrick
Mr. and Mrs. Colin S. Archibald
Ms. Jane Ariail
Mr. Charles R. Arterburn
Dr. Kazuko K. Artus
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Auerbach
Ms. Jacqui Avila-Bell
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Babin
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Ms. Anne Baglini
Mr. Norman S. Baier
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
Mrs. Mary Balfour
Dr. John Ball and Ms. Jean Dillon
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mrs. Cecilia T. Banulski
Mr. Howard Barfels
Mr. James F. Barksdale
Ms. Nancy E. Barnwell
Ms. Garnet Bass
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Beans
Dr. Christa-Maria Beardsley
Mr. Jay Beck
Mr. Lon A. Beck
Ms. Anne Behler
Mrs. Mae Woods Bell
Mr. Robert N. Bell and  

Ms. Celia R. Denov
Ms. Michelle Benash and  

Mr. Kris Krohn
Ms. Cindy Benson
Ms. Diane R. Bergen
Mr. and Mrs. William S. Bickley
Mr. and Mrs. James Biggs
Mrs. Margaret W. Bigham
Jane Nichols Bishop
Ms. Stephanie Biziewski
Mr. William G. G. Blakney
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mrs. Loretta Bober
Mrs. Jean M. Boddy
Ms. Esther Borg
Dr. Amy R. Boscov and  

Dr. Terence Ellen

Mrs. Patricia B. Bourland
Ms. Caroline Bowdish
Dr. William D. Bowers
Mrs. Laura Jo Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. Albert Boysen
Ms. Olivia H. Bozik
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Bonnie D. Briscoe
Ms. Lee Britton Henkel
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Rev. and Mrs. John L. Brown
Ms. Kathryn Brown
Ms. Mary Lord Brown
Dr. Calvin Browne and  

Ms. Janet Hines
Dr. William T. Browne and  

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Ms. Millicent Bruce
Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Ms. Cynthia Rose Bryant
Mr. Mike R. Budzik and  

Ms. Sarah A. Tacoma
Ms. Virginia M. Bukowski
Ms. Mary Alice Burack
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald E. 

Burmeister
Ms. LuVella C. Burnett
Mr. Kenneth H. Burrows
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Buttel
Mr. Mark Byers and  

Ms. Lara Ferguson McNamara
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Kathleen M. Byrne, Esq.
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Ms. Barbara J. Cain
Mrs. Connie Calaway
Dr. David L. Camenga and  

Ms. Nora B. Arnold
Ms. Pauline B. Campbell
Ms. Voradel M. Carey
The Reverend Dr. Forrest A. 

Carhartt
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. and Mrs. D. James Carson
The Honorable Jimmy Carter and 

Rosalynn Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
Dr. Ronald D. Carter
Ms. Suzanne Carter
Mr. Ulysses A. Carter
Mr. George Carvalho
Mr. Sharron Cason
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey A. Cassens
Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Chaiken
Mrs. Donald B. Chalker
Ms. Estrella Chan
Mrs. Leon H. Charney
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Chen

Ms. Jan Chesler
Dr. Stephen J. Chiulli
Ms. Nancy J. Christen
Mr. Walter D. Clare
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M. 

Cochrane
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and  

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Robert Boston Colgin
Mr. and Mrs. David S. Conant
Mr. James H. Conrad
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Conroy
The Honorable Frances D. Cook
Ms. Paula M. Cooke
Mr. Richard P. Coonan
Mr. and Mrs. Ross M. Cooper
Rev. Michael Corrigan
Mr. Rod Corvo
Mr. John A. Costa
Mr. Paul B. Costello and  

Ms. Rita Beamish
Mr. Stuart W. Couch
Ms. Ann Cox
Mrs. John A. Crampton
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Crandall
Mr. John Cristiano
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Cross
Ms. Cyd Cross
Mr. and Mrs. Dwight Crowder
Mrs. Betty McGarvie Crowley
Ms. Peggy Cullinane
Ms. Joan R. Cummiskey
The Honorable and Mrs. John H. 

Dalton
Mr. Charles H. Dana
Ms. Lynette C. Daniel
Dr. M. Betsy Darken
Mr. Wayne C. Darnell
Mr. and Mrs. Victor R. Daub
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Brigadier General James J. David
Mr. James Davies
Ms. Anne A. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Rev. and Mrs. David M. Davis
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Rev. Dr. Betty Dawson
Dr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Hon. Spencer M. Dayton
Laurence de Quay, Ph.D., P.E.
Ms. Elizabeth A. Deane
Dr. Michiel E. Ultee and  

Dr. Patricia L. Dedert
Ms. Nancy A. Deering
Mr. and Mrs. John DeHarpporte
Mrs. Rita Demsey
Mr. Daniel W. Dennison
Mr. Chris d’Eon

Mrs. Betty D. Depietro
Mrs. Mimi Derthick
Mr. and Mrs. Benedict J. Di Salvo
Dr. Claudia C. Dickerson and 

Mr. Wayne Grinstead
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Dickson
Mr. Gurdev S. Dindral
Mr. Mark Dixon and Mrs. Sheryl 

Heitker Dixon
Dr. Virginia M. Dodd and  

Ms. Fan Watson
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Dodge
Mr. Gerard P. Donahoe
Dr. Robert Numan and  

Dr. Diane Dreher
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. Drezek
Ms. Sue DuChanois
Dr. Kathleen M. Duerksen and 

Mr. Kevin M. Finnegan
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and  

Dr. Janice Duke
Ms. Deborah Durham
Mr. Kenneth P. Dutter
Mr. and Mrs. Donald C. Dybeck
Ms. Paula Dyer-Garrett
Dr. Brad Dyke and Dr. Sarah 

Cookinham
Ms. Marilyn K. Eaton
Mr. Gabriel H. Ebersole
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Elmhorst
Ms. Gail M. Ervin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Mr. Jonathan C. Feaver
Mr. and Mrs. George Fee
Dr. and Mrs. Ricardo A. 

Fernandez
Mrs. Bette Finnigan
Ms. Sara J. Fitzgerald
Ms. Elsebeth Flarup
Ms. Nayan A. Fleenor
Ms. Yvette I. Fleming
Mrs. Eli M. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Folsom
Mr. Guy Formichella
Mrs. Sara E. Fors
Mr. David A. Fox
Ms. Marcia A. Fox
Ms. Margaret J. Francka
Mr. John M. Franz
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Mr. Peter Ralph Fremgen
Ms. Mary E. Frieberg
Mr. Roy Frysinger
Ms. Nell Funk
Mr. Ladell J. Futch
Mr. Farley M. Galbraith
Mrs. Hugh A. Garnett
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Ms. Rachael M. Garrity
Mr. W. F. Gasner and  

Ms. Lurlene Kyles
Mrs. Kathryn A. George
Mr. Gregory J. Gerhard
Mrs. E. Alvin Gerhardt
Dr. Paul W. Gerke
Mrs. Kathryn Gervais
Ms. Marcia L. Geyer
Ms. Sharon C. Gibb
Mrs. Yvonne M. Gillen
Ms. Catherine Glick and  

Mr. Curtis Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Glick
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Gloor
Mr. and Mrs. E. S. Godbold
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip Godorov
Pastor Duane E. Goetsch
Mr. Alejandro R.  

Gonzales-Garcia
Dr. Patricia C. Gordin and  

Mr. Lawrence A. Gordin
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen L. Gordy
Mrs. Patricia Gosney
Mr. and Mrs. Ken K. Gouw
Ms. Beverly J. Grant
Ms. Sharon L. Grant
Ms. Lynda Graves
Ms. Margo Grbinich Hunt
Dr. and Mrs. J. Ronald Green
Mr. and Mrs. Chesley M. Greene
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and  

Ms. D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Mr. Matt W. Griffin
Mrs. Leslie Grimes and  

Mr. Daniel C. Grimes
Mr. Fred Grob and  

Ms. Dorothy M. Kinney
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Ms. Paula M. Guibault
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Habig
Ms. Rosemary Hagen
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Hale
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall
Mrs. Norma L. Hall
Mrs. John Wayne Hall
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Ms. Mary K. Hampton
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Mrs. Rhonda K. Hanna
Ms. Ermaline Hannum
Mr. Richard C. Hardes
Rev. and Mrs. William K. 

Harman
Mr. Dennis Harms and  

Ms. Susan Bergman
Ms. Janet Harold

Mr. William T. Harper and  
Ms. Brida M. Smith

Reverend Shaun Harrigan
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris
Mr. Laird F. Harris
Mrs. David H. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Peter V. Harris
Ms. Jeanne E. Harroo
Ms. Ann-Marie F. Hartline
Ms. Carol M. Hartz
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Havers
Mr. Jonathan Hawes
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Ms. Linda Helms
Mrs. Ilze S. Henderson
Ms. Carol A. Henning
Ms. Linda S. Hensel
Mrs. Evelyn R. Hewett
Ms. Joy Hewett
Ms. Dana C. Hice
Mrs. Maria C. Higgins and  

Mr. Chester A. Higgins
Dr. and Mrs. Larry Hill
Ms. Penny M. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Hochman
Mr. Kenneth Hochstedler
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 

Hochstetler
Mrs. Susan Hoeksema
Ms. Joanne Hoemberg
Ms. Carla E. Holder
Ms. R. Diane Holliday
Mr. Steven Hollingsworth and 

Ms. Daidee Springer
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Holstrom
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson Horseman
Ms. Carolyn Houghton and  

Mr. David Sodano
Ms. Alice Houseknecht
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Houts
Ms. Rita Hovakimian
Mr. and Mrs. George G. Howard
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Howard
Dr. Sue Howe
Mrs. Elizabeth B. Hubbard
Ms. Margaret V. Hughes
Ms. Betsy M. Hutcheson
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III 

and Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
The Reverend and Mrs. Nicholas 

Inman
Mr. Robert A. Ipock
Mr. B. William Irlbeck
Dr. Marianne Jackson
Ms. M. Christine Jacobs
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin

Mr. William R. James
Loree Ann and David Janusz
Mrs. J. Michelle Jenn
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Mr. Jason Jensen
Mr. Marvin D. Jensen
Dr. Robert C. Jespersen
Mr. Matthew Jewett
Ms. Barbara Ann Jezl
Dr. and Mrs. J. Timothy Johnson
Mr. James S. Johnson
Ms. Janet F. Johnson
Ms. Janet L. Johnson
Ms. Jennifer A. Johnson and  

Mr. Kenneth L. Grotewiel
Ms. Kristine Johnson
Ms. Linda O. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Johnson
Ms. Susan F. Johnson
Ms. Laura L. Johnston
Barb Jones and Chris Jones
Ms. Janis N. Jones
Dr. and Mrs. Warren Jones
Mr. and Mrs. John Jopling
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Jorgensen
Mr. Suryaram R. Joshi
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Juntune
Mr. Steven Kale and Ms. Leah 

Hemelstrand
Ms. Lynne A. Kalustian
Ms. Marie J. Kane
Ms. Catherine H. Kannenberg
Mr. Vinod Kariat and  

Dr. Saila Kariat
Mr. George Karnoutsos
Mr. Timothy Karsten and  

Ms. Karinna Kittles-Karsten
Ms. Barbara A. Karwhite
Ms. Tanya Mujica Keenan and 

Mr. Jeffrey Keenan
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Ms. Nancy Kelly and  

Mr. James Enrietti
Ms. Judy Kieffer
Dr. Judith Kierstead
Mrs. Mary Pat Killian
Mr. Damon Kimber
Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Ms. Beth P. Kissling
Mr. Paul F. Knauth
Dr. Linda V. Knight
Mr. Bill L. Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Ms. Margaret A. Kohnen
The Honorable Jimmy Kolker and 

Ms. Britt-Marie Forslund
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Koppeis
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Mrs. Barbara G. Kortrey

Ms. Susan L. Kotar
Mr. and Mrs. Myron E. Kownacki
Dr. and Mrs. Gary A. Krasicky
Ms. Melissa A. R. Krause
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory G. Krisilas
Mr. Alex Kronstadt
Dr. Henry Kuharic
Mrs. Martha Kuhlman
Mrs. Suman Kulkarni
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Mr. Greg Lafortune
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Lamb
Ms. Susan Landon
Dr. Ann Lansing
Mr. Greg J. Laughlin
Mr. Douglas G. Laverne
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Ms. Marie J. Leblanc
Mrs. Bonnie S. Ledbetter
Ms. Tammye M. Lee
Mr. Ira L. Leitner
Ms. Rebecca Leo
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn N. Lesniak
Mr. Jerry Lester
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Dr. Peter R. Lewy
Mr. Albert L. Leyva
Mr. Howard B. Linden
Mr. Robert Linz
Mr. and Mrs. McAdory Lipscomb
G & M Charitable Trust 

Remainder
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence R. 

Lockhart
Mr. Jim Loftis and  

Ms. Judith Billica
Ms. Beth Logan and  

Mr. Michael J. Koziel
Mr. Richard B. Logan III
Ms. Mona Logsdon
Mr. Maurice W. Long
Dr. and Mrs. William B. Long
Ms. Diane M. Loucks
Dr. Barbara A. Luke
Mr. and Mrs. Russell S. Lyon
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Ma
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Maddox
Mr. Lou Magnani
Mr. C. Peter Magrath
Mrs. Janice Major
Ms. Melody Malouf
Dr. Mark Manasse and  

Dr. Janet Mohle-Boetani
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Marshall
Dr. D. Jeannette Martin
Ms. Marilyn Martin

Members of the Legacy Circle provide support through their estate and financial planning.
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Legacy Circle
DONORS 2021–2022DONORS 2021–2022
Dr. Molly Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Jose L. Martinez
Ms. Tatiana L. Maxwell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Steve Maxwell
Ms. Maria E. Maytorena
Dr. and Mrs. Peter McAlindon
Ms. Marty McCall
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Pamela McClune
Mrs. Jean D. McDow
Mr. Gregg L. McKee
Mrs. Lucile McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. Wade F. McKenzie
Dr. Margaret McLean
Mrs. Alice McLellan
Mr. William W. McMillan
Mr. Chris McMullan
Ms. Mary M. McPherson
Mr. Charles A. Mecum
Mr. John C. Medford
Ms. MaryAnn E. Merendino
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Messersmith
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher 

Messina
Col. Virginia A. Metcalf
Ms. Jill M. Meuser and  

Dr. Gary L. McKown
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Michelozzi
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Miller
Ms. Janice Miller
Ms. Lisa H. Miller and  

Mr. John T. Raible
Ms. Paulina Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. Miller
Dr. and Mrs. Wayne Milloy
Dr. G. Irene Minor
Dr. Mary Miyagi and  

Dr. Masakazu Miyagi
Mr. John R. Mobley
Mr. and Mrs. T. R. Mock
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Dr. Drema G. Moody
Mr. Donald Moore
The Reverend L. Katherine 

Moore
Ms. Tertia Moore
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Moore
Ms. Valerie Moore
Dr. Willis H. A. Moore
Ms. Ruth Justice Moorer and  

Mr. Charles A. Moorer
Mr. John J. Moores
Ms. Jane Moretz Edmisten
Ms. Sheila R. Morris and  

Ms. Teresa L. Williams
Mrs. Rea Moss
Mrs. Catherine A. Mullins
Mrs. Emily J. Mumma and  

Mr. Luke R. Mumma

Dr. and Mrs. Robert S.  
Munford III

Ms. Kersi F. Munshi
Ms. Pamela Munson
Mr. G. Davis Musser II
Mr. and Mrs. Lee A. Nascimento
Mrs. Linda R. Nascimento
Mr. Anthony Nash
Mrs. Besan H. Nash
Mr. Phil W. Nash
Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel H. Neff
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Dr. Joyce Neu
Ms. Joni Newcomer
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Nickelsberg
Mrs. Lillian B. Nicolson
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph H. Nicolson
Ms. Barbara R. Nielsen
Ms. Susan Layne Nielsen
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Norman
Mr. Samuel L. Norris
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Mr. Steven E. Nothern
Mr. Gary Nunn
Ms. Barbara Nurse
Ms. H. Virginia Nye
Ms. Carol A. Ogline
Ms. Ann M. Ohme
Mrs. Katharine L. Olah
Ms. Janet Oliver
Mr. Eric Olsen, in memory of 

Claudia and Wendell H. Olsen
Ms. Carol Olsen, in memory 

of Mary Louise and John F. 
Buckley

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Ontso
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. and Mrs. James Oppel
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
Ms. Mary G. Ormson
Mr. Thomas R. Osowski
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph O’Sullivan
Dr. Harold E. Ott
Ms. Dena Page
Dr. Jill S. Pagels
Mrs. Coletta M. Pagenkopf
Mr. Richard Palmer
Ms. F. Taylor Pape and  

Mr. Haddon Hufford
Ms. Mary Kay Parham
Ms. Carole M. Park
Mr. Howard F. Park
Ms. Anna Maria Parker
Dr. Jann C. Pasler

Mr. Carl Passal and  
Ms. Karen St. John

Mrs. Katherine W. Paterson and 
Mr. John B. Paterson

Mr. and Mrs. Randy G. Paul
Dr. Corey and Mrs. Ellen Pavitt
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Peabody
Mr. and Mrs. Harold J. Peters
Mr. Kenneth J. Peters
Anne and Dave Peterson
Dr. Susan Petro
Ms. Joyce Philen
Ms. Una Marie Pierce
Ms. Nancy A. Pitera
Ms. Rachel L. Pivnick
Drs. John and Marie Plakos
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Plum
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Pollack
Ms. Cheryl Pond
Mr. and Mrs. Jack R. Poteet
Mrs. Nan Powell
Mr. Chesley H. Prince and  

Ms. Catharine Summerfield 
Hana

Ms. Rose Prisko
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Ms. Barbara R. Cole and  

Mr. John L. Quigley Jr.
Ms. Kathleen Quinn and  

Mr. Michael McClain
Mr. William L. Raiser and 

Madame Francoise Lamailloux
Dr. and Mrs. Vadrevu K. Raju
Ms. Claudia Ramisch
Mr. John A. Ramos and  

Ms. Mary Ann Cinowalt
Mr. and Mrs. Bertram Raphael
Ms. Elizabeth Raycroft
Mr. and Mrs. Donald W. Rea
Ms. Martha J. Reddout
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Rehfuss
Mr. Kurt A. Reichle
Ms. Stephanie Reith and  

Mr. Henry Werch
Ms. Frankie D. Reynolds
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Rhodes
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Dr. and Mrs. William L. Richter
Ms. Kendra M. Riden and  

Mr. James Edwin Hardy
Mr. Lloyd W. Ridenour
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Riedesel
Ms. Michelle Riley
Ms. Joan M. Ritchie
Mrs. Susan Roach
Mr. Dennis M. Robertson
Ms. Emily C. Robertson
Mrs. Jacquelyn L. Robinson
Ms. Vivien A. Rock
Dr. and Mrs. Gaylan Rockswold

Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Rodgers
Ms. Elfrieda M. Roque
Mr. Gerald A. Rosenthal
Ms. Catherine S. Roy
Mr. and Mrs. William Rubley
Ms. Anna Lee Rucker
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald R. Rudolph
Mr. and Mrs. Conway  

Rulon-Miller
Ms. Lois A. Russell
Mr. Robert K. Russell
Ms. Loretta Russo
Dr. Oliver A. Ryder
Ms. Cynthia K. Sabin
Mr. Donald Sackett
Mr. Peter F. Said
Mr. and Mrs. James G. Sallen
Dr. Cheryl E. Samans
Ms. Dianne Sanborn
Mr. Michael L. Sanders
Mr. Robert A. Saritelli
Mrs. Russell Sarner
Mr. and Mrs. J. Neal Sasser
Mr. William P. Saviers
Ms. Barbara J. Schaefer
Mr. and Mrs. Paul David 

Schaeffer
Dr. John Schatmeyer
Dr. and Mrs. Bradley J. Scheel
Mr. Alan M. Scheider
Ms. Vikki A. Schick and  

Mr. Elmer C. Kreisel Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Schmidt
Dr. Frances Schoonmaker
Mr. Robert R. Schoos
Ms. Edna I. Schram
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Schrock
Lloyd F. Scott and Ann B. Scott
Ms. Trisha D. Scudder
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Mr. Niles Seldon
Sue Linville Shaffer
Mr. Christopher R. Shantz
Dr. Bertram H. Shapiro
Dr. Jason W. Sheedy
Mr. and Mrs. Robert 

Shellenbarger
Ambassador Sally A.  

Shelton-Colby
Mr. David C. Sheppard
Ms. Ruth Shults and  

Mr. Charles Bradley
Ms. Fawn Simensen
Ms. Jane L. Simpson
Mr. R. Terry Singleton
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Singleton
Mr. Tommy W. Sink
Mr. Jerry W. Skidmore
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Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney Slifer
Mr. William M. Sloan
Mr. Glenn Smouse
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Snow
Ms. Cheryl Snyder
Mr. and Mrs. William Snyder
Mr. Carroll South
Ms. Susan Spadinger
Mr. and Mrs. Irwin Spiegelman
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Spinelli
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Ms. Joanne W. Springer
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Spruill
Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Mr. Kenneth P. Stapp
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mrs. Baird Stephens
Mr. Duke S. Stewart
Mrs. Milton D. Stewart
Ms. Peggy H. Stilwell
Ms. Erika Stone
Ms. Misty M. Stone
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Ms. Mary B. Strauss
Mrs. Joy Stukey
Mr. Thomas Stutzman
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Swaner
Dr. Constance Swank
The Reverend Grace Swensen and 

Dr. Richard D. Swensen

Mr. Anthony Swinton
Mr. Mamadou Tall
Dr. and Mrs. Alva W. Taylor
Ms. Nancy J. Taylor
Mrs. Elyseo Taylor
Dr. Steven S. Taylor and  

Dr. Rosemary A. Taylor
Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor
Ms. Jo Ellen Teasdale
Ms. Anne G. B. Thomas
Dr. Gail E. Thomas
Ms. Ellen M. Thompson
Ms. Gillann Thorndill
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Thorpe
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mr. and Mrs. Jon E. Tobiessen
Mr. Charles W. Tomlinson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Tortorich
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Tracy
Ms. Dari Tritt
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Ms. Charlene E. Twente
Mr. Lee Tyson
Mr. Jeffrey M. Ulmer
Mrs. Alissa U’Prichard
Ms. Robin Van Liew and  

Mr. Azim S. Rawji
Ms. Maria C. Vasquez
Ms. Connie Venturini
Mr. Roman J. Verostko
Mr. Ernest C. Vickroy

Mr. Pong Vilaysane
Ms. Andrea S. Waas
Ms. Barbara Wadkins
Mrs. Margaret M. Wagner
Mr. Rick Wagner
Mrs. Glenda B. Wallace
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Walter
Mr. and Mrs. M. Denton Ward
Mr. William R. Warwick
Mr. Arthur G. Wasserman
Ms. Nancy S. Watkins
Ms. Anne L. Watson
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Dr. J. Dix Wayman
Mrs. Kennith Webb
Mr. and Mrs. Leroy H. Webster
Ms. Karen Weddle
Mr. Brian Wegner and  

Ms. Cynthia Landes
Mr. Richard Weingarten
Mr. and Mrs. Knight Wells
Ms. Sarah Wells
Mr. W. Hall Wendel
Ms. Gertude Werner
Ms. Tammy Wert
Ms. Helen H. West
Dr. Stephen Wheeler and  

Dr. Patricia Wheeler
Dr. Betty Jo White
Ms. Karen Whitlow
Mr. Brian F. Whitworth

Ms. Cheryl Wilfong
Mrs. Coralie C. Williams
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Dr. John S. Willis and  

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Bickley C. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Wilson
Mr. John C. Wilson
Mr. Thomas D. Wilson and  

Ms. Barbara Trofinoff
Ms. Patricia Wirth
Ms. Gabriele E. Wohlauer
Mr. and Mrs. Griff Wolf
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Wolff
Ms. Mary E. Wolter
Mr. Rick Wood
Mr. Daniel Woodard
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin R. Woolf
Ms. Norris Wootton and  

Mr. David Shivers
Mrs. Sylvia Xeras
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel J. Yates
Mrs. Madonna Yates
Col. Mary H. Yeakel
Mr. Aaron Yeargan
Dr. Clarice M. Yentsch
Mr. Hai Tee Young
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Zeak
Mr. and Mrs. C. Nick Zeller
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Nancy J. Zinner

Agha Hasan Abedi

Senator Hajime Akiyama

Ivan Allen III

Dwayne O. Andreas

Arthur and Diana Blank

Richard C. Blum

W. Michael Blumenthal

Edgar M. Bronfman Sr.

James C. and Connie Calaway

Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Carlos

Anne Cox Chambers

Warren Christopher

Dominique de Menil

Charles W. Duncan Jr.

His Majesty King Fahd of 
Saudi Arabia

J. B. Fuqua

Roberto C. Goizueta

Walter and Elise Haas

Armand Hammer

Sidney Harman and Jane Frank 
Harman, Esq.

Governor and Mrs. W. Averell 
Harriman

Jess Hay

Christopher B. and Patricia K. 
Hemmeter

Philip M. and Ethel Klutznick

Mathilde and Arthur Krim

George P. Livanos

Fraydun Manocherian

G. William Miller

Guy W. Millner

George P. and Cynthia Mitchell

Set Charles Momjian

David Packard

George and Thelma Paraskevaides

Allen E. Paulson

Lamar and Frances Plunkett

John and Betty Pope

James D. Robinson III

Hasib J. Sabbagh

Deen Day Sanders

Ryoichi Sasakawa

Walter H. and Phyllis J. 
Shorenstein

Richard R. Swann

R. E. “Ted” Turner

Robert and Ann Utley

Edie and Lew Wasserman

Thomas J. Watson Jr.

Milton A. Wolf

Robert W. Woodruff

Tadao Yoshida

Erwin E. Zaban

The Carter Center and the 
Jimmy Carter Library and 
Museum were built in large 
measure thanks to the early 
leadership and financial 
support of the Carter Center 
founders.

Members of the Legacy Circle provide support through their estate and financial planning.
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Staff members stand outside the E.S. 
Grant Mental Health Hospital in Monrovia, 
Liberia, where The Carter Center has 
worked to increase the number and skill of 
mental health workers.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Trustees 
The Carter Center, Inc.:

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The 
Carter Center, Inc. and its subsidiary (the Center), which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as 
of August 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Center as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are required to be independent of the 
Center and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating 
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for one year after the date that the consoli-
dated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consoli-
dated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include exam-
ining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Center’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and 
certain internal control related matters that we identified 
during the audit.

Atlanta, Georgia 
May 5, 2023

consolidated financial statementsconsolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2022 and 2021

  2022 2021

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $   75,452,534 66,284,099

Accounts receivable:

 Due from conditional agreements  8,787,185 5,891,939

 Other  272,740 324,728

  Total accounts receivable  9,059,925 6,216,667

Contributions receivable, net (note 3)  230,163 287,519

Inventory (notes 4, 9, and 15)  4,387,783 761,043

Investments (notes 5 and 7)  1,058,873,553 1,178,629,329

Property, plant, and equipment, net (note 6)  4,923,280 4,467,709

Artwork   2,435,365 2,435,365

Other assets  33,286 214,191

  Total assets  $1,155,395,889 1,259,295,922

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

 Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $    9,932,820 8,044,561

 Deferred revenue  6,111,603 4,790,884

 Annuity obligations (note 7)  6,204,467 5,624,221

  Total liabilities  22,248,890 18,459,666

Net assets (note 11): 

 Without donor restrictions  423,491,324 454,689,287

 With donor restrictions  709,655,675 786,146,969

  Total net assets  1,133,146,999 1,240,836,256

Commitments and contingencies (notes 7, 8, and 16)  — —

  Total liabilities and net assets  $1,155,395,889 1,259,295,922

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended August 31, 2022 (with comparative totals for 2021)

   Without donor With donor Totals
   restrictions restrictions 2022 2021

Revenue and support
 Contributions and grants:

 Operating   $ 44,139,241 — 44,139,241 37,827,527

 Programs:

   Health   — 39,935,489 39,935,489 35,573,733

   Peace   — 10,635,582 10,635,582 13,873,866

   Cross-program   — 192,618 192,618 328,810

 In-kind gifts (note 9):

   Health   — 193,676,160 193,676,160 204,335,299

   Peace   — — — 115,000

 Endowment   — 309,185 309,185 32,593

    Total contributions and grants  44,139,241 244,749,034 288,888,275 292,086,828

Endowment fund earnings  13,180,421 23,230,237 36,410,658 35,076,995

Appreciation of endowment investments, net  (44,187,191)  (75,817,149)  (120,004,340)  300,798,458

Facilities use income  252,509 — 252,509 115,397

Interest and investment income  31,566 — 31,566 6,108

Net assets released from restrictions:

   Health   251,788,694 (251,788,694)  — —

   Peace   16,190,835 (16,190,835)  — —

   Cross-program   673,887 (673,887)  — —

    Total revenue and support  282,069,962 (76,491,294)  205,578,668 628,083,786

Expenses
Program:

   Health   261,125,289 — 261,125,289 270,061,266

   Peace   26,900,511 — 26,900,511 23,272,069

   Cross-program   1,843,904 — 1,843,904 571,419

 Fundraising   11,610,169 — 11,610,169 9,955,592

 General and administrative  11,788,052 — 11,788,052 10,776,042

    Total expenses  313,267,925 — 313,267,925 314,636,388

    Change in net assets  (31,197,963)  (76,491,294)  (107,689,257)  313,447,398

Net assets at beginning of year  454,689,287 786,146,969 1,240,836,256 927,388,858

Net assets at end of year  $423,491,324 709,655,675 1,133,146,999 1,240,836,256

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended August 31, 2021

      Without donor With donor
      restrictions restrictions Total

Revenue and support
Contributions and grants:

 Operating    $ 37,827,527 — 37,827,527

 Programs: 

  Health    — 35,573,733 35,573,733

  Peace    — 13,873,866 13,873,866

  Cross-program    — 328,810 328,810

 In-kind gifts (note 9):

  Health    — 204,335,299 204,335,299

  Peace    — 115,000 115,000

 Endowment    — 32,593 32,593

    Total contributions and grants   37,827,527 254,259,301 292,086,828

 Endowment fund earnings   12,698,652 22,378,343 35,076,995

 Appreciation of endowment investments, net   107,685,518 193,112,940 300,798,458

 Facilities use income   115,397 — 115,397

 Interest and investment income   2,546 3,562 6,108

 Net assets released from restrictions:

  Health    260,593,340 (260,593,340) —

  Peace    14,842,941 (14,842,941) —

  Cross-program    397,639 (397,639) —

    Total revenue and support   434,163,560 193,920,226 628,083,786

Expenses
Program:

  Health    270,061,266 — 270,061,266

  Peace    23,272,069 — 23,272,069

  Cross-program    571,419 — 571,419

Fundraising    9,955,592 — 9,955,592

General and administrative   10,776,042 — 10,776,042

    Total expenses   314,636,388 — 314,636,388

    Change in net assets   119,527,172 193,920,226 313,447,398

Net assets at beginning of year   335,162,115 592,226,743 927,388,858

Net assets at end of year   $454,689,287 786,146,969 1,240,836,256

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year ended August 31, 2021
  Program expenses Supporting expenses
    Cross-  General and
  Health Peace program Fundraising administrative Total

Salaries and benefits $ 23,341,825 10,666,365 220,349 4,887,534 6,077,327 45,193,400

Consulting 6,324,601 5,086,580 58,557 594,339 1,513,622 13,577,699

Communications 2,865,186 596,455 3,177 2,281,917 211,550 5,958,285

Services  205,835 629,028 7,607 1,210,247 494,269 2,546,986

Office and equipment 2,530,663 924,705 2,157 177,767 541,913 4,177,205

Vehicles  4,654,024 331,942 17 295 489 4,986,767

Travel/meetings 15,133,744 1,611,528 98 39,872 21,788 16,807,030

Interventions (note 2(k)) 211,817,490 — — — — 211,817,490

Other  1,154,082 150,648 3,041 312,519 1,168,799 2,789,089

Grants  1,511,856 2,892,333 250,000 — — 4,654,189

    269,539,306 22,889,584 545,003 9,504,490 10,029,757 312,508,140

Common area  
 and depreciation 521,960 382,485 26,416 451,102 746,285 2,128,248

  Total expenses $270,061,266 23,272,069 571,419 9,955,592 10,776,042 314,636,388

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year ended August 31, 2022 (with comparative totals for 2021)

  Program expenses Supporting expenses
    Cross-  General and Total
  Health Peace program Fundraising administrative 2022 2021

Salaries and benefits $ 25,163,228 12,271,525 226,777 4,757,418 6,109,799 48,528,747 45,193,400

Consulting 7,431,564 5,096,448 429,708 422,726 2,017,790 15,398,236 13,577,699

Communications 2,863,071 898,857 4,550 2,549,798 232,575 6,548,851 5,958,285

Services  252,997 807,028 2,508 1,822,813 487,319 3,372,665 2,546,986

Office and equipment 3,046,108 1,166,654 34,097 168,671 729,754 5,145,284 4,177,205

Vehicles  3,918,949 458,738 22 368 609 4,378,686 4,986,767

Travel/meetings 16,677,506 2,630,142 9,106 1,034,685 141,797 20,493,236 16,807,030

Interventions (note 2(k)) 197,241,072 — — — — 197,241,072 211,817,490

Other  1,321,847 406,321 3,753 377,025 1,279,834 3,388,780 2,789,089

Grants  2,657,408 2,760,638 1,105,470 — — 6,523,516 4,654,189

    260,573,750 26,496,351 1,815,991 11,133,504 10,999,477 311,019,073 312,508,140

Common area and  
 depreciation 551,539 404,160 27,913 476,665 788,575 2,248,852 2,128,248

  Total expenses $261,125,289 26,900,511 1,843,904 11,610,169 11,788,052 313,267,925 314,636,388

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021 

  2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets   $(107,689,257)  313,447,398

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
  provided by operating activities:

   Depreciation    755,972 666,632

   Appreciation of endowment investments, net   120,004,340 (300,711,231) 

   Appreciation of non-endowment investments, net   (32,866)  (87,227) 

   Donated artwork   — (6,750) 

   Contributions restricted in perpetuity, net   (309,185)  (84,494) 

    Net change in inventory balances due to noncash 
 contributions and distributions   (3,626,740)  1,488,323

   Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

    Accounts receivable   (2,843,258)  2,432,912

    Contributions receivable, net of donor endowment   57,356 1,362,500

    Other assets   180,905 105,854

     Accounts payable and accrued expenses, deferred 
 revenue, and annuity obligations   4,760,920 (638,305) 

     Net cash provided by operating activities   11,258,187 17,975,612

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment, net of related payables   (1,138,794)  (915,832) 

Endowment fund earnings   (36,410,658)  (35,076,995) 

Purchase of investments   (1,488,025)  (1,706,978) 

Sale of investments    37,402,972 35,426,896

     Net cash used in investing activities   (1,634,505)  (2,272,909) 

Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions restricted in perpetuity, net   309,185 84,494

Payments on annuities and trusts   (764,432)  (734,295) 

     Net cash used in financing activities   (455,247)  (649,801) 

     Net change in cash and cash equivalents   9,168,435 15,052,902

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   66,284,099 51,231,197

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   $ 75,452,534 66,284,099

Supplemental disclosures for cash flow information:

 Noncash investing activity — purchases of property and  
  equipment in accounts payable   $     72,749 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ORGANIZATION AND 
OPERATION

The Carter Center, Inc. (the Center), formerly known as 
Carter Presidential Library, Inc. and Carter Presidential 
Center, Inc., was organized on October 26, 1981, 
under the laws of the State of Georgia as a not-for-profit 
corporation to be operated exclusively for charitable and 
educational purposes.

The Center operates programmatically under two 
main action areas: Peace and Health. The Center also 
receives broad-based support deemed to be beneficial to all 
programs and categorized as Cross-program.

Initiatives in Peace include preventing and resolving 
conflict, protecting basic human rights, promoting rule of 
law, and monitoring elections in emerging democracies. 
The Health area strives to improve health in the United 
States and around the world. Initiatives include disease 
eradication and control and mental health reform. The 
Center operates field offices in various African, Asian, and 
Latin American countries, as needed, to fulfill its program-
matic objectives.

The board of trustees (the Board) of the Center consists 
of President Carter and Mrs. Carter, the president of 
Emory University, 10 members appointed by Emory 
University’s board of trustees, and 11 members appointed 
by President Carter and those trustees not appointed by 
Emory University’s board of trustees (Carter Center class 
of the Center’s trustees). Additionally, Emory University’s 
board of trustees has the authority to approve amendments 
to the Center’s articles of incorporation and bylaws. Carter 
Center of Emory University (CCEU) (an affiliate of CCI) 
is a department of Emory University that was established 
to assist with the operations of the Center’s programs. The 
financial data for CCEU is not included in these consol-
idated financial statements as it is considered part of the 
Emory University reporting entity.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
OTHER MATTERS

A. Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Center 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 

in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles.

B. Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Center 
include the activity of The Carter Center Collaborative, 
Inc. (CCCI), an affiliated tax-exempt not-for-profit corpo-
ration that supports the Center’s mission through receipt 
of in-kind goods and services. All significant intercom-
pany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

C. Basis of Presentation
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor- 
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the 
Center and changes therein are classified and reported 
as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that 
are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets subject to 
donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met either 
by actions of the Center and/or the passage of time.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Center’s cash and cash equivalents represent liquid 
financial instruments with an original maturity of 
three months or less that are not invested as part of the 
investment assets. These amounts, carried at cost, approx-
imate fair value.

E. Contributions
Contributions received are recognized as revenue when 
underlying assets or a donor’s unconditional promise 
to give is received. Contributions are considered to be 
available for use without restriction unless specifically 
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are desig-
nated for future periods or restricted by the donor for 
specific purposes are reported as support that increases 
net assets with donor restrictions.

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to 
be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable 
value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected 
to be collected in future years are recorded at the present 
value of their estimated future cash flows. Unconditional 
promises to give are discounted using interest rates 
approximating fair value at the date of the gift.

Contributions and grants are conditional if the donor 
agreement includes both a donor-imposed barrier that 
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must be overcome and a right of return of funds (or a 
release of an obligation to transfer funds). Conditional 
contributions are recognized as revenue once the 
donor-imposed barrier is overcome (typically qualifying 
expenses being incurred) or when right of return of the 
contribution to the donor no longer exists, as specified 
in the terms and conditions of the donor agreement.

Contributed property and equipment is recorded at 
fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate 
how long the assets must be used, the contributions 
are recorded as support with donor restrictions. In the 
absence of such stipulations, contributions of property 
and equipment are recorded as support without donor 
restrictions.

F. In-Kind Gifts
Donated materials and equipment, primarily medical 
supplies, are reflected in the consolidated statements of 
activities as contributions at their estimated fair values. 
Donated services are reflected as contributions if the 
following criteria are met: (1) the services received create 
or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) the services require 
specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if 
not provided by donation. Donated services are recog-
nized at fair value as the services are performed.

G. Inventory
Inventory primarily consists of medication used by 
the Center to treat diseases that are the subject of the 
Center’s health programs. Inventory is received as an 
in-kind donation and is valued using the first in, first 
out method at fair value at the time of the gift. Values, 
as determined by the donor and independent third-party 
pricing information, are utilized in management’s fair-
value estimate.

H. Investments
Investments in the pooled investment fund 
(the Fund) (note 5) are stated at fair value as determined 
by the manager, Emory University. Emory University’s 
pooled investments in securities and listed funds are 
valued using quoted prices in active markets, if avail-
able; otherwise, if the market is inactive, fair value is 
determined by Emory University in accordance with its 
valuation policy.

Investments in alternative investment fund structures 
held in the Fund are valued by Emory University using 
the net asset value (NAV) per share of the investment 

(or its equivalent), as a practical expedient, if (a) the 
underlying investment manager’s calculation of NAV 
is fair-value based, and (b) Emory University does not 
currently have plans to sell the investment for an amount 
different from NAV.

All other investments are stated at fair value based 
on quoted market prices. Investment return, including 
net realized and unrealized gains or losses, is recognized 
when earned and reported in the consolidated statement 
of activities.

The values of the investments in the pooled 
endowment fund determined by Emory University 
are evaluated by management of the Center who has 
concluded that such values are reasonable estimates of 
fair value at August 31, 2022 and 2021.

Investments are exposed to several risks, such as 
interest rate, currency, market, and credit risks. Due 
to the level of risk associated with certain investments, 
it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investments will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in 
the Center’s consolidated financial statements.

The Fund may hold investments denominated in 
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Thus, there is 
exposure to currency risk because the value of the invest-
ments denominated in other currencies may fluctuate 
due to changes in currency exchange rates. This can have 
an effect on the reported value of these assets.

The Fund’s investment portfolio is subject to interest 
rate and credit risks for certain securities whose valuation 
would be impacted by changes in interest rates. The port-
folio is also subject to the risk that the issuer of a debt 
security may be unable to pay interest or repay principal 
when it is due.

The value of securities held by the Fund may decline 
in response to certain economic events. Such events 
impacting valuation may include (but are not limited 
to) economic changes; market fluctuations; regulatory 
changes; global and political instability; and currency, 
interest rate, and commodity price fluctuations.

I. Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost at the 
date of acquisition or at fair value at the date of dona-
tion, in the case of gifts. Depreciation is provided over 
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on a 
straight-line basis.
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J. Artwork
The Center has capitalized works of art and collectibles 
received since its inception at the estimated fair value at 
the date of acquisition. Works of art with service poten-
tial that diminishes very slowly over time, to the extent 
that its estimated useful is extraordinarily long, are not 
subject to depreciation.

K. Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the Center’s various programs 
and supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, 
certain costs have been allocated among the programs 
and supporting services benefited. Intervention expenses 
included within the Center’s health program service 
comprise the distribution of donated medications, 
primarily Mectizan and Zithromax, as well as filter cloth 
distribution, epidemiological surveys, and health educa-
tion training and material. Expenses attributable to more 
than one functional expense category and the basis for 
allocation are as follows:

Expense Allocation basis

Depreciation Square footage
IT department  Estimates of time and costs of 

specific technology utilized

L. Federal and Other Government Grants
The Center receives funding under grants and agree-
ments from U.S. and other government agencies. These 
funds are generally considered nonreciprocal transactions 
and are subject to donor conditions and restrictions 
which are typically met by incurring qualifying expenses 
for a program. The Center is entitled to the funds once 
the conditions have been met.

For the year ended August 31, 2022, the Center 
received 450,000 GBP ($583,651) from the United 
Kingdom Foreign Commonwealth & Development 
Office (FCDO), the agency formed by the September 
2020 merger of the Department for International 
Development (DFID) and the Foreign Commonwealth 
Office (FCO), in support of the Center’s Citizen 
Observer Engagement and Advocacy project in the DRC. 
For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Center received 
1,725,244 GBP ($2,338,123) from the UK FCDO in 

support of the Center’s Guinea Worm Eradication 
Program.

For the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, Irish 
Aid contributed 200,000 Euros ($225,464) and 200,000 
Euros ($242,376), respectively, to the Center to support 
Advancing Women’s Right of Access to Information in 
Liberia.

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Center 
received 87,764 Euros ($103,414) from Irish Aid to 
support the Monitoring Digital Threats on Social Media 
in Liberia Initiative. Irish Aid also contributed 198,304 
Euros ($239,726) to the Center for the year ended 
August 31, 2021, to support Expanding Advancement 
of the Right of Access to Information for Women 
in Liberia.

For the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, the 
Swiss Confederation contributed $121,918 and $73,975, 
respectively, to support Civil Society Organization 
engagement in inclusive and credible elections in Tunisia. 
For the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, the Swiss 
Confederation also contributed $200,000 and $150,000, 
respectively, to support Monitoring Digital Threats on 
Social Media in Myanmar.

M. Tax Status
The Center and CCCI have received determination 
letters from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) dated 
December 16, 1991, and March 22, 2007, respectively, 
each indicating recognition as an organization described 
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(the Code) whereby only unrelated business income, 
as defined by Section 512(a) of the Code, is subject to 
federal income tax.

The Center applies Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
Topic 740, Income Taxes (ASC 740), which addresses 
the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. 
It also provides guidance on when tax positions are 
recognized in an entity’s financial statements and how 
the values of these positions are determined. There is 
currently no impact on the consolidated financial state-
ments as a result of ASC 740.

N. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
requires management to make a number of estimates 
and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of 
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assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Significant items 
subject to such estimates and assumptions include the 
fair value of inventory; fair values of investments without 
readily determinable fair value; and obligations under 
split-interest agreements. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.

O. Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, 
Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). ASU 2016-02 requires 
the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by 
lessees for those leases classified as operating leases 
under ASC Topic 840, Leases. The accounting applied by 
a lessor under ASU 2016-02 is largely unchanged from 
that applied under ASC Topic 840. In June 2020, the 
FASB issued ASU No. 2020-05, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842): 
Effective Dates for Certain Entities, which delayed the 
effective date for this standard to fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2021. The Center plans to adopt 
ASU 2016-02 during the fiscal year ending August 31, 
2023. The Center has not yet determined the impact of 
the new standard on its current policies but does not 
expect the adoption to have a material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-03, 
Not‑For‑Profit Entities (Topic 958) — Updating the Definition 
of Collections (ASU 2019-03). The amendments in 
ASU 2019-03 modify the definition of the term 
“collections” and require that a collection holding entity 
disclose its policy for the use of proceeds from when 
collection items are deaccessioned (i.e., removed from a 
collection). If a collection holding entity has a policy that 
allows proceeds from deaccessioned collection items to 
be used for direct care, the ASU requires that the collec-
tion holding entity disclose its definition of direct care. 
The ASU is effective for annual financial statements 
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2019. The Center’s implementation of the provisions 
of ASU 2019-03 during 2021 did not have a material 
impact on the Center’s consolidated financial statements.

The FASB issued ASU 2020-07 Not‑For‑Profit Entities 
(Topic 958) on Presentation and Disclosures by Not‑For‑Profit 
Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which requires 
organizations to present contributed nonfinancial assets 
as a separate line item in the statement of activities, apart 
from cash and other financial assets, and disaggregate 
into different categories of the nonfinancial assets. For 
each category, the qualitative information is required, and 
whether the contributed nonfinancial asset was mone-
tized or utilized during the reporting period. For utilized 
assets the description of programs and other activities 
and donor-imposed restrictions on the use of assets need 
to be disclosed. The policy about monetizing rather than 
utilizing nonfinancial assets, valuation techniques and 
principal markets used to arrive at a fair-value measure 
at initial recognition also need to be disclosed. The term 
“nonfinancial asset” includes fixed assets (land, building, 
equipment) or utilities, materials, supplies, intangible 
assets, services and unconditional promises of these 
assets. The update should be applied on retrospective 
basis and is effective for the Center’s fiscal year ended 
August 31, 2022. The Center’s accompanying 2022 and 
2021 consolidated financial statements and notes include 
the presentation and disclosure elements required by 
the ASU.

P. COVID-19
During 2020, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) 
surfaced, the subsequent spread of which around the 
world and in the U.S. has caused significant volatility 
in the global financial markets, including those in the 
U.S. There is continued uncertainty as to the breadth 
and duration of this pandemic and the resultant market 
disruption. Mandates from state and local authorities 
have required periodic temporary closure and/or limited 
operations of certain schools, businesses, and other 
facilities and organizations. While such closures and 
limitations on movement, both globally and in the U.S., 
have largely been lifted, the potential continued spread 
of COVID-19 and its impact on social interaction, 
economic activity, and financial markets may adversely 
affect the Center’s operations and financial position.
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INVESTMENTS

The Center invests the majority of its investments in a 
pooled investment fund managed and held in trust by 
Emory University. The Center’s investments also include 
assets invested for its charitable gift annuities and charitable 
remainder trusts. These investments are presented in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position 
at their fair values.
  Fair value 
  2022 2021

Pooled investments held  
 at Emory University  $1,047,539,542 1,164,791,763
Cash and cash equivalents  393,138 244,016
Fixed-income securities: 
 Domestic mutual funds  3,741,181 4,445,017
Equities: 
 Domestic stocks  7,109,229 9,038,108
 Domestic mutual funds  90,463 110,425
   $1,058,873,553 1,178,629,329 

As of August 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively, the 
Center’s investment in the pooled investment fund totaled 
$1,047,539,542 and $1,164,791,763, representing approxi-
mately 10.7% and 10.9% of the pool at each of these dates. 
The composition of total pooled investments held at Emory 
University is as follows (in thousands):

  2022 2021

Short-term investments  
 and cash equivalents  $  388,330 657,046
Public equity  3,538,101 4,542,068
Absolute return/fixed income  1,181,574 942,591
Private equity/venture capital  3,726,232 3,723,724
Real assets  949,996 826,654
Derivative instruments  11,695 42,045
   $9,795,928 10,734,128 

Based on Emory University’s investment policy statement, 
investments classified as public equity include global 
equity securities and commingled funds — equity, as well as 
alternative investments pursuing such strategies. Absolute 
return/fixed income investments comprise fixed-income 
securities and commingled funds — fixed income, along with 
alternative investments pursuing similar credit or oppor-
tunistic strategies. Private equity/venture capital includes 

 
CONTRIBUTIONS  
RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable consist of the following at 
August 31, 2022 and 2021:

  2022 2021

With donor restrictions:
 Endowment  $199,323 199,323
 Health  30,840 88,196
   $230,163 287,519

The anticipated receipts of these receivables are as follows at 
August 31, 2022 and 2021:

  2022 2021

Less than one year  $230,163 287,519
One to five years  — —
More than five years  — —
Less unamortized discount  — —
   $230,163 287,519

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate commensurate with the 
risks involved. Amortization of discounts is recorded 
as additional contribution revenue in accordance with 
donor-imposed restrictions on the contributions. In the 
opinion of the Center’s management, all contributions 
receivable recorded at August 31, 2022 and 2021, are 
deemed fully collectible.

 
 
INVENTORY

Inventory was composed of Zithromax medication in the 
amount of $4,387,783 and $761,043 as of August 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively.
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SPLIT‑INTEREST  
AGREEMENTS

The Center is a beneficiary under several types of split- 
interest agreements, primarily charitable gift annuities. 
Under these agreements, the Center acts as trustee of assets 
received from donors and remits to the donor or other 
designee a fixed amount for a specified period of time, 
normally until the death of the donor or other designee. 
Assets related to charitable gift annuities are recorded at 
their fair values when received, and an annuity payment 
liability is recognized at the present value of future cash 
flows expected to be paid to the donor or other designee. 
At the time of the gift, the Center recognizes contribution 
revenue for the remainder interest in an amount equal to the 
difference between the fair value of the assets received and 
the annuity liability. Discount rates and actuarial assump-
tions used to determine the annuity liability are typically 
based on factors, such as applicable federal interest rates 
and life income beneficiary life expectancies, as determined 
by mortality tables published by the IRS. The changes in 
the value of these agreements are included in operating 
contributions and grants in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of activities.

Certain states have restrictions on investment allocations. 
Management of the Center believes it has complied with any 
known restrictions in states in which it has received chari-
table gifts subject to such restrictions.

The fair value of the assets related to split-interest 
agreements is included in investments in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of financial position and totaled 
$11,334,011 and $13,837,566 at August 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. The annuity liability related to these agreements 
is $6,204,467 and $5,624,221 at August 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. The net contribution revenue (loss) reported for 
split-interest agreements as a component of contributions 
and grants revenue and support totaled ($3,083,801) and 
$2,510,089 for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively.

investments in the private markets, as well as investments in 
private securities. Real assets include those investments in 
natural resources and real estate partnerships.

Emory University is subject to limitations and restrictions 
on its ability to redeem or sell certain of the investments 
included in its pooled investment fund. Such restrictions 
vary by investment type and range from required notice 
periods (generally 30 to 180 days after initial lockup periods) 
to specified terms at inception (generally 10 years).

The Center and Emory University entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) during September 
2020 which sets forth mutual expectations regarding the 
management by Emory University of the Center’s assets 
held in trust in the pooled investment fund. The MOU 
provides that the Center is permitted partial withdrawals of 
up to 10% per year (inclusive of regular spending payouts), 
with 30 days’ written notice prior to a calendar quarter or 
fiscal year end. A full withdrawal request by the Center 
requires at least one year’s written notice and is subject to a 
multiyear distribution schedule in line with the duration of 
the long-term investment portfolio, as agreed upon by both 
the Center and Emory University.

 
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND 
EQUIPMENT

The components of property, plant, and equipment at 
August 31, 2022 and 2021, are as follows:

   Estimated 
 2022 2021 useful lives

Land $    636,732 636,732 N/A
Buildings 17,580,412 17,580,412 30 years
Building improvements 3,123,015 2,716,234 15 years
Grounds and land  
 improvements 198,243 192,884 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 1,233,613 1,061,522 10 years
Office equipment 741,364 271,457 5 years
Computer equipment 453,290 311,507 3 years
  23,966,669 22,770,748 
Less accumulated  
 depreciation (19,043,389)  (18,303,039)  
  $  4,923,280 4,467,709 

Depreciation expense totaled $755,972 and $666,632 
during 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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LEASES

The Center leases space to various entities under noncancel-
able operating leases with various terms. The Center leases 
to CCEU approximately 20% of the Center’s space under a 
lease for a term of 99 years, with a rental payment of $1 per 
year. A business agreement with the Center’s caterer has no 
annual rent; rather, the Center receives 5% to 10% of the 
tenant’s gross revenue, as defined in such agreement. Rental 
income from these leases is included in facilities use income 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

 
 
IN‑KIND GIFTS

The components of in-kind gifts, donated goods, and 
services for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, are 
as follows:

  2022 2021

Health:
 Medication  $193,380,832 203,860,578
 Other  295,328 474,721
   193,676,160 204,335,299
Peace:
 Other  — 115,000
   $193,676,160 204,450,299

Donations of medication were received primarily from 
two pharmaceutical companies for the years ended 
August 31, 2022 and 2021. These donations are subject 
to donor-imposed restrictions as to location of distribu-
tion and were used in the Center’s River Blindness and 
Trachoma programs in sub-Saharan Africa. Such donations 
are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of the gift. 
Estimates of fair value are based primarily on analyzing 
observable market data associated with branded, wholesale 
and generic pricing; geographic factors considering the U.S. 
as the most advantageous market; and fair-value indicators 
provided by donors, if any.

All in-kind gifts are utilized in the year of receipt with 
the exception relating to the balance of medical inventory 
disclosed in note 4.

 
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS

The Center’s estimates of fair value for financial assets 
and liabilities are based on the framework established in 
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement. This framework is 
based on the inputs used in valuations and gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets and requires 
observable inputs to be used in the valuations when avail-
able. The disclosure of fair-value estimates in the hierarchy 
described below is based on whether the significant inputs 
into the valuation are observable. In determining the level of 
the hierarchy in which the estimate is disclosed, the highest 
priority is given to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs that 
reflect the Center’s significant market assumptions. The 
three levels of the fair-value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted market 
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Valuations based on pricing inputs that are 
other than quoted prices in active markets, which are 
either directly or indirectly observable; examples include 
quoted prices in active markets of the underlying assets, 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in an inactive market, or valuations based on 
models where significant inputs are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Valuations are derived from other valuation 
methodologies, including pricing models, discounted 
cash flow models, and similar techniques. Level 3 valu-
ations incorporate certain assumptions and projections 
that are not observable in the market and require signifi-
cant professional judgment in determining the fair value 
assigned to such assets or liabilities.

The fair-value hierarchy requires the use of observable 
market data when available. As required by ASC Topic 820, 
assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on 
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair-value 
measurements.

Contributions receivable for current year gifts are initially 
measured at fair value in the year the receivable is recorded 
based on the present value of future cash flows discounted 
at a rate commensurate with risks involved, which is an 
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application of the income approach. At August 31, 2022 
and 2021, there were no current year gifts included in 
contributions receivable.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
and deferred revenue approximates fair value because of 
the relative terms and short maturity of these financial 
instruments. The carrying value of annuity obligations 
approximates fair value and is based on the present value of 
the estimated future cash flows.

NAV was used as a practical expedient estimate 
of fair value relative to the Center’s interest in the 
Emory University pooled endowment fund. NAV, in 
many instances, may not equal fair value that would be 
determined pursuant to ASC Topic 820. There are no 
redemption restrictions on the Center with respect to its 
pooled investments held at Emory University. Investments 
that are valued using the practical expedient, as described 
above, are labeled as NAV and are not categorized within 
the fair-value hierarchy. The Center does not hold any 
investments that would be categorized as Level 3 invest-
ments as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Center’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair-value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2022:

 Level 1 NAV Total

Assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents   $75,845,672   —   75,845,672  
 Fixed-income securities:
  Domestic mutual funds   3,741,181   —   3,741,181  
 Equities: 
  Domestic stocks   7,109,229   —   7,109,229  
  Domestic mutual funds   90,463   —   90,463  
 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund  —   1,047,539,542   1,047,539,542  
   Total   $86,786,545   1,047,539,542   1,134,326,087  

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Center’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair-value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2021:

 Level 1 NAV Total

Assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents   $66,528,115   —   66,528,115  
 Fixed-income securities: 
  Domestic mutual funds   4,445,017   —   4,445,017  
 Equities: 
  Domestic stocks   9,038,108   —   9,038,108  
  Domestic mutual funds   110,425   —   110,425  
 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund  —   1,164,791,763   1,164,791,763  
   Total   $80,121,665   1,164,791,763   1,244,913,428  
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Of the donor-restricted endowment net assets noted 
above, $165.2 million and $164.9 million as of August 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively, represent donor-restricted 
endowment corpus. The remaining $513.0 million and 
$588.8 million as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, 
represent appreciation and reinvested earnings related to 
the donor-restricted corpus but for which the Center’s 
management and board have full discretion to use within 
the donor-stipulated purpose, if any, as noted above.

 
 
ENDOWMENT FUNDS

The Center’s endowment funds consist of individual 
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated 
by the Board to function as endowments. The net assets 
associated with endowment funds, including those funds 
designated by the Board to function as endowment, are 
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions.

A. Interpretation of Relevant Law
The Center has interpreted the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as 
adopted by the State of Georgia, as providing, among other 
things, expanded spending flexibility by allowing, subject 
to a standard of prudence, spending from an endowment 
without regard to the book value of the corpus of the fund. 
As a result of this interpretation, the Center classifies as net 
assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts 
donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subse-
quent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the 
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumula-
tion is added to the fund.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Center considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate 
or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

•  The duration and preservation of the fund

•  The purposes of the Center and the donor-restricted 
endowment fund

•  General economic conditions

 
 
NET ASSETS

A. Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
As of August 31, 2022 and 2021, net assets without donor 
restrictions are as follows:

  2022 2021

Undesignated  $ 46,466,338 34,166,313
Board-designated for:
  Endowment investment,  

 subject to spending policy 
 and appropriation  377,024,986 420,522,974

   $423,491,324 454,689,287

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds inter-
nally designated for endowment investment and program 
funding. These amounts are classified as net assets without 
donor restrictions due to the lack of explicit donor stipu-
lations that restrict their use. Unrealized gains or losses on 
internally designated endowment funds are classified as 
changes in net assets without restrictions.

B. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
As of August 31, 2022 and 2021, net assets with donor 
restrictions are available for the following purposes:

  2022 2021

Donor-restricted for specified purposes: 
 Health  $  7,289,000 10,061,935
 Peace  612,543 1,812,933
 Cross-program  23,507,730 20,517,735
   31,409,273 32,392,603
Donor-restricted endowments  
  subject to spending policy and 

appropriation, to support  
the following purposes: 

  Health  20,496,911 22,798,610
  Peace  2,917,276 3,254,261
  Cross-program  2,776,147 488,144
  General activities  652,056,068 727,213,351
   678,246,402 753,754,366
   $709,655,675 786,146,969 
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•  The possible effect of inflation and deflation

•  The expected total return from income and the appre-
ciation of investments

•  Other resources of the Center

•  The investment policies of the Center

The Center invests its endowment assets in a pooled 
investment fund managed by Emory University. The Board 
follows the investment return objectives and the spending 
policy, as directed and managed by Emory University’s 
board of trustees, as set forth in more detail below.

B. Return Objectives and Risk Parameters
The Center supports Emory University’s investment and 
spending policies, the objective of which is to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by 
its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing 
power of the endowment assets. Under this investment 
policy, as approved by Emory University’s board of trustees, 
the endowment assets are invested within risk tolerances 
of Emory University to provide an expected total return in 
excess of spending and inflation over the long term.

C. Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives
To satisfy its long-term return objectives, the Center relies 
on Emory University’s total return strategy in which invest-
ment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation 
(realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). Emory University employs a diversified asset 
allocation strategy across public equity, absolute return/fixed 
income, private equity/venture capital, real assets, and deriv-
ative instruments to achieve its long-term return objectives 
within a prudent risk framework.

D. Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives 
Relate to Spending Policy
The Center follows Emory University’s total return endow-
ment spending policy that establishes the maximum amount 
of endowment investment return available to support 
current operating and capital needs. The Center considered 
the expected return on its endowment, including the effect 
of inflation in setting the annual appropriation amount. 
Accordingly, the Center expects the current spending 
policy to allow its endowment to maintain its purchasing 
power if projected growth rates are achieved. Additional 
real growth will be provided by new gifts and any excess 
investment return.

Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2022:

 Without donor With donor
 restrictions restrictions Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds   $         — 678,246,402 678,246,402
Board-designated endowment funds   377,024,986 — 377,024,986
  Total funds   $377,024,986 678,246,402 1,055,271,388

Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2021:

 Without donor With donor
 restrictions restrictions Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds   $         — 753,754,366 753,754,366
Board-designated endowment funds   420,522,974 — 420,522,974
  Total funds   $420,522,974 753,754,366 1,174,277,340

There were no underwater endowment funds during the years ended August 31, 2022 or 2021.
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Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2022, are as follows:

 Without donor With donor
 restrictions restrictions Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2021   $420,522,974 753,754,366 1,174,277,340
Contributions   689,203 309,185 998,388
Investment return:
 Endowment fund earnings   13,180,421 23,230,237 36,410,658
 Appreciation of endowment  investments, net  (44,187,191)  (75,817,149)  (120,004,340) 
  Total investment return   (31,006,770)  (52,586,912)  (83,593,682) 
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure  (13,180,421)  (23,230,237)  (36,410,658) 
Endowment funds, August 31, 2022   $377,024,986 678,246,402 1,055,271,388

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2021, are as follows:

 Without donor With donor
 restrictions restrictions Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2020   $312,079,961 560,997,160 873,077,121
Contributions   757,495 32,593 790,088
Investment return:
 Endowment fund earnings   12,698,652 22,378,343 35,076,995
 Appreciation of endowment investments, net  107,685,518 193,112,940 300,798,458
  Total investment return   120,384,170 215,491,283 335,875,453
Appropriation of endowment assets  for expenditure  (12,698,652)  (22,766,670)  (35,465,322) 
Endowment funds, August 31, 2021   $420,522,974 753,754,366 1,174,277,340
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Emory University made unrestricted contributions to 
the Center of $779,989 and $753,904, respectively, for the 
years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021. In addition, CCEU 
made unrestricted contributions to CCI, primarily related to 
endowment earnings at CCEU, of $484,791 and $468,592 
for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

THE CARTER CENTER 
COLLABORATIVE,  
INC. (CCCI)

CCCI received donations of in-kind goods for the benefit 
of the Center totaling $193,380,832 and $203,860,578 for 
the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, 
that are included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities. Expenses totaling $189,901,562 and 
$205,348,901 related to the use or grant of these donations 
are also included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities for the years ended August 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. Inventory related to these goods for 
CCCI totaled $4,387,783 and $761,043 as of August 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively, and is included in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of financial position.

 
COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES

Federal Financial Assistance
Federally funded programs are routinely subject to special 
audits that could result in claims against the resources of the 
Center. Management does not believe that there will be any 
claims arising from such audits that could have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of the Center.

 
 
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Center has evaluated subsequent events from the 
consolidated statement of financial position date through 
May 5, 2023, the date on which the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued, and determined 
that there are none requiring adjustment or disclosure in 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements and 
related notes.

LIQUIDITY AND  
AVAILABILITY OF  
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Center’s financial assets available for general expen-
diture within one year of August 31, 2022 and 2021, are 
as follows:

  2022 2021

Total assets  $1,155,395,889 1,259,295,922
 Less: 
    Net assets with donor  

  restrictions for specified  
purpose, net of inventory  (27,021,490)  (31,631,560) 

    Donor-restricted and  
  board-designated 
endowment funds  (1,055,271,388)  (1,174,277,340)

  Inventory  (4,387,783)  (761,043) 
   Property, plant, and  

  equipment  (4,923,280)  (4,467,709) 
  Artwork  (2,435,365)  (2,435,365) 
  Other assets  (33,286)  (214,191) 
  Deferred revenue  (6,111,603)  (4,790,884) 
  Annuity obligations  (6,204,467)  (5,624,221) 
   $   49,007,227 35,093,609

The primary sources of liquidity for the Center are cash 
accounts at headquarters and in the field. The Center 
structures its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. 
In the event of unanticipated liquidity needs, the Center’s 
board of trustees may turn to the portion of the Center’s 
endowment classified as without donor restrictions for 
consideration.

 
RELATED‑PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS

Emory University provides certain administrative functions 
to the Center, including, but not limited to, payroll admin-
istration, investment management, information technology, 
and legal services. The Center paid Emory University 
$690,156 during both the years ended August 31, 2022 and 
2021, respectively, for the provision of these services.
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A Tunisian man votes in parliamentary 
elections. The Carter Center monitored 
the voting and a runoff, suggesting ways 
to stop democratic backsliding there. 
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Caribbean and 
Central America
  4 Belize
  5 Costa Rica
  6 Cuba
  7  Dominican 

Republic
  8 El Salvador
  9 Guatemala
10 Haiti
11 Honduras
12 Jamaica
13 Nicaragua
14 Panama

North America
1 Canada
2 Mexico
3 United States

Europe
26 Albania
27  Bosnia and 

Herzegovina
28 Estonia
29 Romania
30 Russia

South America
15 Argentina
16 Bolivia
17 Brazil
18 Chile
19 Colombia
20 Ecuador
21 Guyana
22 Paraguay
23 Peru
24 Suriname
25 Venezuela

Since its founding in 
1982, The Carter Center 
has undertaken peace 
and health initiatives in 
more than 80 countries 
worldwide. These are 
the countries where 
the Center has had 
a presence, past and 
present.

Legend
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n Health Programs
n  Peace and 

Health Programs
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the carter center around the worldthe carter center around the world
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Africa
31 Algeria
32 Angola
33 Benin
34 Burkina Faso
35 Burundi
36 Cameroon
37  Central African 

Republic

Oceania
86 New Zealand

Asia
75 Bangladesh
76 China
77 India
78 Indonesia
79 Myanmar
80 Nepal
81 North Korea
82 Pakistan
83 Philippines
84 Sri Lanka
85 Timor-Leste

38 Chad
39 Cote d’Ivoire
40  Democratic 

Republic of 
the Congo

41 Eritrea
42 Ethiopia
43 Ghana

44 Guinea
45 Kenya
46 Liberia
47 Libya
48 Madagascar
49 Malawi
50 Mali
51 Mauritania

52 Mozambique
53 Niger
54 Nigeria
55 Rwanda
56 Senegal
57 Sierra Leone
58 Somalia
59 South Africa

60 South Sudan
61 Sudan
62 Tanzania
63 Togo
64 Tunisia
65 Uganda
66 Zambia

Middle East
67 Egypt
68  Israel and Palestine
69 Jordan
70 Lebanon
71 Qatar
72 Syria
73 United Arab Emirates
74 Yemen

the carter center around the world
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As part of her job duties, Carter Center intern 
Kennedy Gooden films the dedication ceremony 
of the Peace Bell tower newly installed on the 
Carter Center grounds. Gooden was a graduate 
student from Georgia State University.

Senior Staff

Interns and Graduate Assistants

Peace Programs
Barbara Smith, M.S. 
Vice President, Peace Programs

Victoria Ayer, J.D. 
Director, Rule of Law Program

David Carroll, Ph.D. 
Director, Democracy Program

Stacia George, M.A. 
Director, Conflict Resolution 
Program

Susan Marx, MSt., M.A. 
Director, Human Rights Program

Cross-Program
P. Craig Withers Jr., 
M.H.A., M.B.A.
Vice President, Overseas 
Operations

Health Programs
Kashef Ijaz, M.D., M.P.H.
Vice President, Health Programs

Eve H. Byrd, D.N.P., M.P.H.
Director, Mental Health Program

Kelly Callahan, M.P.H.
Director, Trachoma Control 
Program

William H. Foege, 
M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Fellow, Health Policy

Gregory Noland, Ph.D., M.P.H.
Director, River Blindness, 
Lymphatic Filariasis, 
Schistosomiasis, and Malaria

Adam Weiss, M.P.H.
Director, Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program

Operations
Christopher D. Brown, CPA
Vice President, Finance; Treasurer

Sabrina Burnett , M.P.A.
Director, People, Operations, 
and Programs

Matthew De Galan
Vice President, Communications

Nicole Kruse
Vice President, Development

Educational Programs
Lauren S. Kent-Delany, M.S.
Director, Educational Programs

Research
Steven H. Hochman, Ph.D.
Director, Research; 
Faculty Assistant to 
President Carter

Paige Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

Office of Jimmy and 
Rosalynn Carter
Lauren L. Gay
Special Assistant to 
Jimmy Carter

Beth M. Davis
Special Assistant, 
Presidential Scheduling;  
Chief of Staff

Melissa M. Montgomery
Special Assistant to 
Rosalynn Carter

The Carter Center sponsors a competitive intern-
ship program, bringing to Atlanta college students 
and recent graduates from universities around 
the world each semester. Interns and graduate 
assistants play a vital role in 
helping The Carter Center 
accomplish its peace and health 
initiatives, and interns serve 
in many capacities around the 
Center. In turn, The Carter 
Center provides a substantive 
learning experience that serves 
as a basis for interns to explore 
their career options and to 
develop professional skills. Over 
its history, The Carter Center 
has had 3,636 interns from 109 
countries and 658 universities 
who spoke 174 languages.
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Friends of the Inter-American Democratic Charter

International Task Force for Disease Eradication

Kashef Ijaz, M.D., M.P.H. (Chair)
Vice President for Health Programs
The Carter Center 

Fatima Barry, Ph.D.
Health Specialist
Health, Nutrition, and Population
The World Bank 

Simon Bland
Chief Executive Officer
Global Institute for Disease 

Elimination

Ibrahima Socé Fall, Dr.Med., Ph.D.
Director, Department of Control of 

Neglected Tropical Diseases
World Health Organization 

J. Peter Figueroa, Ph.D.
Professor of Public Health, 

Epidemiology and HIV/AIDS
University of the West Indies

Donald R. Hopkins, M.D., M.P.H.
Special Advisor, Guinea Worm 

Eradication
The Carter Center

Patrick Lammie, Ph.D.
Director, Neglected Tropical 

Diseases Support Center
The Task Force for Global Health

Ephrem T. Lemango, M.D., M.A.
Principal Advisor and Chief of 

Immunizations
UNICEF

Kim Lindblade, Ph.D.
PMI Insights Technical Director, 

Malaria and Neglected Tropical 
Diseases

PATH 

David Molyneux, Ph.D., 
D.Sc., Hon. F.R.C.P.
Professor, Tropical Health Sciences
Liverpool School of 

Tropical Medicine

Ana Morice Trejos, M.D.,  
M.Sc., M.P.H.
Pediatrician/Epidemiologist
Independent Consultant

Notable scientists and organizations come together in this Carter Center task force to 
evaluate the potential for eradi cating or controlling infectious diseases. It monitors progress in 
disease eradication, reviews the status of selected diseases, and recommends opportunities 
for eradication or better control of diseases such as Guinea worm disease, river blindness, 
lymphatic filariasis, schisto somiasis, malaria, and measles.

W. William Schluter, M.D., 
M.S.P.H.
Country Director, China
U.S. Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention

Faisal Sultan, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer 

Hospital and Research Center

Jordan Tappero, M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Program Officer, Neglected 

Tropical Diseases
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

Dyann Wirth, Ph.D., M.A.
Professor of Immunology and 

Infectious Diseases
Harvard School of Public Health
Director of Harvard Malaria 

Initiative

Osvaldo Hurtado 
Former President of Ecuador

Torquato Jardim 
Former Justice of the Superior 
Electoral Tribunal of Brazil

Serena Joseph-Harris 
Former High Commissioner for the 
Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 
to the United Kingdom

Luis Alberto Lacalle 
Former President of Uruguay

Samuel Lewis 
Former Vice President of Panama

Jennie K. Lincoln  
(Executive Secretary) 
Senior Advisor for Latin America 
and the Caribbean, The Carter 
Center

John Maisto 
Former U.S. Ambassador to the 
Organization of American States

John Manley 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Canada

Carlos Mesa 
Former President of Bolivia

Andrés Pastrana 
Former President of Colombia

Sergio Ramirez 
Former Vice President of Nicaragua

Sir Ronald Sanders 
Member of the Commonwealth 
Eminent Persons Group 
2010–2011

Bruno Stagno 
Former Foreign Minister of 
Costa Rica

Eduardo Stein 
Former Vice President of 
Guatemala

Martín Torrijos 
Former President of Panama

Fernando Tuesta Soldevilla 
Former Director, National Office of 
Electoral Processes, Peru

Joaquín Villalobos 
Founder of the Farabundo Marti 
National Liberation Front, 
Signatory of the Peace Agreements 
of El Salvador in 1992

The Friends of the Inter-American Democratic Charter comprises former presidents, prime 
ministers, and cabinet ministers from the Western Hemisphere who seek to increase the visibility 
of the tenets of the charter and to prevent democratic tensions from erupting into crises.

Diego Abente Brun 
Former Minister of Justice and 
Labor of Paraguay

Mariclaire Acosta 
Former Undersecretary of Foreign 
Relations for Human Rights and 
Democracy of Mexico

Nicolás Ardito Barletta 
Former President of Panama

Carlos Ayala Corao 
Former President, Inter-American 
Commission on Human Rights

Cecilia Blondet 
Former Minister for the 
Advancement of Women and 
Human Development of Peru

Catalina Botero Marino 
Former Special Rapporteur 
for Freedom of Expression for 
Inter-American Commission on 
Human Rights

Humberto de la Calle 
Former Vice President 
of Colombia

Santiago Canton 
Former Director of RFK Partners 
for Human Rights for Robert F. 
Kennedy Center for Justice and 
Human Rights

Fernando Henrique Cardoso 
Former President of Brazil

Jimmy Carter 
Former President of the 
United States of America

Jorge Castañeda 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Mexico

Joe Clark 
Former Prime Minister of Canada

Santiago Corcuera 
U.N. Rapporteur and Chair for 
Working Group on Enforced or 
Involuntary Disappearances

Alejandro Foxley 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Chile

Enrique Garcia 
Former Executive President  
of the Development Bank of  
Latin America

Diego García-Sayán 
Former Foreign Minister of Peru

César Gaviria 
Former President of Colombia

John Graham 
Chair Emeritus, Canadian 
Foundation for the Americas

83



The Rosalynn Carter Fellowships for 
Mental Health Journalism Advisory Board

The Carter Center Mental Health Task Force

Chaired by former First Lady Rosalynn Carter, the Mental 
Health Task Force focuses on mental health policy issues. 
It develops initiatives to reduce stigma and discrimination 
against people with mental illnesses; seeks equity for mental 
health care comparable to other health care; advances 

Rosalynn Carter, Chair

Renato D. Alarcon, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Professor of Psychiatry, Emeritus, 
Mayo Clinic

William R. Beardslee, M.D. 
Director (Retired), Baer Prevention 
Initiatives, Boston Children’s 
Hospital

Pamela Collins, M.D., M.P.H. 
Professor of Psychiatry and 
Behavioral Sciences, University of 
Washington

Benjamin G. Druss, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Rosalynn Carter Endowed 
Chair in Mental Health, 
Rollins School of Public Health, 
Emory University

Mary Jane England, M.D. 
Professor, Boston University School 
of Public Health

Rosa Gil, D.S.W. 
President and Chief Executive 
Officer, Comunilife Inc.

W. Rodney Hammond, Ph.D. 
Director (Retired), Division of 
Violence Prevention, Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention

Ethleen Iron Cloud-Two 
Dogs, M.S. 
Program Director, Mental Health 
Project, Oglala Sioux Tribe

Nadine J. Kaslow, Ph.D., ABPP 
Professor and Chief Psychologist, 
Department of Psychiatry and 
Behavioral Sciences, Emory 
University

Jennifer Olsen, D.Ph., M.P.H. 
Executive Director, Rosalynn Carter 
Institute for Caregivers

Ruth Perou, Ph.D. 
Deputy Associate Director, National 
Center on Birth Defects and 
Developmental Disabilities, U.S. 
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention

Sally Engelhard Pingree 
President, The S. Engelhard Center; 
Trustee, The Charles Engelhard 
Foundation

Shekhar Saxena, M.D., FRCPsych., 
D.A.B., M.R.C. 
Professor of Global Mental Health, 
Harvard T.H. Chan School of 
Public Health

Leslie Scallet, J.D. 
Vice President (Retired),  
The Lewin Group

Joel Slack 
President, Slack Consulting

Ex-Officio
Thomas H. Bornemann, Ed.D. 
Former Director, Carter Center 
Mental Health Program

Kathryn Cade , M.B.A. 
Vice Chair, Carter Center Board 
of Trustees

Gregory L. Fricchione, M.D. 
Associate Chief of Psychiatry, 
Massachusetts General Hospital

Larke Huang, Ph.D. 
Senior Advisor (Retired), Office of 
the Administrator, SAMHSA

prevention, promotion, and early intervention services for 
young children and their families; and works to increase public 
awareness and stimulate actions about mental health issues.

Advisory board members select fellows and serve as mentors 
who provide technical assistance and share professional 
contacts within their fields of expertise.

Kortni Alston, Ph.D. 
Department Chair and Associate 
Professor for the Department of 
Communication, Art, and Design 
Gardner-Webb University

Jimmie Briggs 
Principal, Skoll Foundation

Caroline S. Clauss-Ehlers, Ph.D. 
Associate Professor, Rutgers 
University

Benjamin G. Druss, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Rosalynn Carter Endowed Chair 
for Mental Health, Rollins School 
of Public Health, Emory University

Víctor García-Perdomo, Ph.D. 
Associate Professor, School of 
Communication 
Universidad de La Sabana 

Katie Hawkins-Gaar 
Freelance Journalist and 
Consultant

Hank Klibanoff 
Professor of Practice, English and 
Creative Writing, Emory University

Bill Lichtenstein 
President, Lichtenstein 
Creative Media

Tori Murden McClure, M.Div., 
J.D., M.F.A. 
President, Spalding University

Bob Meyers 
President Emeritus, National 
Press Foundation

Ellen Mickiewicz, Ph.D. 
James R. Shepley Professor of 
Public Policy Studies, Duke 
University

Arlene Morgan 
Assistant Dean, School of Media 
and Communication, Temple 
University

Deborah Wang 
Contributing Reporter, Editor, and 
Host, KUOW Public Radio

International Advisors
Sultana Afdhal 
CEO, The World Innovation 
Summit for Health (WISH), an 
initiative of Qatar Foundation

Victor M. García 
Assistant Professor and  
Academic Researcher 
Universidad de la Sabana, 
Colombia

Yahira Rossini Guzmán Sabogal 
Head of Mental Health 
Universidad de la Sabana, 
Colombia 

Nick March 
Assistant Editor in Chief 
The National Newspaper, 
Abu Dhabi
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Board of Councilors

The Board of Councilors is 
a leadership advisory group 
that promotes understanding 
of and support for the Carter 
Center’s mission. Members 
attend quarterly presentations 
and act as advocates for 
the Center. This list reflects 
membership from Sept. 1, 2021, 
to Aug. 31, 2022.

Chair
Mary S. Moore
Founder and CEO
The Cook’s Warehouse

Vice Chair
Laura Turner Seydel
Captain Planet Foundation

Life Members
Miles Alexander
Kirkpatrick Townsend & Stockton

H. Inman Allen
Ivan Allen Company

Tricia Allen

Claire “Yum” Arnold
Leapfrog Services

W. Frank Barron Jr.

Frank J. Belatti
Equicorp Partners

Paula Lawton Bevington
Bevington Advisors

Elizabeth K. Blake

Arthur M. Blank
The Arthur M. Blank Family 

Foundation

Charles M. Brewer
Las Catalinas Holding Company

Martha Finn Brooks
Director, Bombardier, Jabil Circuit, 

Constellium, and CARE USA

Kenneth G. Byers Jr.
Byers Engineering Company

President Jimmy Carter

Rosalynn Carter

Dan T. Cathy
Chick-fil-A

Robert B. Colgin
The Social List of Atlanta, Georgia

Shan Cooper
Atlanta Committee for Progress

Ann Wilson Cramer
Coxe Curry & Associates

A. W. “Bill” Dahlberg

F. T. “Tread” Davis Jr.
Dentons US 

Walter W. Driver Jr.
Goldman Sachs & Co.

L. Reade Fahs
National Vision

J. Rex Fuqua
Fuqua Capital Corporation

E. Alex Gregory
YKK Corporation of America 

John B. Hardman, M.D.

Laura Hardman

Philip J. Hickey Jr.

Robert M. Holder Jr.
The RMH Group

W. Thomas Johnson

Ingrid Saunders Jones

James R. Lientz Jr.

Dennis P. Lockhart

James R. Margard

Robert H. McKinney

Dorothy B. “Dot” Padgett

Shyam Reddy
BlueLinx Corporation 

Gerald A. Rosenthal
Rosenthal, Levy, Simon, & Sosa

Dr. Lauren Speeth
The Elfenworks Foundation

Robert E. Turner III
Turner Enterprises

Robert A. Yellowlees

Limited Term Members
Raydean M. Acevedo
President and CEO
Research Management Consultants

Mark C. Adams
Managing Director
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.

Brad L. Alexander
Impact Public Affairs

David Allman
Founder and Chairman
Regent Partners

Gayle Alston

Gregory T. Baranco
President
Baranco Automotive Group

Thomas A. Barrow III

Bryan Batson
Executive Vice President and Chief, 

External and Public Affairs
Southern Company Gas

Dr. Mark R. Bell II
Head of Family Office Services and 

Private Capital
Balentine

Daniel Berman
Founder, Chairman and CEO
PharmaCentra

Justin Berman
Co-Founder and Co-Chairman
Berman|Cresset

J. Veronica Biggins
Managing Director
Diversified Search

Becky Blalock
Managing Partner
Advisory Capital

Theodore I. Blum
Managing Shareholder
Greenberg Traurig

Sue Boehlke
President and Managing Director
Informa Tech

Philip P. Bolton
Founder and Publisher Emeritus
Global Atlanta

Emmet Bondurant
Partner
Bondurant, Mixson & Elmore

Dr. Raphael Bostic
President and CEO
Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta

Maceo A. Brown
President
System 5 Electronics

Amanda Brown-Olmstead
President and Chief Executive 

Officer
A. Brown-Olmstead Associates

Dr. Annie Hunt Burriss
CEO
Jinfiniti Diagnostics

Amy Carter

Chip and Becky Carter

Hugh A. Carter Jr.
Chairman and President
Darby Printing Company

Jack and Elizabeth Carter

James and Sally Carter

Hon. Jason and Kate Carter

Jeff Carter

Josh and Sarah Carter

Sarah Carter, Ph.D., and  
Brendan Murphy, Ph.D.

Andrew Cathy
Chief Executive Officer
Chick-fil-A

Dr. Louis Centofanti
President
Perma-Fix Environmental Services

John and Mirabai Chuldenko

Shawntel Hebert Clark
Managing Attorney Employment
Vanderlande

Cameron Clayton
CEO
EasyPark Group

Hon. Terry L. Coleman
Principal
Coleman Consulting

Kevin M. Collins
President
Invesco Mortgage Capital

Colin Connolly
President and Chief Executive 

Officer
Cousins Properties

Stuart Countess
Chief Operating Officer and Senior 

Vice President
Kia Georgia

Joel H. Cowan
President
Habersham & Cowan

David B. Crawford
President
Crawford Investment Counsel

David D. Cummings
Founder
Atlanta Tech Village

Lacy Curry
Director
Piedmont Fayette Hospital

Erroll B. Davis Jr.

Cynthia N. Day
President and CEO
Citizens Trust Bank

Clark Dean
Senior Managing Director, 

Transaction Sciences
Transwestern

John Deushane
President and General Manager
WXIA Television, 11 Alive

David H. Dixon
Senior Managing Partner
OneStreet Residential

Paul D. Donahue
Chairman and CEO
Genuine Parts Company

Carolyn Donnelly
Managing Director, Marketing and 

Strategic Priorities
CIBC Private Wealth Management

Michael S. Donnelly
Atlanta Regional President
Wells Fargo of Georgia

Michael P. Doss
President and Chief Executive 

Officer
Graphic Packaging Holding 

Company

Karen I. Duckett
Owner and CEO
Duckett Design Group

Lisa A. Dunavin

M. Michael Egan
Senior Partner
Owen, Gleaton, Egan, Jones & 

Sweeney

Diana Ellsworth
Partner
McKinsey & Company
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Jimmy Etheredge
Senior Managing Director
Accenture

Michael P. Fahey
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Duriya Farooqui
Director
Intercontinental Exchange, and 

International Hotels Group

Hon. R. Keegan Federal Jr.
Founder and Senior Partner
The Federal Firm

Henry David Fellows Jr.
Partner
Fellows LaBriola

R. Fenton-May, Ph.D.
President and CEO
CarrierWeb

Christian Fischer
President and CEO
Georgia-Pacific

Dr. Candace Steele Flippin
Senior Vice President and Chief 

Communications Officer
Acuity Brands

Pegi Follachio
Follachio & Associates

Ann G. Fort
Partner
Eversheds Sutherland

Shalya Forté
Director, Southeast
Pandora Radio

Emma Foulkes
Partner
Collective Wealth Partners

Dr. Janine Franco
The Village Vets of Decatur

Chanel H. Frazier
Managing Director
BlackRock Atlanta Innovation Hub

Grace Fricks
President and CEO
Access to Capital for Entrepreneurs

Patricia A. Fritz
Vice President of Corporate Affairs
UCB

Praveen Ghanta
Founder
HiddenLevers

Taylor Glover
President and CEO
Turner Enterprises

Kevin Gooch
Partner
Holland & Knight

Daniel L. Gordon
Executive Director
Jabian Consulting

Kevin Greiner
President and CEO
Gas South

James S. Grien
President and CEO
TM Capital Corporation

Bruce C. Gunter
Civitas Housing Group

Julie Ison Haley
CEO and Co-Founder
Edge Solutions

Nancy D. Halwig

Cynthia Hardy
CEO and Founder
Pivot Global Partners

Hubert L. “Herky” Harris Jr.

Thomas J. Harrold Jr.
Member
Miller & Martin

Ellen Weaver Hartman
Hartman Public Relations

David B. Hartnett
Chief Economic Development 

Officer
Metro Atlanta Chamber

Aziz Hashim
Founder and Managing Partner
NRD Capital

Greg K. Hecht
Partner
Hecht Walker

Babette Henagan
Managing Partner
Linx Partners

Glenn P. Hendrix
Chairman
Arnall, Golden, Gregory

Gary M. Henschen, M.D.

Thomas M. Hensley
President
Fieldale Farms Corporation

Jeff Hilimire
CEO
Dragon Army

John R. Holder
Chairman and CEO
Holder Properties

Philip E. Holladay Jr.
Retired Partner
King & Spalding

Bob Hope
President
Hope-Beckham

Susan Hrib
Co-Founder and CEO
Atlanta Music Fund

Travis D. Hughes
Founder and Broker in Charge
Hughes Investment Partners

Farley A. Hunter
F. A. Hunter & Associates

Christine Hurtsellers
Chief Executive Officer
Voya Investment Management

Henna Inam
CEO
Transformational Leadership

Sara Irvani
CEO
Okabashi Brands

Terri Jondahl
Chairman and CEO
CAB Incorporated

Stanley S. Jones
Partner
Nelson Mullins Riley & 

Scarborough

Paul Q. Judge, Ph.D.
Founder
Judge Ventures

Nancy Juneau
CEO
Juneau Construction

Wab Kadaba
Partner
Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton

Murad R. Karimi
Founder and CEO
Mosaic Management

Subodh Karnik
Chairman and CEO
ManaAir and ExpressJet Airlines

Katharine Kelley
President and CEO
Green Street Properties

Jay Kelly
Director
Jay Kelly Interactive Design

Joe E. Kiani
CEO and Chairman of the Board
Masimo Corporation

David F. Kirkpatrick
Vice President
IMG College Licensing

Linda A. Klein
Senior Managing Shareholder
Baker, Donelson, Bearman, 

Caldwell & Berkowitz

Kerry W. Kohnen

Sue Kolloru
Chief Strategy Officer
Pearson

Sonjui L. Kumar
Partner
KPPB Law

James B. Langford Jr.
President
FC Solutions

Allegra Lawrence-Hardy
Partner
Lawrence & Bundy

L. Dave Lentz
Chief Operating Officer
Fisher & Phillips

Craig Lesser
Managing Partner
Pendleton Group

Mitchell B. Lewis

William H. Linginfelter
Area President, Georgia and South 

Carolina
Regions Bank

Russ Lipari
President
Validus Group

David Llewellyn
Law Office of David J. Llewellyn

Stephen Lockyer
President
Confederation Capital Partners 

Limited

Saadia Madsbjerg
President
The Coca-Cola Foundation

Ellen C. Marks

James Marlow
President
Southface Institute

Keith W. Mason
Principal
KWM Capital Management

Darrell J. Mays
Chief Executive Officer
Pensare Acquisition Corporation

Dominic C. Mazzone
Managing Director
Mazzone & Associates

Barry C. McCarthy
President and CEO
Deluxe Corporation

Michael A. McCarthy
Director of Research and Principal
Shapiro Capital Management

Wade F. McKenzie
President
PhyTest

Roderick M. McLean
Vice President and General 

Manager
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics

Daniel McMorrow
General Manager
D-Mac Industries

Dr. Russell Medford
Founder and Chief Executive 

Officer
Covanos

Hon. Harold Melton
Partner
Troutman Pepper Hamilton 

Sanders

Natalia Migal

D. Kris Miller
President
Ackerman & Co.

James T. Mills Jr.
Chief Operating Officer
Integro Benefits
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Helen Probst Mills
Co-Founder
New Rural Project

Ryan Millsap
Chairman and CEO
The Blackhall Group

Joseph C. Montgomery

C. David Moody Jr.
President and CEO
C.D. Moody Construction 

Company

Bartow Morgan Jr.
Principal
Morgan Company

George Mori

Ralph R. Morrison
Partner
Wallace Morrison & Casteel

Emory L. Morsberger
Principal
Morsberger Revitalization

Amol S. Naik
Senior Vice President, Public Policy 

and Community Engagement
Ting Internet/Tucows

Richard S. Novack
Senior Vice President, U.S. Markets
Cigna

Colleen Nunn

Daniel E. O’Neill
President
O’Neill Management Consulting

Hon. Samuel S. Olens
Counsel
Dentons US

Sanjay Parekh
Entrepreneur and Co-Founder
Occasional Wraps, and Edgewise 

Media

Sunny K. Park

Greg Parker
Founder
Parker’s Corporation

William C. Pate
President and CEO
Atlanta Convention and Visitors 

Bureau

Frank Patterson
President
Trilith Studios

Fred Perpall
Chief Executive Officer
The Beck Group

Egbert L. J. Perry
Chairman and Chief Executive 

Officer
The Integral Group

Jason Perry
Office Managing Partner
Grant Thornton

C. Mark Pirrung
CEO
Atlanta Beverage Company

Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer, 
Ph.D.

Chairman and CEO
Bowdon Manufacturing Company

Helen Smith Price

Erica Qualls-Battey
Area General Manager
Atlanta Marriott Marquis

William T. Ratliff III
Chairman
New South Federal Savings Bank

Dr. Pravin Reddy
Reddy Aesthetic Institute

Jim Reed
President
YKK Corporation of America

Johanna Ellis Reisinger
Owner
Atlanta Classic Cars

Sarah and Stephen Reynolds

Matt Richburg, Ph.D.
Managing Partner
Ampersand Leadership Group

Joy Rohadfox
CEO and President
Rohadfox Construction Control 

Services

Jean R. Rollins
President
The C Three Group

Jerrold G. Rose
President
Technology Consulting Associates

H. Jerome Russell Jr.
President
H. J. Russell & Company

Ravi Saligram
President and CEO
Newell Brands

D. Jack Sawyer Jr.
Partner and Managing Director
Cresset Capital Management

Jackie Saylor
Partner
The Saylor Law Firm

Thomas R. Saylor

David W. Scheible

Jennifer L. Scully
President and CEO
Clinical Resources

R. K. Sehgal

Neeli G. Shah, Esq.
The Law Offices of Neeli Shah

Sachin Shailendra
President
SG Contracting

William M. Sharp Sr.
Partner
Holland & Knight

Nzinga Shaw
President
TurnkeyZRG

Jane E. Shivers
Shivers Consulting

Fahim Siddiqui
Sr. Vice President of Information 

Technology
The Home Depot

Jim Simpson
President, Georgia Region
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan

Jewel Burks Solomon
Managing Partner
Collab Capital

Laurie Speed
Speed + King Law Firm

Karen Jones Squires

Ann G. Stallard

William J. Stanley III
Principal
Stanley, Love-Stanley

Richard E. “Ricky” Steele Jr.
Chief Development Officer
Talent 360 Solutions

Elane Stock
CEO
ServiceMaster Brands

Hon. Stephanie Stuckey
CEO
Stuckey’s Corporation

Justin Sullivan
Senior Vice President
PNC Financial Services Group

Alexis Sulyma
Director, Public Health Operating 

Unit
Northrop Grumman Information 

Systems

Max Sutherland
President and CEO
World Trade Center Atlanta

Caroline Scott Talley

Hasan Tarek
CEO
Atlanta Fire Cricket Club

Alexander C. Taylor
Chairman, President and CEO
Cox Enterprises

Bernard Taylor Sr.
Retired Partner
Alston & Bird

Lizanne Thomas
Partner-in-Charge, Southern US 

Region
Jones Day

Michael R. Thomas
Chairman and CEO
Thomas Financial Group

Mark W. Tipton
Georgia Regional President
IBERIABANK/First Horizon

Carol Tomé
Chief Executive Officer
United Parcel Service

Timothy C. Tuff

Paul E. Viera Jr.
CEO and Partner
EARNEST Partners

William A. Vogel
Managing Principal
Montag & Caldwell

Dexter B. Warrior
Principal and Chief Operating 

Officer
T. Dallas Smith & Company

James G. Wetrich
CEO
The Wetrich Group

Warren Wick
President, North America
Salesforce

D. Richard Williams
Chairman
Primerica

Jeff Williams
Managing Partner
US Strategic Capital Venture Fund

Rocky Williform
Founder and CEO
BlackCool & Co.

Melody Wilder Wilson
Attorney

John F. Wilson III
President and Chief Operating 

Officer
Rollins

Jim Winestock
Winestock Foundation

Chris Womack
President
Georgia Power Company

John C. Yates
Partner
Morris, Manning & Martin

Ex-Officio Members
The Honorable Brian P. Kemp
Governor
State of Georgia

The Honorable Andre Dickens
Mayor
City of Atlanta

Gregory L. Fenves, Ph.D.
President
Emory University
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Jason Carter
Chair
The Carter Center
Partner
Bondurant, Mixson & 

Elmore, LLP

Kathryn E. Cade
Vice Chair
The Carter Center
Co-chair
Rosalynn Carter Institute 

for Caregivers

Terrence B. Adamson
Co-chair, Board of Directors
The Henry Luce Foundation

Arthur M. Blank
Owner and Chairman
Atlanta Falcons
Chairman
The Arthur M. Blank 

Family Foundation

Susan A. Cahoon
Partner
Kilpatrick Townsend & 

Stockton, LLP

Jimmy Carter
Founder

Rosalynn Carter
Founder

The Carter Center is governed by its Board of Trustees, which oversees the Center’s assets and advances its objectives and goals.

Lisa Angeline Cooper, M.D., 
M.P.H.

James F. Fries Professor of Medicine
Bloomberg Distinguished Professor
Johns Hopkins University School 

of Medicine, School of Nursing, 
and Bloomberg School of Public 
Health

Director, Johns Hopkins Center for 
Health Equity

Director, Johns Hopkins Urban 
Health Institute

Johns Hopkins University

J. Crystal Edmonson
Broadcast Editor
Atlanta Business Chronicle

Gregory L. Fenves
President
Emory University 

The Hon. Gordon D. Giffin
Partner
Dentons US, LLP

C.D. Glin
President and Global Head 

of Philanthropy
The PepsiCo Foundation

Ben F. Johnson III
Retired Partner
Alston & Bird

Sherry Lansing
CEO
The Sherry Lansing Foundation

Douglas W. Nelson
Retired President and CEO
Annie E. Casey Foundation

Ambassador Susan D. Page
Professor of Practice, Weiser 

Diplomacy Center
University of Michigan 

Wendell S. Reilly
Chairman (retired)
Berman Capital Advisors

Marjorie M. Scardino
Chairman
London School of Hygiene and 

Tropical Medicine

Justice Leah Ward Sears
Partner
Smith, Gambrell & Russell

The Hon. Doug Shipman
President
Atlanta City Council

Hugo X. Shong
Founding General Partner
IDG Capital Partners

Gregory J. Vaughn, M.D.
Consultant
Spencer Stuart

Ellen H. Yankellow, Pharm.D.
President and CEO
Correct Rx Pharmacy 

Services Inc.

Trustees Emeritus
The Hon. James T. Laney
Former U.S. Ambassador 

to South Korea

John J. Moores
Investor and Chair
San Diego Padres

Chilton D. Varner
Partner
King & Spalding, LLP
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In a community in Abia state, Nigeria,  
a man’s eyes are examined for signs of 
the parasitic disease river blindness.
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